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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015 ("Year”), the
Group's revenue from the continuing operations amounted
to approximately HK$785.70 million (2014: HK$80.00
million), representing an increase of 882.13% over last year.
Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
was approximately HK$10.62 million (2014: HK$11.10
million). The loss (net of tax) from continuing operations was
approximately HK$41.86 million (2014: HK$41.82 million)
and the profit from discontinued operations (net of tax) was
approximately HK$56.75 million (2014: HK$142.88 million).
Profit attributable to owners of the parent was approximately
HK$19.41 million (2014: HK$117.81 million). Profit per share
from continuing operations and discontinued operations for
the Year was HKO0.51 cents (2014 restated: HK3.87 cents).

The Group will continue to implement cost control and focus
on utilising existing resources to further strengthen and grow
its businesses, both organically and through acquisitions
when appropriate opportunities arise. The Group also plans
to diversify its business portfolio and will explore any good
investment opportunity with major focus in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong. The Group
will carefully select suitable investments, which will be
operated with experienced business partners.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group's wine and liquor business is principally engaged
in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the PRC.
Currently, the Group operates a retail and distribution
network for wine and liquor in Guangzhou, Harbin and
Hunan Provinces of the PRC. The Group has 7 wine and
liquor specialty stores and 19 franchise stores in Guangzhou.

The Group is the exclusive distributor of Diancang Jiugui and
Meiming Wenshi in the PRC until May 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This business segment has been hit by the PRC government'’s
crackdown on anti-corruption and limitation on extravagant
spending in government departments and state-owned
institutions and enterprises and the plasticizer contamination
scandal since 2012. The operating environment of the liquor
industry in the PRC remained difficult during the Year. The
Group will closely monitor the market conditions and trends
and adopt corresponding measures of risk management to
mitigate the negative impacts. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to optimise the product mix and focus on higher
margin products to drive its business growth. Apart from
strengthening the existing markets, the Group will endeavour
to expand its retail and distribution network to other parts of
the PRC.

Owing to the PRC government’s policy, revenue of the wine
and liquor business declined by 41.64% to approximately
HK$46.69 million (2014: HK$80.00 million) during the Year,
accounting for 5.94% (2014: 40.97%) of the total revenue.
Gross profit of this business segment was approximately
HK$6.71 million (2014: HK$11.10 million), representing a
decrease of 39.54% from last year.

Sales of Green Food Products Business

On 25 August 2014, BRI T ELBEEHE AR A 7
(Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi Trading Limited*, “SZMM"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
share transfer agreement with 1t KFT & DB R A A
(Beidahuang Marketing Co. Ltd.*, “Beidahuang Marketing
Co.”) and Mr. Hu Guang Sheng (as vendors) whereby (i) the
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire 10% equity
interest in AINPE R THEEBRMBEXBR QA (Shenzhen
Beidahuang Green Food Distribution Limited*, “SZBDH")
from Beidahuang Marketing Co. and (ii) the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity interest in SZBDH
from Mr. Hu Guang Sheng at an aggregate consideration of
RMB2.5 million. The transaction was completed on 4 March
2015 and accordingly, SZBDH has become a subsidiary of the
Company.

In view of population, rising disposable income of the PRC
residents and increase in health awareness by the general
public, the directors consider there will be a growing demand
for green food products. The Group will focus in this segment
and is anticipating a steady growth in future.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmED M

The sales of green food products business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$727.29 million, accounting for 92.57%
of the total revenue. Gross profit of this business segment for
the Year was approximately HK$4.5 million.

Logistic Warehouse Business

On 13 May 2015, China Silver Group Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
shareholders’ agreement with other independent third parties
to form a joint venture company in Hong Kong to engage in
leasing of logistics warehousing facilities in Hong Kong.

The logistic warehouse business recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$9.53 million, accounting for 1.2% of the
total revenue. Gross loss of this business segment for the
Year was approximately HK$2.43 million since some of the
facilities are still under construction.

Money Lending Business

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated
in PRC has engaged in the money lending business in
PRC. The money lending business recorded a revenue of
HK$2.19 million, accounting for 0.28% of the total revenue.
Gross profit of this business segment for the year was
approximately HK$2.19 million.

Ethanol and Animal Feed Business

On 26 March 2014, BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited (“BAPP"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with an independent third party, pursuant
to which BAPP has conditionally agreed to sell all its
100% equity interest in BAPP (Northwest) Limited (“BAPP
Northwest”), which held 100% equity interest of Z2E
X F LR =M EM AR 2 E (Ningxia West Bright
New Resource Technology Co., Ltd.*, ‘Ningxia West”) at a
consideration of RMB40 million (“BAPP Disposal”). As BAPP
Northwest represented the entire ethanol business segment
of the Group, the Group reclassified the entire ethanol
business segment as assets held for sale as at 31 December
2014. The revenue, cost of sales and various expenses related
to the entire ethanol business segment for the year ended
31 December 2014 was included in the profit/(loss) from
discontinued operations (net of tax) in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the Year. The BAPP Disposal was completed on 15 June
2015.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 12 June 2015, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to sell all its 100% equity interest in
Bio-Dynamic China Limited, which held 100% equity interest
of MBEFEHMEEEABM AR (Harbin Niu Wang Muye
Management Company L|m|ted*), at a consideration of HK$1
million (“Bio-Dynamic Disposal”). The Bio-Dynamic Disposal
was completed on 12 June 2015.

Following the BAPP Disposal and the Bio-Dynamic Disposal,
the ethanol and animal feed business segments were officially
terminated during the Year.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND COMPANY WEBSITE
Since 6 May 2015, the Company’s English and Chinese
names have been changed to “China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited” and “/ B4t K7
EEXEBIERAR QA" respectively. Since 11 May
2015, the website of the Company has been changed to
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinabeidahuang.

CHANGE OF HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Since 3 June 2015, the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and Transfer Office of the Company has been changed to
Union Registrars Limited.

CHANGE OF HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Since 17 January 2015, the head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong has been changed to
Unit 1001E, 10/F, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong and subsequently changed to
Unit 1302B, 13/F, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 15 February 2016.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Acquisition
On 25 August 2014, SZMM entered into a share transfer
agreement with Beidahuang Marketing Co. and Mr. Hu
Guang Sheng (as vendors) whereby (i) the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire 10% equity interest in SZBDH
from Beidahuang Marketing Co. and (ii) the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity interest in SZBDH
from Mr. Hu Guang Sheng at an aggregate consideration of
RMB2.5 million. The transaction was completed on 4 March
2015 and accordingly, SZBDH has become a subsidiary of the
Company. Following the completion, the registered capital of
SZBDH was increased from RMBO.5 million to RMB10 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmED M

Disposals

(i) On 26 March 2014, BAPP entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant to which
BAPP has conditionally agreed to sell all its 100%
equity interest in BAPP Northwest, which held 100%
equity interest of Ningxia West at a consideration of
RMB40 million. The BAPP Disposal was completed on
15 June 2015. After that day, BAPP Northwest ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Company.

(i) On 12 June 2015, the Company entered into an
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to sell all its 100%
equity interest in Bio-Dynamic China Limited, which
held 100% equity interest of BB BAFH K EE
AR AF (Harbin Niu Wang Muye Management
Company Limited*), at a consideration of HK$1
million. The Bio-Dynamic Disposal was completed on
12 June 2015.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to explore new markets and step
up promotion and marketing efforts to expand the existing
business. The Group will also look for other potential
businesses and related profitable businesses for acquisition.

Memorandum of Understanding

(i) On 12 August 2013, the Company entered into a
non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
("MOU") with an independent third party (“Vendor”)
pursuant to which the Company intended to acquire
and the Vendor intended to sell 100% of the issued
share capital of a company (the “Target”) (“Possible
Acquisition”). The Target and its subsidiary (“Target
Group”) are in the process of acquiring a company
incorporated in the PRC which is holding a piece
of multi-purpose agricultural land (the “Land”) in
the Yinchuan City of Ningxia Province, the PRC.
The Company intended to acquire the Land for the
development of an Eco pasture base.
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the MOU (as extended by three extension
agreements dated 24 February 2014, 22 August 2014
and 23 February 2015), the Vendor and the Company
would negotiate in good faith the terms of a formal
agreement for the Possible Acquisition on or before 22
August 2015 (the “Relevant Period”). The MOU would
terminate upon expiry of the Relevant Period or the
execution of the formal agreement. As announced on
21 August 2015, the parties intended not to enter into
the formal agreement on or before 22 August 2015
and would not further extend the MOU. The MOU
lapsed on 23 August 2015.

The Company entered into two letters of intent on 21
October 2015 (“LOI 1" and “LOI 2" and collectively
as the “LOI") separately with two parties (“Vendors”)
which are third parties independent of the Company
and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules) in relation to the possible acquisitions
("Possible Acquisitions”) of certain equity interests
in two companies (“Target Company 1" and “Target
Company 2" and collectively as “Target Companies”).

The Company also entered into a letter of intent on
22 October 2015 in relation to the possible investment
("Possible Investment”).

Target Company 1 is principally engaged in general
construction contracting for housing and building
projects and general construction contracting for
municipal public projects.

Target Company 2 is principally engaged in sales
of lighting equipment and urban and road lighting
engineering contracting.

The Possible Acquisitions were subject to certain
conditions, one of which was that Target Company
1 and Target Company 2 could win a bid for the PPP
Projects.

On 17 December 2015, the Target Companies won
the bid for the PPP Projects.

(ii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

10

On 1 March 2016, the Company entered into the First
Share Transfer Agreement with the owner of Target
Company 1 whereby the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire and the owner of Target Company
1 has conditionally agreed to sell 51% equity interest
in Target Company 1 at a consideration of RMB35
million.

On 1 March 2016, the Company entered into the
Second Share Transfer Agreement with the owner
of Target Company 2 whereby the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire and the owner
of Target Company 2 has conditionally agreed to
sell 51% equity interest in Target Company 2 at a
consideration of RMB50 million.

The First Share Transfer Agreement and the Second
Share Transfer Agreement are not interconditional
upon one another.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting year, the
precedent conditions to the First and Second Transfer
Agreements were fulfilled and the completion of the
two agreements took place on 24 March 2016. As the
Target Companies have become the subsidiaries of the
Group, the Group can become eligible to participate in
the PPP Projects.

Through participating in the PPP Projects, it is expected
that the Group would derive revenue from the
execution of the contractual works contemplated
under the PPP Projects and the provision of on-going
maintenance services in relation to the PPP Projects.

Annual Report 2015 F#§
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(iii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 22 December 2015, subjected to the fulfilment of
the conditions precedent, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has signed a joint venture
agreement (“JV Agreement”) with an independent
third party to establish a joint venture company on a
49:51 basis for the development and the operation
of a logistic industrial park in Shenzhen, the PRC.
In the event that the conditions precedent to the JV
Agreement are not fulfilled on or before 31 March
2016 (or such other date as may be agreed between
both parties), the JV Agreement shall lapse and shall
cease to have any force and effect and the parties will
be released from all obligations thereunder, save for
any liability arising out of any antecedent breaches
thereof.

Details of the above JV Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 22
December 2015.

On 30 December 2015, the Company and Zhongfa
Junrong Technology Joint Stock Company* (F 2
F R R A% D A F]) entered into a strategic co-
operation framework agreement, pursuant to which
the parties shall cooperate and explore the possibility
of developing production industrial parks and logistic
industrial parks in the PRC by way of joint venture
arrangements. As at the date of this annual report,
there is no joint venture agreement signed.

On 26 January 2016, the Company signed a
strategic co-operation framework agreement with
Party A and Party B. Party A is a municipal city
government in Jishou, Hunan Province, the PRC and
Party B is a limited company incorporated in the
PRC and principally engaged in integrated property
development and investments. Pursuant to the said
agreement, the parties shall co-operate and explore
the possibility of expediting certain municipal projects
(including city infrastructure facility constructions,
road and railway constructions, and lighting) and
developing production industrial parks in Jishou,
Hunan Province, the PRC (“PPP Projects”) by way of
joint venture arrangements. It is expected that the
Group's investment return from participating in the
PPP Projects in Jishou would be relatively secured and
promising. As at the date of this annual report, there is
no formal agreement signed.

(iii)
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*

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

Business Co-operation

As announced on 28 January 2014, the Group has started
to explore co-operation opportunity with R EZEREBEE
[R/AF] (CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co., Limited*,
"CECT-Chinacomm”), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability. CECT-Chinacomm and its ultimate
beneficial owners are independent of and not connected with
the Company and its connected persons. CECT-Chinacomm
has the development right in respect of a parcel of land in the
Beijing Economic and Technological Development Area and
will construct a project known as Beijing Wireless Broadband
Industrial Park (the “Project”) on the parcel of land. An
indirect subsidiary of CECT-Chinacomm is appointed as the
operating company of the Project, and has legally obtained
the Land Use Right Certificate, the Planning Permit and the
Construction Land Use Permit.

The co-operation is still in the discussion stage and no formal
agreement has been entered into by the parties at the date
of this annual report. The Board expects that the Company
will be able to join CECT-Chinacomm and its subsidiary to
develop the Project for commercial benefits.

Formation of Joint Venture Company

(i) On 22 January 2015, SZMM entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “JV Agreement 1") with F 3|
mREEZRE 5 AR A A (Shenzhen Shenda Hengye
Trading Company Limited*, “Hengye”), pursuant
to which SZMM and Hengye agreed to form a joint
venture company, namely &3 T K5 & & F 2 15
BB AA (Shenzhen Dahuangyuan E-Commerce
Company Limited*, “Shenzhen Dahuangyuan”).
Shenzhen Dahuangyuan will be principally engaged
in the E-commerce business in Qianhai area in the
PRC, which principally includes food trading and
electrical and mechanical equipment business.
Pursuant to the JV Agreement 1, the total registered
capital of Shenzhen Dahuangyuan will be RMB200
million and SZMM has already contributed RMB60
million, representing 30% of total registered capital of
Shenzhen Dahuangyuan.

The PRC policy became favorable to E-commerce
business, together with various favorable policies
in the Qianhai area. Through the establishment of
Shenzhen Dahuangyuan, the Company is able to
diversify its existing business into the E-commerce
business.

For identification purposes only
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(ii)

(iii)

*

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 13 May 2015, China Silver Group Holdings Limited
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a shareholders’ agreement (“JV Agreement 2”)
with other independent third parties to form a joint
venture company in Hong Kong to engage in leasing
of logistics warehousing facilities in Hong Kong. By
entering into the JV Agreement 2, the Company is
able to diversify its existing business to include leasing
of logistics facilities and the related businesses.

On 18 August 2015, a joint venture company
named EEAREBEFEREENEERBERA
Al (Ningxia Dahuangyuan New Energy Agricultural
Science and Technology Development Co., Ltd.*,
“Ningxia Dahuangyuan”) was established by SZMM,
FEEMEHEZ AR A A (Ningxia Shengdi Trading
Co., Ltd.*, “Ningxia Shengdi”) and Ningxia West.
Ningxia Dahuangyuan will be principally engaged in
agricultural cultivation, and processing, development
and sales of agricultural products. Each of the joint
venture parties will utilize its own resources and
professional skills in the operation and management
of Ningxia Dahuangyuan. Ningxia Shengdi has a multi-
purpose agriculture land and substantial experience
in operating farm and agricultural cultivation, Ningxia
West has its own processing factory and the Group
has fund and distribution and sales channels. The
establishment of Ningxia Dahuangyuan represents a
significant step for the Group to extend its business
into the agricultural cultivation. Ningxia Dahuangyuan
is expected to complement and create synergy
with the Group's existing business. The directors
believe that the formation of strategic alliance by
establishing Ningxia Dahuangyuan with Ningxia
Shengdi and Ningxia West will effectively optimise
the Group’s business model and further enhance
its competitiveness in the food industry. Based on
the capital contribution by each of the joint venture
parties, SZMM, Ningxia West and Ningxia Shengdi
hold approximately 97.82%, 1.09% and 1.09% of the
equity interest of Ningxia Dahuangyuan respectively.
Accordingly, Ningxia Dahuangyuan is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

For identification purposes only

(ii)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

SZMM intends to contribute all the required capital
to Ningxia Dahuangyuan within 5 years after the
establishment of Ningxia Dahuangyuan. As informed
by Ningxia West and Ningxia Shengdi, each of them
intends to complete its full contribution in kind
to Ningxia Dahuangyuan within 1 year after the
establishment of Ningxia Dahuangyuan.

OTHER INFORMATION
Subscription of New Shares under General Mandate

(i)

14

On 10 April 2015, the Company entered into
subscription agreements separately with each of
the 14 independent subscribers for the subscription
of an aggregate of 150,000,000 new shares in the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.73 per
share (“April Subscription”). The market price is
HK$0.86 per share at the date of this subscription
agreement.

The directors considered that the subscription
represents an opportunity to raise additional funding
for the Group's business operation and it would also
strengthen the capital base and financial position
for the Group’s future business developments and
broaden the shareholder base of the Company.
Furthermore, the directors considered that the
subscription is a preferred method of fund raising as
compared with other equity fund raising exercises
based on time and costs involved.

The April Subscription was completed on 30 April
2015 and the Company issued 150,000,000 new
shares to 14 independent subscribers. The net
proceeds and the net price from the April Subscription
were approximately HK$109.45 million and HK$0.73
respectively. As at the date of this annual report,
approximately HK$30 million was applied to the
logistics business and the balance were used by the
Company for the Group’s business development,
investments and general working capital purposes.
Details of the April Subscription are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 April 2015
and 30 April 2015.

Annual Report 2015 F #§
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 17 June 2015,
subscription agreements separately with each of the
13 independent subscribers for the subscription of an
aggregate of 39,800,000 new shares in the Company
at the subscription price of HK$2.43 per share (“June
Subscription”). The market price is HK$3.00 per share
at the date of this subscription agreement.

the Company entered into

The directors considered that the subscription
represents an opportunity to raise additional funding
for the Group’s business operation and it would also
strengthen the capital base and financial position
for the Group's future business developments and
broaden the shareholder base of the Company.
Furthermore, the directors considered that the
subscription is a preferred method of fund raising as
compared with other equity fund raising exercises
based on time and costs involved.

The June Subscription was completed on 30 July
2015 and the Company issued 39,800,000 new
shares to 13 independent subscribers. The net
proceeds and the net price from the June Subscription
were approximately HK$96.6 million and HK$2.43
respectively. As at the date of this annual report, the
proceeds were used by the Company for the Group’s
business development,
repayment of loans and general working capital
purposes. Details of the June Subscription are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 17 June
2015 and 30 July 2015.

investments, acquisition,

Subscription of Shares under Specific Mandate

On 14 May 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (as supplemented and amended by three
supplemental agreements dated 18 May 2015, 16 July 2015
and 17 August 2015) with Beidahuang (HK) International
Trade Co., Limited (“HK Beidahuang”), pursuant to which
HK Beidahuang agreed to conditionally subscribe for a
total of 150,000,000 new shares at the subscription price
of HK$1.3365 per share in the Company (“Beidahuang
Subscription”) with a lock-up period of 18 months from

the date of completion of the Beidahuang Subscription.
The market price is HK$1.67 per share at the date of this
subscription agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

The directors are of the view that the Beidahuang
Subscription can further strengthen the business relationship
between the Group and Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang
Business Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

The Beidahuang Subscription was completed on 11
September 2015 and the Company issued 150,000,000
subscription shares to HK Beidahuang.

The aggregate proceeds from the Beidahuang Subscription
amounted to approximately HK$200.475 million and the net
proceeds and the net price was approximately HK$200.30
million and HK$1.3353 respectively, after deducting all the
professional fees incurred in the Beidahuang Subscription.
The Company will use the net proceeds for the Group’s
business development, investments and general working
capital purposes. Details of the Beidahuang Subscription are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 17 May
2015, 18 May 2015, 16 July 2015 and 17 August 2015 and
the circular of the Company dated 19 August 2015.

Conversion of Convertible Bonds

On 24 June 2014, the Company announced that it entered
into a subscription agreement (as supplemented by the
supplemental subscription agreement dated 31 July 2014)
with an independent subscriber for the subscription of
the convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$89.6 million in cash (“CB Subscription”). The CB
Subscription was completed on 7 August 2014 and the
Company issued the convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$89.6 million to the subscriber. As
at the date of this annual report, approximately RMB15
million was used to settle bank loan and approximately
RMB20 million was used as working capital of the Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan and the remaining was used as working capital
of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 4 June 2015, the bondholders fully converted the
convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.70 per
conversion share and the Company issued 128,000,000 new
shares to the bondholders accordingly.

Subscription of Unlisted Warrants under Specific
Mandate

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with HK Beidahuang for the subscription of an
aggregate of 180,000,000 non-listed warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.01 per warrant (“Warrants Subscription”). The
Warrants Subscription was completed on 31 March 2015
and the Company issued 180,000,000 non-listed warrants to
HK Beidahuang at the issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant.
As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds of the
Warrants Subscription of approximately HK$1.5 million have
been deposited into and remain in the bank account.

The warrants entitle the holder to subscribe in cash up to an
aggregate amount of HK$126 million for the subscription
shares at an initial subscription price of HK$0.70 per share in
the Company for a period of 2 years commencing from the
date of the issue of the warrants. After the exercise in full of
the subscription rights attaching to the warrants in December
2015, the Company intends to use the net proceeds of
HK$126 million for the Group's settlement of loans, business
development, investments and general working capital
purposes. As at the date of this annual report, the net
proceeds have been deposited into and remain in the bank
account.

Grant of Share Options

On 24 July 2015, the Company granted share options (the
"Options”) to certain eligible persons (including directors,
employees and consultants of the Group) to subscribe
at the exercise price of HK$2.06 per share for a total of
192,930,000 shares in the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 23 May 2007
(“Share Option Scheme”). Among the total of 192,930,000
Options granted, 18,830,000 Options were granted to the
directors and the chief executive officer of the Company.
Further details of the grant of the Options are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 July 2015.

BEEENWmRE DM

RZTE-—HEFANANB BE5FFEARSE
BRERIR 070 T BHRERREHRA
BERES S ARRAEFRFAEAET
128,000,0008% ¥ A% 17 ©

BREFRERBHF LHTRARER

RZZE—NFEAtH AArBEEFBILAR
HEBTESHRREROIVETARAES &
180,000,0007 3F E MR #EE 5T L R ik
([REEFRABEIE]) RREZIRESED
R-ZZE—RAF=ZA=+—HEX ARFEE
BITEB D RARMEE0.01750877180,000,000
MIELTRBREE TEBILR R - RAFHRA
B RERREIZIAESIE ZMERIEFEY
1,500,000/ st E 7 ARTTER P BDERTTAR
FAe

REEER THEARANUURSRERAR
AIRMN0.70B L2 NI T REBERBREES A
126,000,000/ 7T 2 sREERR (5 + HAPR A B 31TR
A& iEE 0 HAR AT B HEAM A - RER IR IERE PR 2
REBR-_ZT—RF+ - AERHTFER K
A AR5 BT 15 X8 % 56126,000,0007% 7T A 1E
AEBEERER EBER KRER—REE
EeRAB -NAFRAH FIERBEFHEET
ANRITEEF BNAESEITEREA-

REBRE

RZZE—RAFEtAZ+WAE  AREREAR
AR EEEFRA -+ =B EHN B
2 ([MERERED) mETEERALT (BIE
AEBZEZ EEREM) BHEBRE ([B
BERE]) A ER2.06B T2 ITHEEREA KL
192,930,000k X A & & 0 c RE R H 2 &
192,930,00017 & Az i & = - H#118,830,00017
BREDRTEZRARRITRAH - GRK
LR E #E—PFBENARRBRA=S
—RFE+A-tHBZA M-

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited FEdt AREZEEIZERER AT 17

Annual Report 2015 F #§



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

Bonus Issue of Shares, Change of Board Lot Size and
Increase in Authorised Share Capital

On 7 September 2015, the Board proposed a bonus issue
of new shares of the Company on the basis of one bonus
share for every one existing share held by the qualifying
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 5 January 2016 (“Bonus
Issue”). The bonus shares would be credited as fully paid at
par by way of capitalization of an appropriate amount in the
share premium account of the Company and the board lot
size for trading in the shares would be changed from 2,000
shares to 8,000 shares.

The Board also proposed to increase the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$400,000,000 divided into
4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$800,000,000
divided into 8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each by the
creation of an additional 4,000,000,000 unissued shares of
HK$0.10 each, which shall rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares.

The Bonus Issue and increase in the authorised share capital
were approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 22 December
2015.

As at 5 January 2016, the Company had a total of
2,336,644,876 shares in issue and therefore, an aggregate of
2,336,644,876 bonus shares were issued by the Company on
7 January 2016.

Details of the Bonus Issue and increase in authorised
share capital were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 7 September 2015, 2 December 2015 and
28 December 2015, and the circular of the Company dated 4
December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Adjustments to Outstanding Share Options

On 7 January 2016, according to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme, the exercise price of the share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and the number
of shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the 217,730,000 outstanding
share options were adjusted in the following manner as a
result of the Bonus Issue:
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Before Bonus Issue After Bonus Issue

ARBTA ARBT#E
Adjusted Adjusted
Number of Exercise number of exercise
Share price of Share price of
Options  each Share Options  each Share
outstanding Option  outstanding Option
TRE gREZ
fef R AT =) HATE SOBRE
Date of grant REBAH ERE<HE REZTEE BREHE TEE
23 July 2014 ZE-MELAZT=H 24,800,000 HK$0.754/&7L 49,600,000 HK$0.377/7T
24 July 2015 ZE-hEtAZTHEA 192,930,000 HK$2.0607%7T 385,860,000 HK$1.0307% 7T

Save for the above adjustments, all other terms and
conditions of the outstanding share options granted under
the Share Option Scheme remain unchanged. Cheng &
Cheng Limited, the auditor of the Company, has reviewed
and agreed with the adjustments to the outstanding share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme as disclosed
above and the announcement of the Company dated 7
January 2016.

LITIGATION

On 18 August 2015, the Company received a writ of
summons issued from the Registry of the High Court of Hong
Kong (the “Writ"”) in relation to a claim against the Company
by Mr. Qu Shuncai ("Mr. Qu”), a former director, as the
plaintiff of the claim.

Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu claims against the Company for
the sum of HK$6,069,000 being damages for the Company’s
wrongful refusal of the issue of 2,500,000 shares of the
Company to him upon his exercise of the share options
granted to him by the Company. On this annual report date,
the Company is still seeking legal advice in relation to the
Writ.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing Operations

The continuing operations of the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$785.70 million (2014: HK$80.00
million), representing an increase of 882.13% over last year.
Gross profit from the continuing operations of the Group
was approximately HK$10.62 million (2014: HK$11.10
million). The loss (net of tax) from continuing operations was
HK$41.86 million and the profit from discontinued operations
(net of tax) was HK$56.75 million. Profit attributable to
owners of the parent was approximately HK$19.41 million
(2014: HK$117.81 million). Profit was recorded in 2014 was
mainly due to the disposal gain from the disposal of 15 /&
B %) 5 [R /A &) (Harbin China Distillery Company Limited*)
on 18 June 2014 (“Harbin Disposal”). Profit per share from
continuing operations and discontinued operations for the
Year was HKO.51 cents (2014 restated: HK3.87 cents).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$14.24 million (2014: HK$16.71 million), representing
a decrease of 14.78% from last year and 1.8% (2014:
20.89%) of the Group’s revenue. Decrease in the expenses
was mainly due to the closures of several wine and liquor
specialty stores during the Year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$108.06
million (2014: HK$25.43 million), representing an increase
of 324.93% over last year. The significant increase of the
expenses was due to the equity-settled share option expense
for the grant of share option in 2015, which amounted to
HK$80.29 million.

Finance Cost

Finance cost was approximately HK$10.12 million (2014:
HK$8.7 million), representing an increase of 16.26% over
last year. The increase was due to the increase in the loan
interest.

*  For identification purposes only

Bt 7 B B8

BESEER

AN B 4 45 TS EUAS A #9785,700,000
#7t (ZZ — Y4 : 80,000,000/ 7T ) * & L4
HIN882.13% - AEEFFEL L X 2 EFMEL
10,620,000/ 7T (= ZF — P4 : 11,100,000
BIL) RHELEEBCEE (BB A
41,860,000/ 7T - 2 1L & & E 7 2 & 5 (Br
fi1%) /556,750,000 - R R HEH A JE
1538 M 49 519,410,000 T (=T — M
117,810,000/ 7C) e ZE—OFHF R M EE
MR —NFNA+TN\BLHERREREE
BERAFR([ERAELERE]EANEE
Wes  FARBBEREEBRIREREXEB S
BCH A A0.518I ( — B —MERKES - 3.87/8
fili) o

HERDHAX

HERDIEMAS A A14,240,0008 L (=
T — P04 16,710,000/ 7T) * & £ F @
14.78% " (EAREEWAZ1.8% (ZE—M4F:
20.89% ) HX B EBEHNFRNEEETEH
HEEE-

THEX

T 49/5108,060,000 7T ( —Z— P04
25,430,000/ 7T ) * 8 _EF1E1324.93% ©
T2 ARBIEMTAR S —AFREBERES
& # 4% 54 BB A% 4 79 2. 80,290,000 JT AT 2K ©

& R AR

Bh& A AN #9410,120,00008 7T ( —Z — P04
8,700,000/ 7T ) * 8 _EFHENN16.26% 3 A1T5
AR B A B8 hNFTES -

20 china Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited F Bt ATREZSEEEZRER A [

Annual Report 2015 F #§



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there are HK$116.8 million trade deposits paid to suppliers
for the purchase of green food products. Approximately
HK$62 million were the progress payments for the
investment targets disclosed in the section headed “Business
Prospects”under Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report. Among these progress payments, HK$29.8
million was paid to acquire Target Company 1 and HK$11.9
million was paid to acquire Target Company 2 and HK$4.3
million was paid as rental deposit in respect of the logistic
warehouse business.

ANALYSIS TO MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the sales to the top 5 customers amounted
to HK$183,614,000, representing an increase of 134.02%
from HK$78,460,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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2015 2014
—B-1% —T-mF

% to % to

Category of products HK$'000 total sales HK$'000 total sales

HAEER HREER

EmER TER MEAL THT MEDL

Sales to the largest customer Staple food 54,368 6.92 30,700 15.7
HEREPHHER B

Sales to the top 5 customers Staple food 183,614 23.37 78,460 40.1
HhAZPHHESR FRm

Our top 5 customers in the Year represented approximately
23.37% of our total revenue as compared to approximately
40.1% in 2014. Our largest customer accounted for
approximately 6.92% of our total revenue in the Year as
compared to approximately 15.7% in 2014. These changes
were mainly due to the increase in the sales of the staple
food to various customers. All of our top 5 customers are
located in southern China and are companies engaged in the
trading of food in the PRC. They are required to prepay for
the good at the agreed commercial terms. Therefore, there
was no related doubtful debts.

FAXEENRARAEFEASEEHRALY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE DM

During the Year, the purchases from the top 5 major suppliers
amounted to HK$613.3 million, representing an increase of
about 429% from HK$115,790,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014.

FA MERZTEHEINRBEAR
613,300,000 . KRB E T —NF+=A
—+—HIEFE /115,790,000 JT 3 N4
429% °

2015 2014
—2-5F —T-mF

% to total % to total

Category of products HK$'000 Purchase HK$'000 Purchase

HaRES HRRER

EmEAl TET MEAL TAT MAEDL

Purchases from the largest supplier Staple food 252,436 32.85 72,482 413
MEAHEENRER FEm

Purchases from the top 5 suppliers Staple food 613,289 79.82 115,790 66.1
MAAHEERNRER FEm

Our top 5 suppliers in the Year represented approximately
79.82% of our total purchases as compared to approximately
66.1% in 2014. Our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 32.85% of our total purchases in the Year
as compared to approximately 41.3% in 2014. The Group
had always been searching for suppliers with competitive
terms. During the Year, with the acquisition of the 50%
equity interest in SZBDH, we started the business of staple
food sales, which led to substantial increase in our Group's
turnover. The suppliers are significantly differ from previous
year. All top 5 suppliers are the suppliers of food in PRC and
the Group is required to prepay for the good.

Discontinued Operations

Since the Group has signed the sales and purchase
agreements with independent third parties for the Harbin
Disposal and the BAPP Disposal on 24 February 2014
and 26 March 2014 respectively, the Group reclassified
the entire ethanol and animal feed business segments
of the Group from subsidiaries to assets held for sale in
2014. The net liabilities directly associated with the BAPP
Disposal were classified as held for sale and were amounted
to approximately HK$17 million in 2014. The gain on
disposal from Harbin Disposal amounting to approximately
HK$204.55 million was stated in this annual report. The
Group had realized the gain from the BAPP Disposal during
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Reliance on a small number of key suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers, which accounted for
79.82% of the Group’s total purchases, are all related to the
purchases of staple food. There is no assurance that these
major suppliers shall continue to provide the staple food to us
at price acceptable to our Group. In the event that our Group
were unable to retain these suppliers, or procure replacement
suppliers, our business, results of operations, profitability and
liquidity might be adversely affected. However, the Group
has established strong business relationship with these major
suppliers. The Group has also been diversifying its business
into other industry including logistic warehouse business and
PPP Projects mentioned in the “Business Prospects” under
Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.
Therefore, it is expected that the risk of concentration on key
suppliers can be reduced in the future.

Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension
of its return period relative to the expected return or
occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable
to changes of external factors. The Group is well aware of
the importance of exploring various business opportunities
and territories on a continual basis, and has also implemented
such strategy as the top agenda of the Year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
investment assessment and due diligence procedures have
been set up and detailed analysis will be made before
approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of
the investments of our Group would be submitted to the
Board.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions originally denominated and settled in Renminbi,
of which foreign exchange risk is considered insignificant.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to certain of its bank deposits which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Renminbi
experienced certain fluctuation against Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars during the year 2015 which is
the major reason for the exchange gains recognised by the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
did not carry out any hedging activity against foreign currency
risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi may have a financial impact on
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

During the Year, the issued share capital of the Company
increased by 709,950,000 shares to 2,336,644,876 shares
due to allotment and issue of subscription shares, conversion
of convertible bonds, exercise of the subscription rights
attaching to the unlisted warrants and exercise of share
options by directors, employees and consultants of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net assets to
owners of the parent of approximately HK$1,006.85 million
(2014: HK$293.79 million). The significant increase of the
total assets was due to the increase of the investment
in the associates, investment property, available-for-sale
investments, financial assets and the loan receivable in the
money lending business. Net current assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$506.49 million (2014: HK$287.58 million). The current
ratio (calculated as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 3.78 (2014: 3.50).

The Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$363.3
million (2014: HK$79.15 million), which were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The significant increase in
cash mainly due to several subscription of shares successfully
achieved during the Year.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$118.42 million (2014:
HK$72.36 million). The Group's borrowings included bank
loans of approximately HK$105.64 million (2014: HK$61.22
million). Amounts due to related parties of approximately
HK$12.78 million (2014: HK$11.14 million). All of the
Group's borrowings were denominated in Renminbi with the
rest in Hong Kong dollars. The bank loans, other borrowings
and amounts due to related parties of approximately
HK$12.78 million (2014: HK$11.14 million) are charged at
fixed interest rates. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2015, calculated as net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus net debt, was 0%
(2014: 26.2%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

These ratios were at reasonably adequate levels as at 31
December 2015. Having considered the Group’s current
unpledged cash and cash equivalents, bank and other
borrowings, and banking facilities, the management believes
that the Group’s financial resources are sufficient for its
day-to-day operations. The Group did not use financial
instruments for financial hedging purposes during the Year.
The Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group’s results
and net assets value as the Group's consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not pledge any
assets to secure bank loans and bills payable and had no
material contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 94
(2014: 142) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounting to approximately HK$23.04 million
(2014: HK$21.34 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme aiming
to provide incentives to participants for their contribution
to the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
quality employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the
December 2015, except where otherwise stated.

“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group'’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their participation in Board
meetings bring independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process, to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The independent non-
executive directors ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered
in an objective manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interest of the
Company and that the current Board size is adequate for its
present operations.

At 31 December 2015, the Board comprised three executive
directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman), Mr. Li
Jianging (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng;
two non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Ho Wing Yan
and Ms. Zhang Yujie; and three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Li Xiaofeng and Mr. Ho
Man Fai. Biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 41 to 44 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all
time met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive directors also
represented at least one-third of the members of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and considers them to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors in particular, Dr. Loke Yu, who has
served the Board for more than nine years. Dr. Loke Yu
does not have any management role in the Company and
its subsidiaries since his appointment. He has expressed his
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and
has been giving objective views to the Company. There is no
evidence that length of tenure is having any unfavourable
influence on his independence. The Board is satisfied that,
as well proven by the valuable independent judgement
and advice given by Dr. Loke Yu over the years, Dr. Loke
Yu has the required character, integrity, independence
and experience to perform the role of an independent
non-executive director. The Board is not aware of any
circumstances that might influence Dr. Loke Yu in exercising
his independent judgement and therefore believes he is still
independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other
except as disclosed in “Directors’ and Senior Management's
Biographies” of this annual report.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by separate individuals so as to maintain an effective
segregation of duties. Mr. Jiang Jianjun is the Chairman of
the Company and provides leadership to the Board to ensure
that the Board works effectively and all important issues are
discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Li Jianging is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and is responsible for
supervising the implementation of the strategic plans of the
Group's business.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company's articles of
association, one-third of the directors, including the non-
executive directors, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting. The non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.

Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of the
Company's affairs. The most up-to-date terms of reference of
these committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has had an Audit Committee since 2001. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's
financial statements, overseeing the Group's financial
reporting and internal control procedures, and making
recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Li
Xiaofeng and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of
the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditor the audit plan, the external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii)
discuss auditing and financial reporting matters, including
the review of the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the unaudited financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2015 with
recommendations to the Board for approval; (iii) review
and make recommendations to the Board on the auditor’s
re-appointment and remuneration, and (iv) review the
Group's internal control system.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. No individual director or any of his/
her associates is involved in decisions relating to his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and two
independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ho
Man Fai. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were four
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the newly appointed directors;
(i) review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the resigning directors for their tenure of
office in 2015; and (iv) review and make recommendations to
the Board on grant of share options.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2015 are disclosed in notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors,
nominations, appointment of directors and Board succession.
The Board adopted a board diversity policy which aims to
set out the approach to achieving diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises the benefits of diversity of Board
members. The Nomination Committee selects candidates
for directorship with reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to the candidate’s
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

making recommendations to the Board on

service. The Nomination Committee considered that the
Board has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business,
with enhanced gender diversity upon the appointment of Ms.
Ho Wing Yan and Ms. Zhang Yujie to the Board during the
year. Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at
least once a year.

At 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
and two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu
and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Mr. Jiang Jianjun is the chairman of the
committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were two
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review
the structure, size and diversity of the Board; (ii) nominate
the retiring directors for re-election at the annual general
meeting held on 23 June 2015; (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors with reference to the
requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) nominate two
new directors for appointment to the Board.

The directors’ attendance at the meetings held is set out in
the section below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, there were eleven Board meetings
held by the directors, four of which were regular Board
meetings to (i) review and discuss the Group’s development
strategies, investment projects and the operational and
financial performance of the Group, and (ii) approve the
annual report for 2014 and the interim report for 2015. The
other seven Board meetings were held to consider certain ad
hoc matters. Under the code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code,
notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular board
meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. During
the year, certain regular Board meetings were convened with
less than 14 days’ notice to enable the directors to react
timely and make expeditious decision making in respect
of transactions which were of significance to the Group's
business. As a result, the aforesaid regular Board meetings
were held with a shorter notice period than required with
no objection by the directors. The Board will do its best
endeavours to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3
of the CG Code in future. In addition to Board meetings, the
Chairman of the Board met with the non-executive directors
(including the independent non-executive directors) without
the presence of the executive directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
minutes of each meeting with appropriate details, which are
available to all directors. Draft minutes are circulated to all
directors for comment and approval after the meetings within
the period permitted by the directors.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisors if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, all follow the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.

Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board

committees meetings and general meetings held during the

year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:
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SZEFHRERBERMAT

Attended/Eligible to attend

HERYGERHERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Name of directors 3t EZEgE EVZE8E8E FMZEEEeE REZE8gER RRAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) TRBRE(1E) 111 - 4/4 22 5/5
Mr. Li Jianging (Chief Executive Officer) — Z8I5 Lt (778 48%;) 1011 - - - 2/5
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR 5t & 10/11 - - - 1/5
Mr. Qu Shuncai © RIEA 4@ 27 - - - 0/3
Non-executive Directors HRTEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan ® kR Lo 8/3 - - - 33
Ms. Zhang Yujie © NEAZLO 11 - - - 0/1
Mr. Huang Qingxi © HEELLO 12 - - - o
Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#177ZE
Dr. Loke Yu S L 1011 22 414 2 2/5
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BE&xE 8/11 12 - - 1/5
Mr. Ho Man Fai XA 1mm 212 4/4 212 4/5

- The director is not a committee member
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Notes:

(a) Mr. Qu Shuncai retired as executive director of the Company
with effect from 23 June 2015.

(b) Ms. Ho Wing Yan was appointed as non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 11 April 2015.

(@) Ms. Zhang Yujie was appointed as non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 7 September 2015.

(d) Mr. Huang Qingxi resigned as non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 27 March 2015.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors,
as equal board members, should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Certain directors were unable to attend the
general meetings, as shown in the last column of the above
table, due to their other business engagements.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director is provided with an induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as to ensure
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of
his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training
they have undertaken and they are asked to provide a
training record to the Company.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the  RIEARRRGFZRE EERHBE_T—H
training that the directors received for the year ended 31 FTZRA=T—HLEFEEX Z2EJIHdm
December 2015 is summarized as follows: T

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant

Reading
materials relevant

to the business to the business
or directors’ duties or directors’ duties
SHEREKS
BEEBSC »
ERENE MEAREELDS
Name of directors BEEHR EHXE R BEERE2EH
Executive Directors HiTEH
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRELEA v
Mr. Li Jianging FRFEE v
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng LK E v
Mr. Qu Shuncai @ JENEA S @
Non-executive Directors HFHTEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan ® fA] K IR 2L £ © v v
Ms. Zhang Yujie © NERLLO v v
Mr. Huang Qingxi © mEBLAO
Independent Non-executive BIIHNITEE
Directors
Dr. Loke Yu B G MIE v/ v
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BRI 4 v
Mr. Ho Man Fai A] ST 5 A v
Notes: B 5T

(a) Mr. Qu Shuncai retired as executive director of the Company (a) BIEA EE —T—RAF A +=HER
with effect from 23 June 2015. ARRBZHITES -

(b) Ms. Ho Wing Yan was appointed as non-executive director of (b) Mz TE T —hFMA+—HBESR
the Company with effect from 11 April 2015. ERARBIZIERITES -

(0) Ms. Zhang Yujie was appointed as non-executive director of (0) IERZETE_TE—RFNALBREZT
the Company with effect from 7 September 2015. REDBIZIFERITES-

(d) Mr. Huang Qingxi resigned as non-executive director of the (d) BEEBESAE T —RAF=A_t+LHEFH
Company with effect from 27 March 2015. ERRBZIEHITES -
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Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
Mr. Qu Shuncai and Mr. Huang Qingxi, both being former
directors, had not provided a record of the training to the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, the Company confirms that the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Code and
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. It
is also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true
and fair view of the Group’s financial position on a going-
concern basis and other price-sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures. Management provides the Board
with the relevant information it needs to discharge these
responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 64 and 65 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Cheng & Cheng
Limited, including the followings:

% 4
REBEE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+T—HLEFE 2
N FARRZEMBESMERE
RARIZMEBEATEE:

Fee paid/payable

e ENER

HK$

Services rendered Fri2 RS T
Audit services ZE RS 850,000
Non-audit services IEZ AR 220,000
Total @5 1,070,000

Non-audit services refers to other reporting services related to
transactions of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests. The Board conducts regular
reviews of the Group’s internal control system. The Board
assesses the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, management
and both internal and external auditors. The Board believes
that the present internal control system is adequate and
effective.

The internal audit department follows a risk-and-control
based approach. The department performs regular financial
and operational reviews of the Group and its subsidiaries, as
well as other reviews as required. Summaries of major audit
findings and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee. The internal audit department monitors
the follow-up actions agreed upon in response to the Audit
Committee’s recommendations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider, and his primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Chai Chung
Wai, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1302B, 13/F, East Ocean
Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, or the registered office of the Company at PO. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands for the attention of the Board or Company Secretary
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company'’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address :  Unit 1302B, 13/F, East Ocean Centre,
98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Fax . (852) 2880 5398
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2015.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders and
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. The Company
regards the annual general meeting as an important event
and all directors, senior management and external auditor
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’
participation. The Company has also complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed
at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

The directors and senior management of the Company as at
the date of this report are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. JIANG lJianjun, aged 46, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in March 2013, and as the chairman
and the managing director of the Company in May 2013.
He resigned as the managing director of the Company in
March 2014. Mr. Jiang is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He has been engaged in property investment
and management since 1995. He also has experience in
distribution of wine and liquor. Mr. Jiang is concurrently a
committee member of Shenzhen Baoan District of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president
of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber of Commerce and
Shenzhen Baoan Shajing Chamber of Commerce. He is the
brother of Mr. Jiang Jiancheng, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. LI Jianging, aged 53, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in March 2014 and as
executive director of the Company in April 2014. He is
the president of Dongguan ZhiRui Industrial Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in the
operation and management of financial institutions and
banks. He graduated from Beijing School of Economics and
Management majoring in Economy Administration Specialty,
and also holds a Degree of Finance from Southwestern
University of Finance And Economics and an Executive Master
of Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. JIANG lJiancheng, aged 44, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in April 2014. He is the general
manager of Shenzhen Jiangshi Longhui Trading Limited. He
has been engaged in real estate leasing industry since 1993
and has extensive experience in marketing and management.
Mr. Jiang graduated from Department of Industrial Control
And Automation of Hefei University of Technology. Mr. Jiang
was previously a consultant of the Company from September
2010 to March 2014. He is the brother of Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
the chairman and an executive director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGREEERRE

Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 34, was appointed as non-
executive director of the Company in April 2015. She has
a Bachelor degree of Business Administration in Applied
Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University
of Hong Kong. She is an Associate Member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS") and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
She is also a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement issued
by HKICS. She is a director of BMI Listed Corporate Services
Limited. She is responsible for managing the business
operations of the company secretarial and administrative
services for the reputable listed groups in various industries.
She has extensive experience in a diversified range of
professional corporate services for Hong Kong and offshore
companies from various business sectors. She particularly
specializes in corporate governance advisory, corporate
restructuring, corporate financing and directors’ professional
development with emphasis on listed companies and she
continues to advise on these matters on a consultancy basis.
She actively participates in the formulation and execution of
strategy at the companies. She has been providing practical
professional services to companies listed on the Main Board
and the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for
over 10 years.

Ms. ZHANG Yujie, aged 53, was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company in September 2015. Ms. Zhang
holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from Heilongjiang
Commercial College* (B8IT R EFL), she is a senior
accountant. Ms. Zhang has extensive experience in corporate
management and rich expertise in financial management.
She was the accountant of a subsidiary of Jiansanjiang
Materials Department* (= T#) &z ), general manager
of Jiansanjiang Materials Department Fuels Company* (3
—IWERMEIAR]) and Jiansanjiang Crude Oil & Fuels
Company* (= T A K 2 7)) respectively, head of
finance department of Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang
Business Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd.* (8T 224t

TEESEEABREMT AT ("Heilongjiang Nongken
Beidahuang”), and deputy chief financial officer of
PetroChina & NK Fuels Co., Ltd.* (il RFETIEEAHMBR
Ad)) . Ms. Zhang is currently the deputy general manager of
Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Dr. LOKE Yu alias LOKE Hoi Lam, aged 66, was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the Company
in June 2005. Dr. Loke has over 40 years of experience in
accounting and auditing for private and public companies,
financial consultancy and corporate management. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is the
company secretary of Minth Group Limited and serves as an
independent non-executive director of V1 Group Limited,
Matrix Holdings Limited, China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited, Winfair Investment Company Limited, SCUD Group
Limited, Zhong An Real Estate Limited, Chiho-Tiande Group
Limited, Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, China
Household Holdings Limited, Mega Medical Technology
Limited (formerly known as Wing Tai Investment Holdings
Limited), Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited and China New
Energy Power Group Limited, companies currently listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LI Xiaofeng, aged 38, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2012.
He is a supervisor of the credit department of Shenzhen Rural
Commercial Bank Shajing branch. Mr. Li has been engaged in
financial services industry since 1998. Mr. Li graduated from
Department of Finance of Jinan University.

EERGREEERRE

BEBME L 665 RZEZRFNRAERE
BARABIUIFATEFT EFLIRRARR
BARM G BT IIE UBBRREEE
B EEA AR - I B BRI ERR
AREBTHEERTEMUMNERMNAETHER
BLB - RARBHE LB SR
g BRAEHMAS BEEEREERFARN
AWELRENERGE -RAFEEEERA
AR BIME  WEZFERNE AR ET
MAR (BRE-GEKEARAR XNE
SEARAR HBEEHEEEBARAR
KBEBERBRAR  REBREEERAF KK
FEBARAR BaXEBERAR  XZ
ERERERAR] PEXEEZERERAR]
EMBEMTARQAE (FIEAKTREZER
BRRAR) - R IEBEAR QR N EIHEE
BREBHEBEERAR) HEBIIFNTES

HEESAE 8 RN —F+ - AEZE
FARRRBIIFAITES - BAFRYENEY
ERITBRODBERRARADPHIZITEETERE
F-BH—NANNFES BEE—BENRESH
RIGITE - BRAEEEERNEMABEMAR -

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited FEdt AREZEEEZERER AT 43

Annual Report 2015 F #§



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGREEERRE

Mr. HO Man Fai, aged 51, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company in June 2014. He
is the chairman of California Restaurant and has extensive
experience in catering and management. Mr. Ho is a
director of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce,
a director of Hong Kong Food Science and Technology
Association Limited, a director of Yuen Long Merchants
Education Promotion Limited, a school manager of Yuen
Long Merchants Association Primary School and general
affairs officer of Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAI Chung Wai, aged 49, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. He joined the Group in May 2013. Mr. Chai
obtained his master degree of Accounting in 2004 and of
Business Administration in 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Chai has extensive experience of over 20 years in the
accounting and financial field in various listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 41 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 66 to
195.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 196. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 31 and 32
to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of the Company’s convertible bonds are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$724.2 million,
representing the share premium account of the Company
of approximately HK$1,547.4 million less the accumulated
losses as at 31 December 2015 of approximately HK$823.2
million. Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (as amended)
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 6.92% of the total sales for the year and the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for 23.37% of
the Group's total sales for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted
to approximately 32.85% of the total purchases for the year
and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
79.82% of the Group's total purchases for the year.
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None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Jianjun

Mr. Li Jianging

Mr. Jiang Jiancheng

Mr. Qu Shuncai (retired on 23 June 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ho Wing Yan (appointed on 11 April 2015)

Ms. Zhang Yujie (appointed on 7 September 2015)

Mr. Huang Qingxi (resigned on 27 March 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu

Mr. Li Xiaofeng

Mr. Ho Man Fai

Mr. Huang Qingxi resigned as non-executive director due to
his other business commitments. Mr. Qu Shuncai retired as
executive director at the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2015 as the
relevant resolution in relation to his re-election was not
passed by the shareholders at the meeting.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Li Jianging, Mr. lJiang Jiancheng and Li
Xiaofeng will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The term of office for the executive directors is
the period up to their retirement in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association. The non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 41 to 44 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company'’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

UPDATED INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information of the director is as follows:

On 24 March 2016, the Board resolved that the salary of Mr.
Jiang Jianjun, an executive director and the chairman of the
Company, will be adjusted from HK$150,000 to HK$300,000
per month with effect from 1 April 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions R-E—FE+_A=+—8 KF=RARQ
of the directors in the shares and underlying shares of the TSk EAAESEE (T & BBE REEERGEXY
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning OV IR IR (D P A RN E :}%&ﬁﬂf’j
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the &0 ([BEREAEED ) E352{EREARR
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by BYREZERLM: jzifﬁjcﬁim}ﬁﬁljﬁfﬁ—l—

EERNROREBERONERZR AR

the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as FrE TR TAEEHETBRER S 2 ZESTE
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (TSP ) BHEARAAR R #EZE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by EXAEIT :

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: REAREBRZIFR:

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BEROHE HORERNLE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company'’s
beneficially Through controlled issued share
Name of directors owned spouse corporation Total capital
EARRATF
EB BERITREAZ
EEpE ERERER ERERB ZEHEE #st O
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRELE 106,702,000 2,920,0000  173,229,5220 282,851,522 12.11
Mr. Li Jianging FRIBRE 16,970,000 - - 16,970,000 0.73
Mr. Ho Man Fai X% AE 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.04
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR ESE 250,000 - - 250,000 0.01
Mr. Li Xiaofeng REELE 250,000 - - 250,000 0.01
125,172,000 2,920,000 173,229,522 301,321,522 12.90

Notes: P &E

These 2,920,000 shares were held by Ms. Li Zhuoxun, the
spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun.

These 173,229,522 shares were held by King Wei Group
(China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei")
as to 126,629,522 shares and China Silver Investments
Development Limited (”"China Silver”) as to 46,600,000
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly owned
by Mr. Jiang lJianjun, Mr. Jiang lJianjun was deemed to be
interested in the 126,629,522 shares held by King Wei and
the 46,600,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO.

(a) £%2,920,0000 i 17 BT B E L AR BRE
L tHEH-

(b) 173,229,502t AEESEE (R E)
BREBRRARAR ([KLFE])HERER
REBRERRAA* ([ER])HAFAE
126,629,522% } 46,600,000/ ° B R4S 48 I
ERATEELE2ERA  Fit RIEF
FRHEERG  TRELEREADBIRE
B E 126,629,522 % 15 R ERF AN
46,600,000% & {7 HE B fE %R ©

* EHRES
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

Name of directors

REQRRBREZHR:

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

EEEREEZ

BEEnA BREZE
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng LR LA 10,250,000
Mr. Li Jianging FRIFEE 5,000,000
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TEFEEA 1,880,000
Dr. Loke Yu B /g AR 1E £ 750,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BRREE g A 750,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Al ek iR &+ 500,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai I3 500,000
19,630,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the directors had registered an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Bt BEEN R_E-—RF+_H
=t+— B SEEHMERA QT AR
EE 2 By AR A - EEARIRE I
B 1RPIE35216 78 T o sk - R BIRAE T RIA
HMERRA R ERSIKR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2015, the following interests in shares or
underlying shares of 5% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company were recorded in the register of interests

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESERE

FERRREMATRRO REBER G
Ay

RZE-—AF+ZA=+—H U TRARA
BB R SKARBE AR {0 5% 3 A £ RO4E
@B RBERARBRIEES KRS HHIF336

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 EmEEaERELMmR:
of the SFO:
Long positions: Ha:
Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares or the Company’s
Capacity and underlying issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
BEEBRDN EERARE#IT
e LB SO RESEME HEROHAE REZBDL
Beidahuang (HK) International Beneficial owner 330,000,000 14.12
Trade Co., Limited
IXF(BB)EBRESERRAR BEHmEAA
EREIERBRIATHEEE Interest of controlled corporation 330,000,000@ 14.12
BEREMERT]
R EE RS
BRI ATEEEFL AR Interest of controlled corporation 330,000,000@ 14.12
REHEEE S
Li Zhuoxun Beneficial owner 2,920,000 0.12
R 8 EnfBA
Interest of spouse 281,811,522® 12.06
Ao B
Able Turbo Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 109,019,737 4.67
EnEBA
Interest of controlled corporation 77,198,263 3.30
REHEEE R
Chen Hua Interest of controlled corporations 186,218,000 7.97
PR REHEE S
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Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares or the Company'’s
Capacity and underlying issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
BHEEERDN EERARE BT
wE AR SO REEME HERDHE RAEZEDL
Li Xianggen Interest of controlled corporations 186,218,000 7.97
FHR REHEE
Li Jiehong Beneficial owner 126,000 0.01
OV EnEAA
Interest of controlled corporation 130,019,220@ 5.56
REHEE RS
Sino Insight Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 130,019,220 5.56
FEREZERARRAA] EnEBA
King Wei Group (China) Investment  Beneficial owner 126,629,522 5.42

Development Limited
KEER (PEREER
BRAA

Notes:

(a) These 330,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang (HK) (a)

International Trade Co., Limited, which was wholly owned
by BEIRZEBIATHEEBEFREMLARF which in
turn was wholly owned by 2g/Tb KFTREBEEEA N A].
Accordingly, each of BEEIRZBILATHESEERAT
AAE and BEIIATRBEE B AT was deemed to
be interested in the 330,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang
(HK) International Trade Co., Limited by virtue of the SFO.

5%330,000,0008% i% 15 B 4L K7 (B8 ) B
BZERARFE AR (BB BABRES
ERAFAREIRBIEATEHEEEEGR
EERREEHE MERIRELARY
BEBEBEREFATABEIILANEREE
B R2EREE A REFFLBE
1&H - BRI RBI AN ESEBRER
NE M EETIEAREEBEERDREHR
BRIERNR (BEIERESEBRAREE
2.330,000,000/% f% 17 A 5 #E 25 o
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These 281,811,522 shares and underlying shares were held
by Mr. lJiang lJianjun (“Mr. lJiang”), the spouse of Ms. Li
Zhuoxun, as to 106,702,000 shares and 1,880,000 share
options, King Wei Group (China) Investment Development
Limited (“King Wei"”) as to 126,629,522 shares and China
Silver Investments Development Limited (“China Silver”) as
to 46,600,000 shares. As King Wei and China Silver were
wholly owned by Mr. Jiang, Mr. Jiang was deemed to be
interested in the 126,629,522 shares held by King Wei and
the 46,600,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO. Accordingly, Ms. Li Zhuoxun was deemed
to be interested in the shares held by Mr. Jiang, King Wei and
China Silver by virtue of SFO.

These 77,198,263 shares were held by China Food and
Beverage Group Limited (“China Food"), which was wholly
owned by Able Turbo Enterprises Limited (“Able Turbo”).
Accordingly, Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in the
77,198,263 shares held by China Food by virtue of the SFO.

These 186,218,000 shares were held by Able Turbo as to
109,019,737 shares and China Food as to 77,198,263
shares. As China Food was wholly owned by Able Turbo,
Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in the 77,198,263
shares held by China Food by virtue of the SFO. As Able
Turbo was 60.31% owned by Mr. Chen Hua and 39.69%
owned by Mr. Li Xianggen, each of Mr. Chen Hua and Mr. Li
Xianggen was deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Able Turbo and China Food by virtue of SFO.

These 130,019,220 shares were held by Sino Insight
Holdings Limited, which was wholly owned by Mr. Li Jiehong.
Accordingly, Mr. Li Jiehong was deemed to be interested in
the 130,019,220 shares held by Sino Insight Holdings Limited
by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

(b) £2281,811,522/0% B8 15 R ABRBA R (D AT EE
S (NIkE] ARFSHLLTHERB)EE
106,702,0000% f% 15 %.1,880,00015 B f% # -
KEEE (FEREZERBR AR (4
42| ) PEH126,629,522/% B 1 K ZE IR £ B4R
BERAMR AR ([#FER] ) H46,600,000
RS - AR ERAT AL 2 ERE
Et - BIBEFHRAEGRD I aERRAED
R R 48 575 #9126,629,522 8 A% 17 K ZE R 45
B #946,600,000/% I 10 FE B #E S o BUL - AR
BEFRBERD REgZ T WEART
TE BERERBZENRODTEEER -

(© #%77,198,263/ i th P Bl B fh m &
BERAR([FEEMDEBEA MAER
&4 B Able Turbo Enterprises Limited ([ Able
Turbo )2 & MBIt BIEFHFLHE
&4 - Able Turbo# R AR T B R BIFAEH
77,198,263 I th R HE T M 5

(d) £2186,218,000/% i 13 A Able Turbof &
109,019,737 P Bl R m 5 H77,198,263
% o R Bl R FhF Able Turbo2 B A » I
RIEEA RIS R - Able Turbo¥ iR AR
PRI A 77,198,263 I 15 /R 7 A 1
% o A Able TurboRFRE £ E#H60.31%
SR ARZEAIR I EHEB39.69% M - IR
BEHRIBEGD  REEERTMBLE
ZBEWE B Able TurboMFEIE RIFAR
R PR L -

(e) 5%130,019,22008 B9 R ER IR A IR A 7)1
B ZARRAERNBEALEER - HIL 1R
EREEREEG ERBEEWEARE
I E R A A A RY130,019,220 A% 15
HaEER-

B EXPAEEIN R-T—RAFt+ _A=+—
B BEEFRAL (BARRERI HENE
mE N X [EERED MR s &
B —ER) R AR B A1) SR ARRE A 1) B
BERIEES LB RIIE3361GA T ELHE

Az py
A

* EHRES
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and

rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company'’s
share options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options

fB IR T &
ARRIRA—ABRETE ([ZAt8l])  B&
RAEERBEESAKEMERERRFES D
fREARSEN R H B M IRE - &t 8l 2
—HH BRI RRM EI2WE -

TRBBENRITENAR T BAIRE

BREHE
Date of
Name or At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of
category of 1 January during during during  31December  share Exercise period of ~ Exercise price of
participant 2015 the year the year the year 2015 options® share options share options®
R=ZB-1% R-B-1% ERE BRE
SREBZAER -A-H ERRL ERfTeE ERXM tZA=t-B EBUHBHY BREGED gy
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
Bz
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 50,000 - (50,000) - - 23714 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
TRERAE 50,000 - - - 50,000  23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 915,000 - - 915,000  24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 457,500 - - 457,500 24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 457,500 - - 457,500 24-7-15 24-7-17-23-7-18 2.060
100,000 1,830,000 (50,000) - 1,880,000
Mr. Li Jianging 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
FRERE 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 23714 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000  24-7-15 24-7-17-23-7-18 2.060
10,000,000 5,000,000 (10,000,000) - 5,000,000
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng 250,000 - (250,000) - - 23714 23-7-14 - 22-7-16 0.754
TEREE 250,000 - - - 250,000  23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000  24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 24-7-15 24-7-17 - 23-7-18 2.060
500,000 10,000,000 (250,000) - 10,250,000
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Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
Name or At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of
category of 1 January during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of ~ Exercise price of
participant 2015 the year the year the year 2015  options® share options share options®
R=2-1% R-B-1% ERE BRE
SRENEZAR -A-H FRRH ERfTl FR%XR TZAZt-B RHBEHY  BREGEH @Y
HKS per share
BRET
Ms. Ho Wing Yan = 250,000 S S 250,000  24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
fmEL - 125,000 - - 125000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
= 125,000 S - 125,000  24-7-15 24-7-17 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 500,000 - - 500,000
Dr. Loke Yu 50,000 = (50,000) = - 264-10 26-4-12 - 25-4-15 0.730
EEnEL 50,000 - (50,000) - - 13910 13-9-12-12:9-15 0.830
250,000 - (250,000) - - 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
250,000 - - - 250,000  23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 250,000 - - 250,000 24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 125,000 - - 125,000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 125,000 - - 125,000  24-7-15 24-7-17-23-7-18 2.060
600,000 500,000 (350,000) - 750,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng 250,000 - (250,000) - - 23714 23-7-14 - 22-1-16 0.754
REkrt 250,000 - - - 250,000 23714 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 250,000 - - 250,000 24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 125,000 - - 125000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 125,000 - - 125,000  24-7-15 24-7-17 - 23-7-18 2.060
500,000 500,000 (250,000) - 750,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai 250,000 - (250,000) - - 23714 23-7-14 - 22-1-16 0.754
sEEE 250,000 - (250,000) - - 23714 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 250,000 - - 250,000  24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 125,000 - - 125000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 125,000 - - 125000  24-7-15 24-7-17-23-7-18 2.060
500,000 500,000 (500,000) - 500,000
12,200,000 18,830,000 (11,400,000) - 19,630,000
Ex-directors®
gﬁggm
Mr. Qu Shuncai 2,250,000 - - (2,250,000) - 13910 13-9-12 - 12915 0.830
BIEA %45 250,000 - - (250,000) - 23714 23-7-14 - 22-1-16 0.754
250,000 - - (250,000) - 23714 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
2,750,000 - - (2,750,000) -
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Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
Name or At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of
category of 1 January during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of  Exercise price of
participant 2015 the year the year the year 2015 options® share options share options®
R=2-1% R-Z-1% ERE BRE
SRENEZAE -A-H FRRH ERfTlE FR%XR TZA=t-B RHBHY  BREGTEH g
HKS per share
BRET
Mr. Huang Qingxi 250,000 = (250,000) = - 23714 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
ERELE 250,000 - - (250,000) - 23714 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
500,000 = (250,000) (250,000) =
3,250,000 - (250,000) (3,000,000) -
Other employees
HfbES
In aggregate 6,500,000 - (6,500,000 - - 31-10-12 31-10-14 - 30-10-17 0.694
a% 2,500,000 - (1,500,000) - 1,000,000  23-7-14 23-7-14 - 22-7-16 0.754
2,500,000 - (250,000) (250,000) 2,000,000  23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 2,050,000 - - 2,050,000  24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 1,025,000 - - 1,025,000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 1,025,000 - - 1,025,000  24-7-15 24-7-17 - 23-7-18 2.060
11,500,000 4,100,000 (8,250,000) (250,000) 7,100,000
Consultants
il
In aggregate 2,750,000 - (2,750,000) - - 13910 13-9-12-12:9-15 0.830
B 30,250,000 - (25,750,000) - 4,500,000  23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
30,250,000 - (13,750,000) - 16,500,000  23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 85,000,000 - - 85,000,000  24-7-15 24-7-15-23-7-18 2.060
- 42,500,000 - - 42,500,000  24-7-15 24-7-16 - 23-7-18 2.060
- 42,500,000 - - 42,500,000  24-7-15 24-7-17-23-7-18 2.060
63,250,000 170,000,000 (42,250,000) - 191,000,000
90,200,000 192,930,000 (62,150,000) (3,250,000) 217,730,000
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a

(f)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Mr. Qu Shuncai retired as an executive director of the
Company on 23 June 2015 and Mr. Huang Qingxi resigned
as a non-executive director of the Company on 27 March
2015. According to the Scheme, the share options granted
to them may be exercised within three months from the date
of their respective retirement and resignation as director of
the Company.

The closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted
during the year was HK$2.040 per share.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options

were exercised during the year was HK$3.54 per share.

No share option was cancelled during the year.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the year, calculated by using the binomial
option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:
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FRRTT IR AR D R =E -

(a

(f)

BRENBRBESARROABEERTEY
Fa R LE

BRREITEE A A RS A BT A AR
PR AR A SN BB TR S

BIEAREER-_Z—HFA-+T=HAER
EARARRATEEREEELRACR -F
—RHEZAZTEHABEARRBERITE
= RIBZFT B R T IR B 0 B AU AT K
EXBERERBERARFEFEAR=EH
MATHE

FRZEERERDE BRARRKRD T
B AER2.0405 7T

FREEBREETEE ARARARD N
BFHUHERERI S4BT

FRA B -

ERCEFFAMREBRERNE L ERER
HzEBE(ER-BEAMEEERILAH)

Number of Theoretical

options granted value of

Grantees during the year share options
FRRE

AERA BREZE BREZRER

HK$

AT
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TETELA 1,830,000 1,545,156
Mr. Li Jianging FRFRE 5,000,000 4,221,738
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng JL3EERK St 10,000,000 8,443,477
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Ak IR &+ 500,000 422,174
Dr. Loke Yu P g Mg L 500,000 422,174
Mr. Li Xiaofeng RIS A 500,000 422,174
Mr. Ho Man Fai A SIS A 500,000 422,174
Other employees EfiEE 4,100,000 3,461,826
Consultants = 170,000,000 143,539,107
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The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted
method of valuing options. The significant assumptions used
in the calculation of the values of the share options are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements. The measurement
dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on
which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number
of assumptions of the expected future performance input
to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model
itself. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables
used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of
an option.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the directors or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in note 37
to the financial statements.

During the Year, the Group's bank loan of HK$54,910,000
(2014: HK$61,216,000) was secured by properties held by
Linxianghuayin Properties Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (FRMEZEREBEFINE LR BMRAA]), a related party of
the Group, and guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng, directors of the Group, Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Ningxia West Bright
New Resource Technology Company Limited, Harbin China
Distillery Company Limited and the Company.

The second bank loan of HK12,534,000 was secured by
properties held by Wang Tong, an independent third party,
and guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, an executive director,
the chairman and a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Mrs. Li Shuoxun, spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Shenzhen
Bokanghua Industrial Co., Limited CFRIITTIEREEEXEGRA
A]), an independent third party.

“HEAEEERESEHEAEIART
oA EBREEERERNENRRIRNHY
BRI E32 A EAEREANAEEHR
RoEREZBH-

X EMRBRLNAEMARRRREGABEBRROTE
MR EEEARBR S ZETRERSIE
2 FER-_AEARLGENBREEERDSE
TEXRG -BETETEBRRKNEETAESH
REEBE TR - Frie M2 Er T2 L nl sE
BAVEMGFTELEEATE-

R EXPRIREESN  MEANEMERE  EAIESHL
REE B BRI T\ R F R ERER
BBUIB AR R REFEEUN zm IR
BEIEITEEMBREN: AR r] B[
B8~ R R S AR B BB EE ARG
TAEMEABEN B REER -

FEXDFBERM B MR EI7THE -

FRAEEAIRTTE 54,910,000 L (=
—PO4F : 61,216,000/ 7T ) AR AHEER B IR E
BRAERAR (ARENBEEAT)ABEEN
MEERR YHASEESTETELART
BERGE BRHEREEREERBRAA
BERBAEMERSFBMBRAF] BR
BEREBEERA A RARNGEER-

¥ - HE 12,534,000 THBLE=T
Wang TongFi# 2 M VER I - WA R RIE
TESFS FRLFERRIZELRE IEE
EEZEBRISH LT RBIE=FRYITE
REBZXBERRAEE R

58 china Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited F Bt ATREZSEEEZRER A [

Annual Report 2015 F #



Besides, during the Year, the Group paid HK$671,000
as rental to Guangzhou Tian Tian Friendship Co., Ltd.
("Guangzhou Tian Tian”) for the warehouse services in the
PRC. The Group also paid HK$207,000 as rental to Shenzhen
Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Jianlai”) for 2 office premises in
the PRC.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun (an executive director, the chairman and
a substantial shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng (an executive director of the Company) are
directors of Guangzhou Tian Tian.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng are shareholders of
Jianlai.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the above
four agreements were continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules.
since these continuing connected transactions were de
minimis transactions, they were exempted from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

However,

Set out below is information in relation to connected
transactions which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements and are required under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules to be included in this annual report.

On 13 May 2015, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (“Framework Agreement”) with Heilongjiang
Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd
(the “Supplier”) and its subsidiaries (the “Supplier Group”)
in relation to the supply of green and organic food products
including but not limited to corn, cooking oil, and cereals
and oils. The Supplier is the holding company of Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd. which is a substantial shareholder of
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution Limited (a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company). Thus, the
Supplier Group is a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Listing Rules.
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EEEHE

Annual review of continuing connected transaction

The proposed annual cap for transactions contemplated
under the Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB576,000,000 as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2015.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

b) on normal commercial terms; and

Q) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor, Cheng & Cheng Limited, has been
engaged to report on the continuing connected transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor
has confirmed the above continuing connected transactions
as follows:

1. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company'’s board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;
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3. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above
have exceeded the annual cap made by the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2015, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

AUDITOR

Cheng & Cheng Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
Cheng & Cheng Limited as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Warrants
Subscription, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement for the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and maintaining a high standard
of corporate social governance essential for creating a
framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating
a sustainable return to the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark
as well as the individual performance of employees. Share
options are provided to retain loyal employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to different levels of success.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills which includes seminars and workshops, updates on
regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY
The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the
Group. The Group complies with environmental legislation,
encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental protection awareness to all employees of the
Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to participating in community events
from time to time, and to the improvement of community
well-being and social services. The Group supports and
encourages staff to actively participate in a wide range of
charitable events outside working hours, to raise awareness
and concern for the community, and to inspire more people
to take part in serving the community.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior
management are delegated with the continuing responsibility
to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant
legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Jianjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wom & w OMOF OB A W A H

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To the members of CHINA BEIDAHUANG INDUSTRY
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
CHINA BEIDAHUANG INDUSTRY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 66 to 195, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015, and of the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi
Practising Certificate number P05540

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREREMEEBAREK

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE—ZT—hE+_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FExT FAT
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Revenue WA 5 785,700 80,004
Cost of sales fHE AN (775,079) (68,901)
Gross profit E A 10,621 11,103
Other income and gains E e A Uz 5 99,612 4,957
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R HHR X (14,236) (16,714)
Administrative expenses ITHHEX (108,057) (25,433)
Loss from operation w e E R (12,060) (26,087)
Finance costs Bl E kAN 7 (10,115) (8,700)
Share of profit of associates Sa(ap: RN b 2,113 5,138
Loss on fair value change on derivative $T4£ & EEE A FEE
financial assets 2 B8 - (12,147)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBATZ
Was (&) 34(ii) 624 (40)
Loss before tax MR EE 6 (19,438) (41,836)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fris® (A &% 10 (22,421) 16
Loss from continuing operations RERKEXBEBE (41,859) (41,820)
Discontinued operations ISR
Profit from discontinued operations, RIEREET
net of tax A (BRBLE) 25 56,751 142,879
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N E 5 F 14,892 101,059
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hih2mE (F518) WA
ltems that may be reclassified Hignge B o RS
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2IER :
Release of exchange differences upon & K& A &) B [0
disposal of subsidiaries bE W =58 (5,339) (38,124)
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEBEE 2
translation of foreign operations bE =58 (44,643) 555
Total comprehensive (loss)/income $$F£E (B#E) WA
for the year 4azE (35,090) 63,490
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERakEMEZEBARE

Year ended 31 December 2015
£y e T AR - =i

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FExT FAET
Profit attributable to: T AR F) -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE/ PN 19,412 117,810
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B (4,520) (16,751)
14,892 101,059
Total comprehensive (loss)/income T3 EEEME
attributable to: (BE), WA B8
Owners of the parent [SY/NEIEZFE PN (30,170) 80,530
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (4,920) (17,040)
(35,090) 63,490
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AR EBEREREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY (R ERAEF, (EE) (Restated)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (&=5))

Basic and diluted
From continuing and discontinued
operations
From continuing operations

KEFEN
RIEEEXR

12

HK0.51 cents fl| HK3.87 cents &l
HK(0.98) cents il HK(1.32) cents i1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BN &
31 December 2015
TR S5 A - Sk S S

Annual Report 2015 F #

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB NEE 13 66,761 15,715
Investment property KEME 14 88,370 -
Financial assets at fair value through FHRBERRATE
profit or loss FIRRM SR & E 15 76,252 -
Loan receivable JEIE 16 13,700 =
Goodwill EES 17 3,169 =
Other intangible assets HEMEREE 18 2,271 2,522
Interests in associates REE N F) 2 B 19 276,276 84,577
Total non-current assets FnBEELE 526,799 102,814
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 28,676 35,389
Trade receivables EUE 5 BRE R 21 11,835 8,925
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - EE R
receivables H {th e U 5008 22 205,852 238,994
Due from non-controlling shareholders & U fff &8 /A 7] JE#5 A%
of subsidiaries I R FIE 14,100 -
Due from related parties FE U REsE N LRI 37(0) 41,346 15,271
Loan receivables JEUE 16 23,305 -
Derivative financial instruments THEEMIT A 23 = 7,745
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReFEY 24 363,300 79,150
688,414 385,474
Assets of disposal groups classified DHERFBEHEZ
as held for sale HEMRRIZEE 25 = 17,191
Total current assets MENEERE 688,414 402,665
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FETE 5 BR K 26 5,708 9,211
Other payables and accruals EMmENRIARETER 27 57,500 9,248
Interest-bearing bank and other RITREAMETEEE
borrowings 28 105,643 61,216
Due to related parties FETRAE A T3R8 37(c) 12,781 11,136
Tax payable FET 18 288 5,371
181,920 96,182
Liabilities directly associated with HEYBRRFELEEZ
the assets classified as held for sale EEEEREEH 2 A8E 25 = 18,899
Total current liabilities nE B EAT 181,920 115,081
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFR 506,494 287,584
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MM &R

31 December 2015
s — Al e (|

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FET FATT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERTBESE
LIABILITIES 1,033,293 390,398
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 29 21,495 89
Convertible bonds Al R A1 5 30 = 92,406
Total non-current liabilities FEREBBERTE 21,495 92,495
Net assets BEFE 1,011,798 297,903
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEAEBGESR
the parent
Issued capital BB TR A 31 233,664 162,669
Reserves i 773,188 131,119
1,006,852 293,788
Non-controlling interests FEER R 4,946 4,115
Total equity R B R 1,011,798 297,903
Jiang Jianjun IRE Jiang Jiancheng TR
Director = Director EZH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEEEgEHR

Year ended 31 December 2015

cyalee T e e ey Sl W 4

Attributable to owners of the parent

SATREARE
Share Share  Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond Warrant Merger  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
TR ARER EXkE
BRTRA  ROEEER  BRERE RERE #E ABRE E 2iER Mt FERER | $::

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 T TR TR TR TR TR TR TEL TiEn T Tin

At 1 January 2014 W=F-NmE-A-R 119,516 718,569 19.950 - - (535) 40,340 (939,029) (41,189) (17,253) (58,442)
Profit{loss) for the year FEER/ (BB) - - - - - - - 117,810 117810 (16,751) 101,059
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ FE L 2E

for the year: WA/ (B8)
Release of exchange differences upon 11 £ BA B EE

disposal of subsidiaries EXEE - - - - - - (38,124) - (38,124) - (38,124)
Exchange differences on translation ~ EFHEBEL L

of foreign operations EXEE - - - - - - 844 - 844 (289) 555

Total comprehensive incomelfloss)  FE2EMA/ (BiE)

for the year L - - - - - - (37,280) 117,810 80,530 (17,040) 63,490
Issue of convertible bonds BOMARES 30 - - - 19,968 - - - - 19968 - 19968
Issue of share by allotment BRREMEARG 2 40,103 170,093 - - - - - - 210,19 - 210,196
Exercise of share option fERE 3,050 31,762 (13.131) - - - - - 21,681 - 21,681
Disposal of subsidiary LEHBAR - - - - - - - - - 38408 38,408
Equity-settled share option gL ERRERE

arrangements 3 - - 2,757 - - - - - 2,757 - 2,757
Transfer of share option reserve upon 7 BB B 1 5K A

the lapse of share options ERRERRER - - (155) - - - - - (15) - (15)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-RE

+ZA=t+-8 162,669 920,424* 9421 19,968* - (535) 3,060 (821,219 293,788 4115 297,903
At 1 January 2015 w-%-15-5-A 162,669 920,424 9421 19,968 = (535) 3,060 (821,219 293,788 4115 297,903
Profit{loss) for the year FEEH/ (B8) - - - - - - - 19412 19412 (4,520) 14,892
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ FEEH2E
for the year: WA/ (E8)
Release of exchange differences upon &M B R A EE

disposal of subsidiaries EiEE - - - - = = (5,339) - (5,339) - (5,339)
Exchange differences on translation ~ REFSEHELZ

of foreign operations 331 - - - = = = (44,243) o (44,243) (400) (44,683)

Total comprehensive incomelfloss) ~ FE2EMRA/ (#518)

for the year B8 = - - - - - (49,582) 19412 (30,170) (4,920) (35,090)
Conversion of convertible bonds RARThRES 30 12,800 88,943 - (19,968) - - - - 81,775 - 81,775
Issue of share by allotment BERREMETRG 3 33,980 372,709 - - - - - - 406,689 - 406,689
Bxercise of share option fIERE 6,215 55,480 (15,012) - - - - - 46,683 - 46,683
Issue of warrants EORRER - - - - 1,800 - - - 1800 - 1800

Exercise of warrants AERhEE 18,000 109,800 - - (1,800) - - - 126,000 - 126,000
Acquisition of subsidiary WEHELR - - - - - - - - - 5751 5751
Equity-settled share option bt tiv s
arrangements 3 - - 80,287 - = - - - 80,287 - 80,287
Transfer of share option reserve upon 7 BB B 5K 3
the lapse of share options BEREREER - - (1,449) - - - - 1,449 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1E
+ZA=t-A 233,664 1,547,356 73.47* = = (535)* (46,522)* (800,358)* 1,006,852 4,946 1,011,798
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * DEESEEASNEARBRRNE Y&
773,188,000 (2014: HK$131,119,000) in the consolidated &% 1#773,188,0008 L (ZZF — M4 :
statement of financial position. 131,119,000 7% °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F-RET-A=t+—RIEE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
L FTExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHELENRESHRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax iRl (B51B) 5 A
From continuing operations KEFEREETR (19,438) (41,836)
From a discontinued operations RE IR ER 56,751 142,879
Adjustments for: AT
Finance costs & B A 7 7,091 19,634
Share of profit of associates pak sy AN (2,113) (5,138)
Bank interest income RITFB U A 5 (105) (69)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEWE BEX&
property, plant and equipment REEE Z
(Wzs) /18 6 (18) 61
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z FkE 34 (57,480) (204,510)
Depreciation e 13 4,797 17,481
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEf L AH & B 5H
payments 195 896
Amortisation of other intangible assets  E b #2 2 & = # §5 18 145 341
Amortisation of deferred income R E A 3R - (511)
Fair value change on derivative MTEESRMEE
financial assets NEEE 23 = 12,147
Fair value change on investment KEWMEZ
properties NEEEE) 14 (53,299) -
Fair value change on FHRBEmEATE
financial assets at fair value IR EmEEZ
through profit or loss NEEE (34,592) -
Imputed interest HEFE 7 3,024 2,882
Provision for inventories FERE 6 = 1,077
Reversal of provision for inventories FEREHED 6 (315) -
Equity-settled share option expense PR 45 B R AR R B S 32 80,287 2,602
(15,070) (52,064)
Decrease in inventories FERD 7,965 65,117
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables JEURE FEEX
(&), m (2,635) 3,494
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FERFIE e Rk
deposits and other receivables H fth fE Y kI8
WA, () 29,888 (159,978)
Decrease in trade payables JERTE 5 RFB D (3.541) (35,931)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hih M RIENMETE R
and accruals #an, O ) 34,987 (33,114)
Cash from/(used in) operations KRS,
(FrAHE 51,594 (212,476)
Tax paid [RENE TR (5,176) =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE—ZT—RE+_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b7 FET FET

Net cash flows from/(used in) KRS, (FTA)

operating activities REMEFHE 46,418 (212,476)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELENRERE

ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received B HBERTTF B 105 69
Purchases of items of property, WEWE WELEZEEE

plant and equipment (69,583) (301)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - KERREER

property, plant and equipment PSR I8 31 2
Purchases of investment property HEIREYMHE (24,385) =
Purchases of financial assets HEERBEREAFE

at fair value through profit or loss TR REE (41,660) =
Loans to customers MEFREER (37,005) -
Net cash outflow arising on WERBAREE Y

acquisition of a subsidiary W& FEE (2,439) -
Net proceeds from disposal of HEM B R RIFTE

subsidiaries PQIEpER- 34 50,640 54,804
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition Y B# B & 2 ] &= L£ A9

of associates WE M FEE (237,427) -
Capital contribution to a subsidiary by FE4% A% #2517 — R

a non-controlling interests MEBARNEE 5,945 -
Decrease in pledged deposit 2R EROR - 7,784
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due FEU (FEfT)BBE AL

from/(to) related parties KB (M) R (24,430) 3,983
Decrease/(increase) in advances to B T N B FR0E

associates 2R, (M) 47,445 (73,355)
Net cash flows used in investing wEEEA

activities HeREFHE (332,763) (7,014)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BRETHELENRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FTS 5B 32 406,689 210,196
Proceeds from issue of BT R E S FTS FUE

convertible bonds - 89,600
Proceeds from exercise of ITIE BB HEFT 1S 3K 08

shares options 46,683 21,681
Proceed from issue of warrants BEITRIRHERE FTS F0E 127,800 .
New bank and other borrowings BRI REMESR 105,643 127,429
Repayment of bank and BERRITREAMEE

other borrowings (61,216) (132,426)
Decrease in amounts FELTRAE A LA Z R

due to related parties - (7,543)
Decrease in bills payable FERTEH 2R - (19,460)
Interest paid BFE (12,997) (19,634)
Net cash flows from financing activities @& & B Fr 15

e me 58 612,602 269,843
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2015

BHE_T-—HF+A=1+—HILEFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FHET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBeSEYIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS HBE 326,257 50,353
Cash and cash equivalents FYNBRe LB 2SEY
at beginning of year 79,167 28,316
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEE[E R B 5o 2 FE
changes, net (42,124) 498
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRORERREEZEY
AT END OF YEAR 363,300 79,167
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HE&RRESZSEWE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS il
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RirE M BIRRERZES 2
in the consolidated statement of ReRREEEY
financial position 24 363,300 79,150
Cash and cash equivalents attributable IERREEBREGRE R
to a discontinued operation SEEY 25 - 17
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RiEeHeREREINZ
in the consolidated statement of ReRREEEY
cash flows 363,300 79,167
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEM T

31 December 2015

rEmesRest = 1—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered address of the Company is PO.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Unit 1302B, 13/F, East Ocean Centre, 98
Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
41 to the financial statements.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments are stated at their fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

2.1

REEH
PEIIAREXREEZERERAAR
—HEREHETMKIZBR AT
AR aEl ik APO. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands - HE B2 ¥ 20 AFEE

BRSOV IE INE B Z B I8R R B
V131813028 °

ARa B —BREERAR EHEA
AN EZEBH NP EREKM T4 -

mREE
HEREMBRR VBB E SR
g([2rasfmagl) BN EERM
BHREER ([HAPBREER]) (8
AN BERELER FEGTE
A (T&BGER]) 2R FER
REtRAINEEFBERAUEIINEERE
mEMK -BETERIANEATE
FIBRIN - 1t S5 B 7% R TR IR S AR
EmEL XWIAB TR M =B TSR
B RBBESNEIAEREOILZ
FhIE-

REEE

REMBRREBARFLENE QR
([ AEEDBRE_FT—AF+=
A=+—BUEFENMBEHRR -WEQ
7 B 5 i 3k 1 FR R B R B K R I AR A -
WA BRBER - MWEBRARNE
BEWBEES (AREEREGES#ZEZ
B)EFEAIIR T#EFEIIKR BE
2RI BIE-FAAERBAREIRE
ZHEB R EEARBIBERZEL
ZARBRAB LR EBHREGEAKREAZE
B -

—BMEL AN AR ABESBER
SRR S - BV R R A 8 -

74 china Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited F Bt ATREZSEEEZRER A [

Annual Report 2015 F#§



2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied a number

of new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that

are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that

begins on or after 1 January 2015:

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs
has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1

2.2

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HE M

31 December 2015
AR S — - F
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not early adopted the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

23 CEEMEERERNEBUBERSE

# g

AEBE AP HRANUTERME R
ERZHE RBERT R AN B RERE

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments HKFRS 11

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exemption'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'
Financial Instruments?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Al :

BAMBREER
SCHENS)

BRI ENE R
(BETA)
BRI RN E 165
RERGER
£38% (B3 4)
BRI RN E 165
RER G
EXALAC HES)
BRI ENER
CHES
BB BRE R
R
AR FE 285
C-HES,
BN BIRE LR
F105% BB B
EERENRR
BRI
£28%5 (BFTK)
%/%57&&#&13 J
F11% (BFTA)
BRI BREER
F95

BN BREER
£14%

BRI EREER
F15%

—E-—EE-T-NE
BER BB REER

pA: 34
RERR
BRAUTRXZAER

HEH

BE:EEMEY

BUBBHRET 2
i

REERHBENAH
BEREZRNHESR
EANEE

WBEEERERL
SRR

SRTA?

EEELRP

REEFANZBAN

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined

' R-T—RFE—A— B ZEHRBD
FREUABEAE

2 RZE-NF—-A—BRZEFAIEH
FEHRE £

’ i3 AN 7 R 58 il A2 2 B B
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2.3

24

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards and is not yet in a position
to state whether they will have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Company has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Company and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flow
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

2.3

24

Bt 75 R AR B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HE M

31 December 2015
S S —

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)
The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's consolidated statement of profit or loss to
the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company'’s investments in subsidiaries that are not
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests, that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.
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24

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after re-assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognize
any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

Bt 75 R AR B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEM T

31 December 2015

24

80

—FHFE+—HB=+—8~

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal,
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case

and is determined for an

the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FTESHTHBEHEME (8)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties RAE A+
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: FR—F B TE R  EIRAKRKER
WEAEAL:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that (a)

person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the (b)
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vij  the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3%-5%

6%-32%

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 33%

10%-25%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Technologies

Purchased technologies are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 30
years.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Distribution rights

Distribution rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over the term of the distribution agreement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations

() Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition.
A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group
and the company are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations (continued)

(1)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Impairment losses on initial classification as held
for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement
while held for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above) if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” (“FTVTPL"), available for sale and
loans and receivables as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on
a different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which is managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis according to a
documented management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the profit or
loss in financial costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills
and other payables, amounts due to related parties,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the profit or loss.
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SR 5 — 1—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity and compound instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An entity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible bonds) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity and compound instruments (continued)

The conversion upon classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as
a whole. This is recognized and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognized in equity will be transferred
to share premium. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bond, the balance recognized in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognized directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortized over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the
date of the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The resulting profit
or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the contracts are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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SR 5 — 1—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

U when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(0 Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease; and

(d) other income not stated above is recognised
whenever received or receivable.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the operations of the Group. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 32 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of accumulated losses within
the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or transaction of monetary items are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of subsidiaries in Mainland
China is Renminbi (“RMB”). As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2015 was HK$3,169,000 (2014: Nil) was
arising from acquisition of a subsidiary during the year.
Further details are presented in note 17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate
of the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment. The recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. No impairment of property,
plant and equipment (2014: Nil) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2015 was HK$66,761,000 (2014:
HK$15,715,000). Further details are presented in note
13.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets other than goodwill. This estimate is based on
the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset or the
contractual or other legal rights associated with the
assets. The Group will revise the amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
where the useful life is different to that previously
estimated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Equity-settled share option expense

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-
settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted, using assumptions including expected
volatility, dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate.
Such cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Provision for other receivables

Provision for other receivables is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of other receivables
and the timing of their recovery. The identification of
provision for other receivables requires management
judgement and estimation. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying amounts of other receivables and the amount
of provision/reversal of provision in the periods in
which such estimates have been changed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques and making
assumptions that are based on market condition’s
existing at each reporting date. Refer to Note 40 for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Control over subsidiaries

The Company controlled over certain entities of which
the majority, but less than or equal to 50% of the
total equity interests. The Company holds majority
of members in the board of directors which is the
governing body of these companies and therefore
has the power to direct the relevant activities of these
companies, and is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from the involvement with the investee, and
has the ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has six reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@  the ethanol segment is engaged in the
production and sale of ethanol products
and ethanol by-products (this segment was
classified as discontinued operations);

(b)  the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor;

(o) the sales of green food products segment is
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of staple
food, cooking oil, alcohol and beverage, frozen
and fresh food manufactured by Heilongjiang
Beidahuang Agribusiness Group Corporation;

(d)  the animal feed segment is engaged in the
production and sale of forages;

(e) the logistic warehouse segment is engaged in
the leasing of logistic facilities in Hong Kong;
and

(f) the money lending segment is engaged in the
provision of money leading services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
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4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 45EER (&)
Management monitors the results of the Group's EEERVERNEEBRKL B %
operating segments separately for the purpose of B UAEHBEBE RSB NEKRIRTHZ
making decisions about resources allocation and RE D HERIB BB SRENDEES
performance assessment. Segment performance T L o D REEE T ERUANER
is evaluated based on reportable segment results. BEBAHE M= A 2 A Fﬂﬁﬁ
Segment results are measured consistently with the RARBE G CETHBRATNBEE R
Group's profit before tax except that interest income, HEo

finance costs as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and SBEETECEBES BE LT
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office SEBEYREMMRPBERATLDESR
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a E TEHRZEEENEBRAEEE
group basis. o

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and DEABTEERITREMTEEE
other borrowings, amounts due to related parties and FERTRRE A T30 R E M AR DAL 4E S0 &
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities TPEAE TTHRZEEAEUNERAE
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. HEETR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |
4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., RBELEEE (8F)

Sales of
Wineand  green food Animal Logistic Money  Continuing Discontinued
liqour products feed  warehouse lending  operations  operations Total
HE BARE KB
ER BERE BYEH NRER HE % % &zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TEx TER TER TER TER TER TER

Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-E-1F

+=B=t-8
LFE
Segment revenue: AEMA:
Sales to external customers HETHREP 46,690 721,291 - 9,526 2,193 785,700 - 785,700
Other revenue Hinlis 48,759 48,795 - - 1,108 98,662 256 98,918
95,449 776,086 - 9,526 3,301 884,362 256 884,618
Segment results FREE 26,585 58,730 - (5,689) 1,480 81,106 (105) 81,001
Reconcillation: Bk
Interest income FISHA 105 - 105
Unallocated other operating income & 2 2 £ A4\ 845 - 845
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBASRAX
expenses (92,003) - (92,003)
Finance costs RERA (10,115) - (10,115)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARRZ
(note 34) W (HizE34) 624 56,856 57,480
(Loss)profit before tax BEa (B8) /57 (19,438) 56,751 37,313
Income tax expenses FBHEY (22,421) = (22,421)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(F8) /& (41,859) 56,751 14,892
Segment assets FEREE 400,060 433,846 - 52,715 228310 1,114,931 - 1,114,931
Reconciliation: Bk
Elimination of intersegment AR ERER
receivables (68,201) - (68,201)
Corporate and other PEREMRAREE
unallocated assets 168,483 - 168,483
Total assets AEBE 1,215,213 - 1215213
Segment liabilities 2REfH 110,488 149,533 - 7,198 463 267,682 - 267,682
Reconcillation: -
Elimination of intersegment payables i $4 7 B & 508 (68,201) - (68,201)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAARERE
liabilities 3,934 - 3,934
Total liabilities Yt 203,415 - 203,415
Other segment information Hitp &N
Share of profit of associates A EREET 2,113 - 2,113
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZKE 624 56,856 57,480
Reversal of provision for inventories A EI77 & &fE 315 - 315
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 4,942 - 4,942
Interests in associates N VNG PR 276,276 - 276,276
Capital expenditure* BARY 93,968 - 93,968
Fair value gain on financial assets ~ BBBERATE
at fair value through profitorloss ~ FIREISBEAE L
ATEKE 36,076 - 36,076
Valuation gain on investment REME 2 kERE
properties 53,299 - 53,299
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
S "
4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RBELEEPR (F)

Wine and Animal Continuing ~ Discontinued
liquor feed operations operations Total
HELE BiHge
ik Elkkate 5% % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THT THL TR FET
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-z-mE+=A
=t-ALEE
Segment revenue: DEMA:
Sales to external customers HEFHAEP 80,004 - 80,004 115,256 195,260
Other revenue Hitlzs 4,891 - 4,891 12,525 17,416
84,895 - 84,895 127,781 212,676
Segment results PEEE (9,816) (72) (9,888) (47,858) (57,746)
Reconciliation: k-
Interest income FISWA 66 3 69
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % R E R EH % (23,274) - (23,274)
Finance costs BEKA (8,700) (13,816) (22,516)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR L (FE)

(note 34) /W (MiEE34) (40) 204,550 204,510
(Loss)/profit before tax BRAA (BR) B F (41,836) 142,879 101,043
Income tax credit FERER 16 - 16
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B#B) /&7 (41,820) 142,879 101,059
Segment assets PEEE 500,501 14,253 514,754 17,191 531,945
Reconciliation: B
Elimination of intersegment receivables  # # Ja R K 5R B (35,775) - (35,775)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ EREMANEEE 9,309 - 9,309
Total assets BEHE 488,288 17,191 505,479
Segment liabilities 2EEE 128,560 56 128,616 18,899 147,515
Reconciliation: Hi-

Elimination of intersegment payables WD EEENE (35,775) - (35,775)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities % R E %% ﬁiﬁ 95,836 - 95,836
Total liabilities BEEE 188,677 18,899 207,576
Other segment information HitpBER
Share of profit of associates AEHEE D AR 5,138 - 5,138
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARZ (BE)

/g (40) 204,550 204,510
Provision for inventories FERE 1,077 - 1,077
Depreciation and amortisation HER#EH 1,772 16,946 18,718
Interests in associates KBS N F 2 84,577 _ 84,577
Capital expenditure* BARRX* 301 33 334
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BABEYBEREYE HMERRE

plant and equipment and investment property. RITEYE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

Over 90% of the Group's customers are located in
Mainland China and revenue of the Group is mainly
derived from operations in Mainland China. The
management considers that it is impracticable to
allocate the assets, revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.

Information about a major customer

During the year, there was no external customer
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue of continuing operations (2014: Nil). No
revenue from discontinued operations during the year
(2014: HK$30,700,000) was derived from sales to a
single customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts; the gross
rental income from logistic warehouse and subleasing
fee income, net of business tax and income from loan
receivable during the year.

4,

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
— A5t - A=4+"H
ReEsBER (&)
HEER
REEO%IA EHREFPAINF Ilﬁiﬂz'
REERAFEREFEAMALE
BB RERREMEESEE KA
ROBREETI AT

TEEFZER
#$¢Fm'ﬁﬁ%ﬁ§ﬁﬁ$%sﬁ
BEREEBKBAI0%KIAE (=
—mi-ﬁ%im*%twgiﬁmﬂ
WARBRAE-—FFPHHEE (ZT—NW
£ 130,700,000/ 7T ) °

WA~ Bt A R W58
WATEIAEENZXE HHEEMm
MBEREEFE K REERENE
SN FAXREDRRFEOESKA

Ko B ALLE (k= EH R ER
ERMBA) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R SRR MY R

31 December 2015
e R s = 1o

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

5. WA -HMBRARWKE (&)

WA B A RIS DT

follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
Continuing operations HEKEEK
Revenue ON
Sale of goods HEBM 773,981 80,004
Rental income e WA 9,526 =
Interest income RN 2,193 =
785,700 80,004
Other income and gains Halg A & =
Compensation income wEWA 1,668 -
Exchange gain PE W Uz 1,108 -
Fair value gain on financial assets BBBFIRAFENER
at fair value through profit or loss EREEZAFERR 36,076 -
Interest income 2 WA 105 66
Rental income el A 72 -
Reversal of provision of Inventories BoEFERE 315 -
Royalty income FEErREWA 564 -
Valuation gains on investment KREWEZ HENR
properties 53,299 -
Others Ht 6,405 4,891
99,612 4,957
Discontinued operations HWIEREEKR
Revenue A
Sale of goods HEEY = 115,256
Other income and gains Ha AR W=
Amortisation of deferred income #EH IR AU A 256 511
Government grants* BT f Bl * = 11,230
Interest income F 2 WA = 3
Others Hip = 784
256 12,528
* The government grants represent the subsidies * BT e AN EER IR R N EHR T ¥

received by the Group from the local government
for environmental protection and the transformation
of new patterns of industrialisation. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants.

116 china Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited FE It ATREZSEEEZRER AT
Annual Report 2015 F #§

SRR 1 26 0 B P19 B » 3
AR B R SRR A
o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

LOSS BEFORE TAX
The Group'’s loss before tax is
(crediting):

arrived at after charging/

6. KRBIAIEE

ARENRTBTEBRLHR, (GFA)T

SR REAERL

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FTET FHIT
Continuing operations BERKEER
Cost of inventories sold BEFERKAR 763,119 67,824
Depreciation e 13 4,797 1,625
Amortisation of other Huh 8 E
intangible assets 18 145 147
Minimum lease payments T REFRERE
under operating leases HTIHHEBSITR
in respect of land and
buildings 7,409 6,151
Auditor’s remuneration Z BRI 2 1,070 1,120
Employee benefit expense B BEFIF X
(including directors’ (BEEFNe) :
emoluments):
Wages and salaries T& N 11,804 12,597
Equity-settled share option A% 45 B BEARAE R 2
expense 80,287 2,602
Pension scheme contributions R K& 51845k 1,071 933
93,162 16,132
Other expenses: Himx:
Loss on fair value change on TS @MEE A VA
derivative financial assets oD o) SF =] 23 = 12,174
Foreign exchange HNEE E REFHE
differences, net (1,108) -
Provision for inventories* FEBRE = 1,077
Reversal of provision BoEFEERE
for inventories (315) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEME BE X
items of property, plant REEEZ
and equipment (Wz),E1E (18) 14
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HERBARZ
subsidiaries (Wz) /B8 34(ii) (624) 40
Interest income MEMKA (105) (66)
Fair value gain on financial BB EBE=IEAFE
assets at fair value through BRI & R E E
profit or loss 2N EW (36,076) =
Valuation gain on KEMHE 2 HERE
investment properties 14 (53,299) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
e R s = 1o

6.  LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. KRBAIEE (E)
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Discontinued operations  #& 1E & & #£5K
Cost of inventories sold EEFEHNKAE = 147,850
Depreciation e 13 - 15,856
Amortisation of prepaid land B £ it FH & # 4
lease payments - 896
Amortisation of other Hth 28 E o
intangible assets 195 194
Employee benefit expense & B @ FIBI
(including directors’ (RRESFME) :
emoluments):
Wages and salaries T& K - 4,073
Pension scheme contributions iE k& 5+ 2|t 3% - 1,132
- 5,205

Loss on disposal of items HEWE - BER

of property, plant and RBIEEB 2 BB
equipment = 47
Gain on disposal of HERBRRZ
subsidiaries Weas 34(i) (56,856) (204,550)
Interest income FEHKA - 3)
* The provision for inventories for the year is included * AKEEGFEREBTAGEEREEEM
in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of 2EWARE Z [HEKKR] A

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015

s — Al e |

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERK
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest on bank loans and /,\EAEEW%%IE-\EE’HETT
other loans wholly repayable ERKEMEROFE
within five years 7,091 5,818
Imputed financial cost on IR E S 2 B TE R E KA
convertible bond 3,024 2,882
10,115 8,700
Discontinued operations RIEREEK
Interest on bank loans and ARAFANBEEENIRIT
other loans wholly repayable ERREMEFTNFE
within five years - 3,429
Interest on trade payables B E 5B ZNE - 10,387
- 13,816
8.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEHM

RIEE L QARG FE383(NIE KR A A

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section

383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (BEEENEER) AROIE 2B HE 2
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information EEHOT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Fees e 1,741 1,452
Other emoluments: E e :
Salaries, allowances and e RMREYA G
benefits in kind 462 -
Equity-settled share option expense W% EEERER 9,071 269
Pension scheme contributions RIREFFEIHR 18 17
9,551 286
11,292 1,738
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R SRR MY R

31 December 2015
e R s = 1o

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. BEEHM(E)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIkHTES
2015 2014

Equity-settled Equity-settled

share option share option
Fees expense Total Fees expense Total

RELE RS
we BRERX @zt we  BRERX &t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik ThARL ThRT TER TEL TEL TEL
Dr. Loke Yu BEMEL 100 380 480 100 10 110
Mr. Ho Man Fai AXEEE 50 380 430 28 10 38
M. Li Xiaofeng PEELE 50 380 430 50 10 60
Mr. Zhang Yonggen  RAKIREE 0] - - - 45 - 45
200 1,140 1,340 223 30 253
(i) Resigned on 13 June 2014. 0) RZE—EFSA+=HE

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during

the year (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEEM(F)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERIHITES
directors
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense  contributions remuneration
528 RELH RikEHE
ne REWAE R % 230 Pt o]
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M TAR TAR TER FET FET
2015 —§-1f
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng IRREE 440 - 3312 - 3,752
Mr, Jiang Jianjun IREEE 480 462 608 18 1,568
Mr. Li Jianging FRELE 440 - 3,536 - 3,976
Mr. Qu Shuncai JBIEA %4 (i) 50 = 9% = 146
1,410 462 7,552 18 9,442
Non-executive director: ~ FEH{TEE:
Mr. Huang Qingxi EFBEAE (i) 24 - 96 = 120
Ms. Ho Wing Yan kL (iv) 75 = 283 = 358
Ms. Zhang Yujie NEARLL (v) 32 - - = 32
131 - 379 - 510
1,541 462 7,931 18 9,952
2014 “E-mE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng IRREE 253 - 10 - 263
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRERE 360 - 2 17 379
Mr. Li Jianging FRELE 253 - 207 - 460
Mr. Qu Shuncai RIBT %4 (i 100 - 10 - 110
Mr. Song Shaohua ROELYE (ii) 163 - - - 163
1,129 - 229 17 1,375
Non-executive director:  FFHI{TES:
Mr. Huang Qingxi ERFELE (i) 100 - 10 - 110
1,229 - 239 17 1,485
Note: These represent the estimated fair value of At : ZEHBIEREARANAIRE
share options granted to the directors under REREEt 235 T EE IR
the Company's share option scheme. The e A o XSRS
value of these share options is measured EEBEMF2AMSAER
according to the Group's accounting policies EBEUBEODABEWM ZIHR
for share-based payment transactions as set S HESE HEEY
out in note 2.4. The details of these benefits MzeEE (BEF BIER L E
in kind, including the principal terms and HERESE BREREES
number of options granted, are disclosed REBI R — R M
under the paragraph share option scheme in 320

the report of the directors and note 32.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
S TG - e s =

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. BEEHM(E)
(b)  Executive directors and non-executive (b) HMITEZERIHTEE (E)
directors (continued)
Notes: B EE

(i) Retired on 23 June 2015.

(ii) Resigned on 13 June 2014.

(iii) Resigned on 27 March 2015.

(iv) Appointed on 11 April 2015.

(v) Appointed on 7 September 2015.

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. HEEEHES
The five highest paid employees during the year FR TEEEHEERE=%(_2%
include three (2014: two) directors, details of whose —PUE WG EE HFEMFES DT
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of N EYHEFS - RAEERN  HEMREZ
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (—E—ME: =Z)BRaHFES (WIk
(2014: three), highest paid employees who are not a AATEE) ZHMEBWOT -

director of the Company, are as follows:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Salaries, allowances and e RUEREYH R

benefits in kind 3,172 831
Equity-settled share option expense R 45 BB AR R 7 2 7,739 830
Pension scheme contributions RIRBETEIHE R 86 35
10,997 1,696
The number of non-director and highest paid MeENF Ty SBEZZSHIEFESES

employees whose remuneration fell within the ZEMT:

following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EE"AR
2015 2014
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7C 21,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T = -
Over HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T A £ = -
2 3
During the year and in prior years, share options AREERARNEFE ETHRSHIEE
were granted to certain non-director, highest paid HEREMBEERAEEEL 2 REME
employees in respect of their services to the Group, REMRE B —FHBARU B RERN
further details of which are included in the disclosures 32 oM EBEEHANES A B NEM
in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value FHRAHRXERNERE  EATE
of such options, which has been recognised in the RELBHET st ARFETERE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other NeESA LI GEHFIFEEREENS
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was WEEEAN-

determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015

rEmesRes = 1—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 10.
During the year, no Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided as there was no assessable profit arising from
Hong Kong (2014: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax

FE#mx (E&)

FA- mﬁélﬂﬁiaﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
B - BB BB RSB EHRRE (=
—PO5F - f]) - e ﬁ%m/ﬁuzwg
B A B EEMT B A E AT X

prevailing in the Mainland China in which the Group HEo
operates.
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current BN ER 93
Deferred PRI 22,328 (16)
Total tax expenses/(credit) for the year AFEFIBFS (K% ) B5E 22,421 (16)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable
to loss before tax at the statutory rate for Hong
Kong in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax rate,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as

KAEB (AR REWEB AR FM
) EEREEARBRB A BEMNTIE
Fx, (%) BIRERREENTIE
BRER  URERAHRE (AEEHE)
HERBEHERNT

follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Continuing operations RELEED
Loss before tax K B jEs 48 (19,438) (41,836)
Tax at the statutory tax rate RETEMEFTENTIE (3.207) (6,903)
Effect of different tax rates of WERRTRR RN EE
subsidiaries 24,163 3,763
Expenses not deductible for tax AT H0E B B 32 1,478 4,321
Tax losses not recognised RERHNIEEE 515 88
Profit attributable to an associate Bt 2 N @) B 48 a8 ) (528) (1,285)
Tax expenses/(credit) at the Group's BAEEEBRHMETENTIE
effective rate X,/ (%) 22,421 (16)
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11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
—2-HEF+-A=t+8

INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (continued) 10. Fr8HiAx% (E&) (&)
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Discontinued operations BRI BT
Profit before tax B A5 A& A 56,751 142,879
Tax at the statutory tax rate BETEHEGFTENBIE 9,364 23,575
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARITRBENZE
subsidiaries (7,591) 12,147
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 05 B B 32 (1,773) 237
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARMBANT B E - (51,138)
Tax losses not recognised AR IEE B - 15,179
Tax expense at the Group's BEAEEERMEGFAENHIE
effective rate 53 - -
The share of tax attributable to an associate G B & R A FE {5 B TE /3528,000/% 7T
amounting to HK$528,000 (2014: HK$1,285,000) — T4 ¢ 1,285,000 7T ) B i AL
is included in “Share of profit of associates” in the eERREMEERARSE 2 [ D1
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ERELEA] BT -

comprehensive income.

DIVIDENDS 1. BE

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any EETEEMBE_ZT £¢+ A
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: ST —BEFERNE@MRE (ZF
Nil). —POEF ) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
e R s = 1o

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. ERERAN(FEE)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing FRREREBER], (E1E) TR D mARAE
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of BAEAEESH (BE)BAERND
the Company by the weighted average number of TEBERZNMELEHEAE - WBEAFEE
ordinary shares in issue during the year. The weighted ZE B IEE I —E— N E
average number of ordinary shares for both years — A+ HRKZ A ITIEL TR o
are adjusted for bonus issue completed on 7 January
2016.
For continuing and discontinued operations HEREEBRARIEREEK
2015 2014
(Restated)
(ge&:7)
Profit attributable to the equity RATIRERA AERET
holders of the Company (HK$'000) (F&7L) 19,412 117,810
Weighted average number of BEITEBRZ INEFHE
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (Fr) 3,801,032 3,046,970
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FAREARZF GB) 0.51 3.87
For continuing operations HEREER
2015 2014
(Restated)
(ge=:5)
Profit attributable to the equity RNRRIIRAEFEB AEAE 3 F
holders of the Company (HK$'000) (F&T) 19,412 117,810
Add: Profit attributable to the equity Al : AR AIAXAEE B AFEN
holders of the Company RERIEREEE 2
from discontinued operations vt A
(HK$'000) (F#E&mT) (56,751) (158,057)
Loss attributable to the equity RAmRERAEAEGRE
holders of the Company from REREEE BB
continuing operations (HK$'000) (F%&x) (37,339) (40,247)
Weighted average number of EBITEER . NEFHE
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (Fr) 3,801,032 3,046,970
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BREXRERE (B) (0.98) (1.32)
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12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 12. BREF(FH#E) (&)
For discontinued operations R
Basic earnings per share FRELXZF
2015 2014
(Restated)
(RE5)
Profit attributable to the equity RNRRIREFRE ARG
holders of the Company from R S S VA
discontinued operations (HK$'000) (F#&T) 56,751 158,057
Weighted average number of BT L BRME T
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (FR) 3,801,032 3,046,970
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREXRZEF (FL) 1.49 5.19
No diluted earnings/(loss) per share has been BARFATED ETEHEBEELTBR N
presented for the years ended 31 December 2015 and RARERITEBERENTEESHA
31 December 2014 as there was no dilutive potential NEIRODEFEARFHEME QAL LSS
ordinary share outstanding during the year and the HE_Z—hAF+-_A=+—BK=ZF
exercise price of the Company’s outstanding share —OF+ZA=+—HLEFENTRE
options was higher than the average market price for SERF,(BE) -

the Company'’s share during the year.
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B R SRR MY R

31 December 2015
S e [~ o ]

13.

128

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥Y¥E- -BERXRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings fixtures vehicles in progress Total
HE
MELE -
BF BRR#E RE REIR @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TER TET
31 December 2015 “Z-EF+-A=t-H
At 1 January 2015: RZE-A%—-A—-R:
Cost AR 18,871 11,061 1,726 - 31,658
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (4,579) (10,380) (984) - (15,943)
Net carrying amount REFE 14,292 681 742 - 15,715
At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated R-E—HF-A—H"
depreciation and impairment Nk EFMERRE 14,292 681 742 = 15,715
Additions NE - 45,761 1,142 22,680 69,583
Disposals HE - (13) - - (13)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) WE—-MHERAR
(PE33) - 17 2 - 38
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—FEHBEAR
(FI3¥34) - (293) - - (293)
Depreciation provided during the year FNFHEITE (811) (3,674) (312) - (4,797)
Transfer to investment property HERTRENE (13,430) - - - (13,430)
Exchange realignment EH A (51) 21 (12) - (42)
At 31 December 2015, net of accumulated W=ZE—H%F
depreciation and impairment +-A=+—8"
Mk R4 E RRAE - 42,500 1,581 22,680 66,761
At 31 December 2015: RZT—H%F
+ZA=+—8:
Cost AR - 47,070 2,921 22,680 72,671
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment - (4,570) (1,340) - (5,910)
Net carrying amount REFE - 42,500 1,581 22,680 66,761
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥E-HERXE (F)
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and Motor
Buildings fixtures vehicles Total
HE
MEEE
BF GBRREE AE @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TEL FE
31 December 2014 Z®2-WE+=A=1+-8H
At 1 January 2014: RZZE-MF—-A—F:
Cost A 19,214 13,259 1,484 33,957
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (3,835) (10,463) (677) (14,975)
Net carrying amount FEFE 15,379 2,796 807 18,982
At 1 January 2014, net of R-E—-N&E—A—H8"
accumulated depreciation and MK RFAMERRE
impairment 15,379 2,796 807 18,982
Additions NE - 47 254 301
Disposals HE - (16) - (16)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FIBLAR - (1,614) - (1,614)
Depreciation provided during the year FRHEH & (819) (489) 317) (1,625)
Exchange realignment [ Ji % (268) (43) ) (313)
At 31 December 2014, net of RZE—NF
accumulated depreciation and +-A=z+—-8”"
impairment Nk 2T ERRE 14,292 681 742 15,715
At 31 December 2014: RZE—DF
+-A=+-8:
Cost N 18,871 11,061 1,726 31,658
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (4,579) (10,380) (984) (15,943)
Net carrying amount REFE 14,292 681 742 15,715
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015

A S — - F
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REWE
HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE AFE
Addition NE 24,385
Transfer from property, SR/ ER VY
plant and property (note 13) (FF3E13) 13,430
Valuation gain on arising from NTHEEHEELDN
changes in fair value ERERE 53,299
Exchange realignment ME W R (2,744)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-—AF+-HA=+—H 88,370
At 31 December 2015, the fair value of the Group's R-_TE—RF+_A=+—8" *ETJ%?‘W
investment properties of HK$88,370,000 (2014: Nil) NHEETtHWEHEMGMBEERA
were arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried (BEAEBTEBENBILISER i%
out by FIITEETLTHEMEBEERA HEM B EEXERRELRH
an independent qualified professional valuers not R R E B T H G ELR) T
connected with the Group, which has appropriate WHEERNASEEREMEN R TE
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation 7%88,370,000/8 7T (ZZE— 4 : &) -
of similar properties in the relevant locations.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, highest AT EZ AFTER MENEAH
and best use of the properties is their current use. BREZSREKERSE-
All the investment properties is situated in the EEHEEMEAURTE  ZEHRH
PRC under medium lease term to long-term lease HELHE-
arrangement.
15.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15. ZEBBEZRAFEIIRNERERE

PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RAE+-_A=1+—0 FEiBE
comprise: BEATEIEN e REERE:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Fair value: NFEE:
Securities held for trading FIEEERBRZES
— listed in PRC —RAPEET 70,403 -
— unlisted in PRC —AREARET 5,849 -
76,252 -
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15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

One of the securities that the Group held as at
31 December 2015 was EF[L {7 (000936.52),
which was principally engaged in the investment
fund management and incorporated in the PRC.
The Company acquired 3,430,000 shares of ZEF
f& 17 which represents 0.39% of the total equity
interests as at 31 December 2015. The market
value of the securities as at 31 December 2015 was
HK$56,994,000. No dividend was received from ZE g
f& 153 during the year. According to the latest publied
financial statements of FEFMK (D, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$3,503 million.

Another security that the Group held as at 31
December 2015 was K& E (000090.5Z), which
was principally engaged in the subcontraction of
construction business and incorporated in the PRC.
The Company acquired 660,000 shares of Xf&
£ B which represents 0.08% of the total equity
interests as at 31 December 2015. The market
value of the securities as at 31 December 2015 was
HK$13,409,000. No dividend was received from K&
£ 8 during the year. According to the latest publied
financial statements of XL, it had net assets
value of approximately HK$7,399 million.

All of the listed securities is acquired from an
independent third party, and total consideration was
satisfied by cash settlement of RMB30,000,000.

Apart from the above, the Group also held 4,900,000
shares in B MM & FTEEBMR A A (@ Company
incorporated in the PRC in which the stock are not
publicly transacted) as at 31 December 2015. E&
WM& ZWEAFR QA is principally engaged in
the exploration and mining of lead and zinc. The
acquisition cost of the shares was RMB4,900,000. No
dividend was received from B & B E B R A 7
during the year.

15.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |
EBBERRATEIERNERHEE
(%)
AEER-ZT—RAF+-A=+—H#H
EWESH 2 — BEARM’(000936.52)
HIBNEREESEEI AP RTM
K -R_F—AF+-_A=+—H 'K
A AYEE3,430,000% 2 70 AL D HO A 1D
M4 ER039% RN T —RHF+ =
A=+—H#&E% ™ EAR56,994,000
BIL-RAFE WREEBERBRGH
% B, o AR 1R 2 P AR 1 & BT T B A B 7S 3R
- B ¥ H & EFE#93,503,000,0007

o

)

S

REBW -_ZE—RAF+_A=+—
BHE AN —BFHFAXEEE
(000090.5Z) " HF EWRENBEETRE
EBWHRABEEMKL - R —RF
+ZRA=+—H &2 a 4660000
ERBEBD  (HRIREN0.08% °
R-E—RAF+-A=+—HBHFEHFM
8 /13,409,000 L AR AN FE - WK
BEXBEENRE BERXEEER
T BENMGHRE EEBEEFED
7,399,000,0007% JT °

FMELMELSTIE - RBUFE=T
W RERERERSENARS
30,000,0007T{E f °

Br EXCFratEIN AEER T —hHF
TZA=+T—BARBERATERE
¥BRAR (—ERFPRFMEZHA
A HBREIRAFRZH) 4,900,000
B MM EeRmEEERATEZY
E TR B IR M PR o AR 19 B9 LB B AR
A AR #4,900,0007T e IR ANE - I K
BEBRAMEREXBRAAMRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
e R s = 1o

16. LOAN RECEIVABLES 16. EWER
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Current: BIER :

Loan to customers BEISNEEN 37,005 =
Less: non-current portion ek JEBNEAER 7 (13,700) L
23,305 -

During 2015, the group has entered 2 loan agreements:

(i) On 23 August 2015, one of the subsidiary of
the group, Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
Financing Lease Company Limited, entered into
a loan agreement with an independent third
party, to provide loan in a principal amount of
approximately RMB21,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$25,067,700), which carries
interest at 5% per annum and repayable on 3
years.

(i) On 13 November 2015, one of the subsidiary
of the group, Shenzhen Pengda Rongtong
Trading Limited, entered into a loan agreement
with an independent third party, to provide
loan in a principal amount of approximately
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,937,000), which carries interest at 2.5%
per annum and repayable within six months.

As at 31 December 2015, the loan receivables were all
neither past due nor impaired.

The loan receivables outstanding as at 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil) are denominated in Renminbi.

AEER _ZE-RFITLMMDERB

2 .
xR -

i)y RZE—REFNA=+=B'X&
SEEA R B R FIRYITA
HRRERERERR AR EE
MNEZFENERBE  BHEHAR
£ R4 AR B21,000,0007T (%
7 4925,067,7007 7T ) ME K+ 1%
FRES%TBERAR=FEE-

iy HZZT—AF+—A+=H'&
EEEA—RHEMBARENTE
ERBANEARAREBILE
=HAIMER RS RERESE
# A R %10,000,0007T (Z R4
11,937,000/ 7T ) R E K - L FF|
K2 5% ERARNEARE

;Eo

R-T—REF+-_A=1T—H BKE
FIGBE AR 8 HI IR AR ORLAE ©

HMABEZRERKRERRN _T—HF =
A=Z+—AUAREFE(ZZE—XO
FE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

GOODWILL 17. ™E
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
At 1 January: wn—A—8:
Cost DEN 71,557 71,557
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (71,557) (71,089)
Net carrying amount FREEF5E - 468
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—B2ZKA Ik
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — M B A A 3,322 -
Disposal of subsidiaries k=) NG| - (467)
Exchange realignment PE W% (153) (1)
Cost and net carrying amount Rt A=+—B2ZEAER
at 31 December FREEFRE 3,169 -
At 31 December: R+=ZA=+—8:
Cost DN 74,726 71,557
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (71,557) (71,557)
Net carrying amount BREEFRR 3,169 -
Impairment testing of goodwill B8 2R E R
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has BREKEHRB HBEIREHE
been allocated to the sales of green food products HERMBSEDSBMAERERR -

cash-generating unit for impairment testing.
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B HEME

31 December 2015

S

17.

18.

GOODWILL (continued) 17. BE(8)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) BERERE (8)
The recoverable amount has been determined ke ZEIEESREE B E 7R
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow ENFEH BB BEEEARS RETER
projections based on financial budgets covering a five- RERAEESEmMETE - ERARRSR
year period approved by senior management. The S8 7B K 515.0% M@ A E
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 7R RENEAERERSY% T AHE
15.0% and cash flows beyond the five-year period SH o
were extrapolated using a growth rate of 5%.
Other key assumptions for value in use calculation BEEEAEEASEZEMTIERER I
related to the estimation of cash inflows which include RIS R ARG EBERENEERE
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation TR FREGt D ERBARBELER
is based on past performance and management’s BHIEM{EE -
expectations.
No impairment loss (2014: Nil) was recognised and VWEFBEEEBRAANEE G5B RE
allocated to goodwill in the consolidated statement of MEEWRARKRERLSRERE (=
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the T—PU4F ;) o
year.
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HtuEE&EE
Distribution
Technologies Trademarks rights Total
Rl BE DHE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
31 December 2015 ZE-T1F
+=A=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of RZE-—HF—A—H
accumulated amortisation and B Mk 25
impairment B TR E - 2,522 - 2,522
Amortisation provided during the year 4 Py 84 {5 - (145) - (145)
Exchange realignment I 5 % - (106) - (106)
At 31 December 2015 RZT—1%F
+=ZA=1+-H - 2,271 - 2,271
At 31 December 2015: RZZE—hEF
+-A=+—-8:
Cost A 165,503 2,984 53,066 221,553
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEHERAE
impairment (165,503) (713) (53,066) (219,282)
Net carrying amount FEEZSE - 2,271 - 2,271
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18.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

18. HtEFEE (&)

Distribution
Technologies Trademarks rights Total
il [ 7 I FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL FTEL FAT
31 December 2014 —E-NF
+=ZR=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of R-Z—-NF—A—H
accumulated amortisation and RO 0Bk R 5T
impairment BRI E 2,620 = 2,620
Amortisation provided during the year 4 /%) 8 84 & (147) = (147)
Exchange realignment ERIECES 49 - 49
At 31 December 2014 RZE—LF
+-RA=+-H 2,522 - 2,522
At 31 December 2014: RZZ—NF
+-A=+—-1:
Cost XA 3,123 56,542 225,168
Accumulated amortisation and 2T AELRE
impairment (601) (56,542) (222,646)
Net carrying amount RHESSE 2,522 - 2,522

Amortisation of other intangible assets amounting to
HK$145,000 have been recognised as an expenses in
the period, within the ‘administration expenses’ line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets
Technologies

The Group directed most of its resources to the
development of the Group’s ethanol business and
wine and liquor business, the development of the
Group’s animal feed business was hindered. As there
is no projected revenue for the animal feed business,
the technologies have been fully impaired with an
impairment loss of HK$69,972,000 recognised in
2012.

H b 1 & = # $5145,00008 7T 2 4R
clEFEAEMEERBARED [17HFH
T IETNERABHARS -

HthBEEE ZRERR

-3
AEBRARKIHERERAEEN
CEEEBRBBEER AEEB YR
EXNERIFIAER - AR B EAR 2
BUYEBHRA BR_T——F#F
78 2 17 2 B R R (B 5 1569,972,0007%

ﬁo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015

19.

On 22 January 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into the JV Agreement with
a limited company incorporated in the PRC to form
a new company, Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
E-Commerce Company Limited (“Shenzhen
E-Commerce”), formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan E-Commerce Company Limited, to
be principally engaged in E-commerce business in
Qianhai area in the PRC. The wholly-owned subsidiary
contributed RMB60,000,000, representing 30% of
the total registered capital of Shenzhen E-Commerce.
Shenzhen E-Commerce became an associate of the
Group.

Shenzhen E-Commerce has acquired the interests
of Shenzhen Dahuangyuan International Trading
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Dahuangyuan”),
Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan Non-Financing
Guarantee Company Limited (“Shenzhen Non-
Financing”) and Heilongjiang Dahuangyuan
E-Commerce Company Limited (“Heilongjiang
E-Commerce”) which were newly set up. All the above
companies are owned by Shenzhen E-Commerce as at
31 December 2015.

On 22 December 2015, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the JV
Agreement with a limited company incorporated
in the PRC to form a new company on a 49:51
basis, Shenzhen Pengrongan Logistics Industrial Park
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Pengrongan”), to be
principally engaged in logistic business in Shenzhen.
The indirect wholly-owned subsidiary contributed
RMB102,900,000, representing 49% of the total
registered capital of Shenzhen Pengrongan. Shenzhen
Pengrongan became an associate of the Group.

o S S =

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AR N T > RS
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Share of net assets TIREEFE 247,587 8,513
Advances to associates EA N NG O] 28,689 76,064
276,276 84,577

NRZBE—RE—A-_+=-B X 72
FEWB ARG HE—FER P BEEMRKZE
EEQTTi Etpak A —REFT

AR MBENE ARG E TEBEERA
E(“W%%ﬁﬁn(ﬁm/Wmﬁm

BEFEHBERAR)  EHEFNEESE
%%*%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘£§W% AL E
AR #60,000,0007T ' HE R EYIE
T E A ﬁZ%% wIEFE
A=Y /Nl

RIYINE T 7 7% B UEE R T RS 4 B B
T%ﬁ@ & (DRYIRFE&]) ORI
AR RGIERMEMRRERAR ([F
W#@ﬁﬂ&%ﬁik%@%%ﬁ%ﬁ

AR([BEIETEE]) (FEL
Eﬁ AVAA/NG DIV ok N s
+ZA=+—8 B LARRARHYER
INEFEFEHESR-

RZE—RAF+_A=+=H &R
ZEEE2ERBARE— ﬁﬁ#lﬁﬁ
XA 2 BIRARIRT LA & sk - 1249:51
s 4111 vl S EINCIV S iy o Erd )
REEXRBRAR (DEIIEERZ]) =
%E%W%%%ﬁ%%oﬁ%%ﬁ%%
NEIHE ARK102,900,0007T » HHE
w%ﬂyﬁﬁﬁﬁw%2@% w=
%ﬂﬁ%%$EIZWA”
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEmERMEE
31 December 2015
= — s e | |
REE QAR 2R (F)
BE_ZT—NFILFE MENES
AR B ERERERBEEBRAR
([ ) RFYIMERSDTIRE
ZERABRQB ([FEREDTDHAR
EE - HEETEREERNBRAR
(AEETE]) B YUE A M e s
NERS DT AMKM NG AAREE
TERE - RZ2E—OF+_A=+—
H MEFEHERRAPEETENS
BB AT -

+

REE

S ZHE AT (FELET) 28
an

-

Ny

< N

B

Percentage of
ownership interest

attributable to
the Group Principal activities
KEEER
BEREZAAL TEEH

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.
During the year ended 2014, two new associates
named as Hunan Dianzang Jiuguijiu Liquor Company
Limited (“Hunan Dianzang”) and Shenzhen Huayin
Jinshajiang Investment Development Company Limited
(“Huayin Jinshajiang”) are added to the Group. Hunan
Laohangzun Liquor Sales Company Limited (“Hunan
Laohangzun”) has acquired the interest of Hunan
Dianzang and Huayin Jinshajiang was newly set up
and invested by Hunan Laochangzun. Both the new
associates are wholly-owned by Hunan Laohangzun as
at 31 December 2014.
The Group's interests in its principal associate, which is
unlisted, are as follows:
Place of
Nominal value of issued/ incorporation/
Name registered share capital registration
BR{T /M
28 BRAEE  HERRL/ ERH
Hunan Laohanzun Liquor Sales RMB79,600,000 PRC/Mainland China
Company Limited (i)
HRZTEBHEERR AR¥79,600000  RE/HREMM
BR2F)
Xianxi Autonomus Prefecture RMB600,000 PRC/Mainland China
Laohanzun Liquor Company
Limited (i)
EEERMNETEEE ARH600,000t  HE/RENM
BR2F)
Hunan Diancang Jiugui RMB2,000,000 PRC/Mainland China
Liquor Company Limited (i)
AR RBHE AR#2,000000m  RE/HERM
BRAA)
Shenzhen Huayin Jinshajiang RMB10,000,000 PRC/Mainland China

Investment Development

Company Limited (i)
FITERLDTRELRE AR¥10,000,000  FE/RERM
BEAF)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HEME

31 December 2015
el s - S Sl =
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value of issued/
Name registered share capital

&

B&fT/ 2
KAEE

ERMRL RS

REE QT z2Em (&)

Percentage of

ownership interest

attributable to

the Group Principal activities

FEBES

BRERBZEIL

TEER

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Group
Company Limited (i), (ii)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Group Company Limited) (i), (ii)

RITRERREEFES
SBAR 2 A,
(FIBRINTATE
EFEABERRAR)

Shenzhen Dahuangyuan
International Trading Company
Limited (i),(ii)

(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan Green Food
Distribution Company
Limited)(i), (ii)

RITRFEERE S
B2 F),)

(BT RINAKTTE
BERMEXERAF)

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
Non-Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (i), (i)

RYTRIBARGIERE R
ERBRAF ), ()

Heilongjiang
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Company Limited (i), (i)
FEIARGETAR
BRAE (), (i)

Shenzhen Pengrongan
Logistics Industrial Park
Company Limited (i), (i)

AT ORESE
BR2E (), (i)

Notes:

(i) Not audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited.

RMB200,000,000

AR #200,000,0007T

RMB50,800,000

AR #50,800,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR #50,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000

AR %100,000,0007T

RMB210,000,000

AR %210,000,0007T

PRC/Mainland China

e/ HhER

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/REA

PRC/Mainland China

RE/REA

(i) The English name of the above PRC companies is for

identification purpose only.

GEE

()

(ii)
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21.9

49

Sales of food and fertilizer

HERRRER

Sales of food fertilizer, wine
and steel

HERM MLH
B

Investment holding

RERR

Money Lending

HE

Investment holding

REZR

WIFR B S AN EEAER A RE

TEZ -

Lt BRI R B RE R 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015

—RF+-_A=+—H
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REBELTzEE (&)
The Group's shareholdings in the associate is held REFEBARATZ2ENB AR
through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. VoA NI
Summarised financial information of the material EREA ST RRE=2ELAE =2
associates, adjusted for any differences in accounting B 2N BB B TS B R BB A R 45 A B 7
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in the MARPIREEYSREEZENT
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:
Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commerce
Group Company
Limited
Shenzhen  (Formerly known Shenzhen
Huayin as Shenzhen Pengrongan
Hunan Jinshajiang Dahuangyuan Heilongjiang Logistics
Laohanzun Investment E-commerce Dahuangyuan Industrial
Liquor Sales Development Group Company E-commerce Park Company
Company Limited ~ Company Limited Limited) ~ Company Limited Limited
RYTAE
ARGETHH
£BERAT
WEZTEE RYITER (BIRRIIT ERIARE RYTERE
HERD EWIRE ARGETHH ETEH NREXE
BRAR BRARAR BRAR) BRAR ARAR
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR TR TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 53,456 - 12,146 279 -
Current assets REEE 44,618 43,574 83,654 43,567 250,677
Current liabilities RBAE (40,554) (1,792) (285) (538) -
Net assets BEFE 57,520 41,782 95,515 43,308 250,677
Recondiliation to the Group's interest in
the associate: BASERBER R REHE
Proportion of the Group's ownership A B & A HELLfI 48.99% 48.99% 30.00% 21.90% 49.0%
Carrying amount of REGEE
the investment 28,179 20,469 28,655 9,484 122,832
Revenues Iz 960 - 188,043 1,606 -
(Loss)/profit for the year FF (B8) / gl (1,274) 177 20 (896) =
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FERE(FR)/MAEE
income for the year (1,274) 177 20 (896) -
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19.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. RBEQT 2= (&)
Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commerce
Group Company
Limited
Shenzhen (Formerly known Shenzhen
Huayin as Shenzhen Pengrongan
Hunan Jinshajiang Dahuangyuan Heilongjiang Logistics
Laohanzun Investment E-commerce Dahuangyuan Industrial
Liquor Sales Development Group Company E-commerce Park Company
Company Limited Company Limited Limited) ~ Company Limited Limited
RYTAE
EEBRAT
NAEITER RIITER (RIRRIIm BRIATE AlmiEaz
HERD SHIRE REEFES EYEK NREXE
BRAFE BRERAA BRAR) ARAF BRAA
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL FEL FEL TR
Non-current assets FRBEE 12,261 - - - -
Current assets RHEE 7111 12,499 - - -
Current liablities THAE (3336) (180) - - -
Net assets BESE 16,036 12,319 - - -
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in SRS BRE &1 7 2 B HHR
the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership K B A 1ELL 30.00% 30.00% NA N/A NA
Carrying amount of REGHE
the investment 43811 3,696 - - -
Revenues Wz 20,365 - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FERERN/ (BR) 17,333 (6) - - -
Total comprehensive income/ ERREUN/ (BB EE
(loss) for the year 17,333 (6) - - -
The following table illustrates the financial information TRETAEERZ WIEERIER 2B E
of the Group's associate that is not individually NaElZ AR
material:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TET
Share of the associate’s loss for the year 5 A8 & [ Bt & A ] &5 18 - (60)
Share of the associate’s total DI E AR EEBIBRAE
comprehensive loss - (60)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's RNEBRB L AFIRE 2
investments in the associate BEREE 37,968 6
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

INVENTORIES 200 FE&

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Finished goods E K 29,695 36,772
Provision for inventories FTERE (1,019) (1,383)
28,676 35,389

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BEREFERR

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sale of goods,
rental income derived from logistic warehouse and
interest income derived from money leading.

Other than the cash and credit card sales, the Group
allows a credit period which is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivables balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Rental income from logistic warehouse is received
in accordance with the terms of the relevant lease
agreement, normally within 30 days from issuance of
invoices.

Interest income from money lending is received in
accordance with the loan agreement.

None of the trade receivables is impaired. An aged
analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

KB SEAEERBIHEE R VR
RREENESWARBERBELN
MEBHA -

BIREMERRHEEN AEBZEE
H-—RAE—EA MEREFASLR
E-BA -BUEFPHURERSEER
B AERE Y EE B E 5 R %
FEEAERYLEMEERE B
BHERFIG TR -

VRE RN EES WA TIREERBEEE R
A% BRI - 3B B % R AE30R
PUER ©

MEEB M BIRA TR IR B F %K
HR o

BMEEWE ZRRACRE R RE E
R EREFERFTIREZHBTENE
' UNE

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FAETT

Within 1 month — @ AR 3,962 8,087
1 to 2 months —EW1E A 1,299 178
2 to 3 months M ZE =1 A 1,288 498
Over 3 months BiBE=1EA 5,286 162
11,835 8,925
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

FEWE 5 R (&)
1851 2 2k R 4258 I 3RBLE 2 FE W B

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired SEFVERSTINT :
is as follows:

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired R HA TN ARORE 6,352 8,561
Less than 1 month past due BE LR —E A 1,291 202
1 to 2 months past due BH—ZMEA 719 -
Over 3 months past due B HARR A = 1A A 3,473 162
11,835 8,925

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

R TR AR (B 2 & W R TR B K 25T 2
WEENCERZZHCEFAR-

BHERREZBYGIEEREAEES
REFFABRBEZETELEFPAR-R
ERBERERE REASEEERY
BEAFH MR EERNBRRRAER
LqEI
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

FNRIE - RE R HE M ERFEIE

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

Prepayments TEfT IR 724 64,796
Deposits and other receivables & K H b e W F 08 204,788 173,817
Tax recoverable B QER sl 340 381
205,852 238,994

For the year ended 31 December 2015

As at 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$116,771,000 was paid as trade deposit for trading
goods of wine and liquor business and green food
products.

Rental deposits for the warehouse amounting to
HK$4,264,000 for the warehouse logistic business
were paid during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Approximately HK$62 million were the progress
payment for the investment targets disclosed in
the section headed “Business Prospects” under
Management Discussion and Analysis.

BE-_Z-RF+-A=+—HLEE
R-E—HF+_A=+—H" &
116,771,000 LB T H1E R B BB 1
E¥BEMRBECRMCED LRS-

BREYRES 2 ek £4,264,000/8 T
PREE—_ZT—RF+-_A=+—HIt
FESfFo

#762,000,000 8 T AL EEE N Ao
WIEKm =] —SHMEEREBZE
B2 DB e
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22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

A deposit of approximately RMB24,800,000 was paid
to RYTERETEREZEFGR AT (Shenzhen
Huayin Laoxingzun Investment Development Limited*,
“Huayin Laoxingzun”). The deposit is for backing up
the finder service provided by Huayin Laoxingzun as
an agent to identify the right property in the PRC
with specific requirements (location, nearby facilities,
size, lease terms etc.) for lease or purchase in respect
of logistic and warehouse purposes of the Group.
Huayin Laoxingzun acts as escrow agent only and
is authorized to show the deposit to any willing
vendors of properties that the Company does have the
financial ability to commit the purchase transaction.
The appointment of Huayin Laoxingzun is for a fixed
period of one year up to 31 July 2015.

The Group has been actively exploring new business
development to generate more income to strengthen
its financial performance. It is expected by the Group
that the logistic and warehouse business in the PRC
would continue to be promising given the long term
growth of the PRC's size of economy. The launch of
a successful logistic and warehouse business will rely
on (among other factors) the suitable location of the
warehouse. The Group considers that by placing the
deposits, the Group will be situated in a favorable
position to negotiate for better terms of the projects
relating to the lease or purchase of a suitable property
for its logistic and warehouse business.

Huayin Laoxingzun is a local company in Shenzhen
specialized in providing (among others) properties
search service. It has a good reputation within the
industry and processes successful track records in
introducing and completing property leasing and
purchase transactions.

22,

FEARIE - R Rk H A ERRKIE
(#&)
BE-_FE—NE+-_A=+—HLEE
B4 ANR24,800,0007T B S+ FF
ITmERETEREZRBRAA ([
RETE]) ZESDAIFRAEY
BARTEER (LB #IaRHE - K/
HEBRRF)BEMEAEELBEE
AEBEZYRREFREZERRD
(HERZTEEARIEMIEM) - ER
ZTEEERTERELERERE
AMEZEEREFRTEBREER
KARARIBEHMEEIDEERBER
S ERENTEZLZHEREE_T—H
FErA=+—HIEEEARH—F-

AEE-BEEBRRNEHERAESE
BEWALAIREF BRI - ENHE
RERARzRRARRK AEEBHFEH
2D K R R T R AR L R AF A
R LRI Z YRR R ER R KR
(HHBR)EEZAEE - AKER
REBFER: AESESELSBHEA
EXBEABVEEEYRRAERAR
ZIRBERE R ER A R -

FRETER—HKEXREMR (AR ERE)
MERG 2RI RTF] EITRAAR
HEE RNERTRYDEREREE
R ERBKNERRLE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Huayin
Laoxingzun already identified and introduced a
property in PRC to the Company for purchase
purpose. Physical inspection on the condition of the
property was carried out. The Company is negotiating
with the vendor and expects to execute the formal
sale and purchase agreement for the property by the
end of 2015. For the purchase of the property, Huayin
Laoxingzun has paid on behalf of the Company the
sum of approximately RMB6 million as down payment
to the vendor and refunded the balance of the deposit
being approximately RMB18 million (net of its agent’s
fee) to the Company on 5 June 2015.

A prepayment of approximately RMB45,000,000
was paid to BEIIIBEEBELHEERA
Al (Heilongjiang Beiguochun Wine Marketing
Limited*, “Beiguochun”). The payment is to secure
Beiguochun’s services to produce the wines at
specified quantity and with the right taste and aroma
that are expected by the Group to be able to appeal to
its South China customers. If Beiguochun can deliver
the right wine products acceptable to the Group, the
payment would be applied to purchase trading stocks.
In early June 2014, the first batch of sample wines was
delivered to the Company. However, the management
considered that the taste of these sample wines were
not suitable for South China market and as such,
the sample wines failed to pass the testing. After
negotiation, Beiguochun agreed to send another batch
of sample wines to the Company on or before end
of June 2015. However, the second batch of sample
wines still could not pass the testing, the deposit was
refunded to the Company during the year ended 31
December 2015.

22,

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |
FEARE e RHEMERIE
(%)
RBE-ZT—hF+-A=+—HIF
EA - ERETEEHREEMALRAA
BRIEN B —EFEYE -2 EHZIED
EI2RAERRAEYRE - AARIEEE
FRERTESRER T —AFFEMR
ZYMERIEXNEEHZE - BBEZYD
¥ EREZTEERREARFAMEAX
1A #£4) AR %6,000,0007T 1 A& 8 B
HER—_E—RAFNARAHRAARGR
BiEe %Y AR18,000,0007T (1
BREREE) -

TEf FRIE 49 A R #845,000,0007T B 32 1+
TREIILBEEELHARAA ([
B&E]) 2N RANGILEEZRIETEH
EXEAANSEBEHYRS EERDER
EPZEEORREWRBEE RS-
WILtEEARNEASEES 2 G5HB
HEM ZNRXEREBREEERR
RZZFE—OFNAY E—HERED
RETARRG AWM BEEERR &
HEmB AR TNEEFEmE A TSR
It - 5% Bt i R B 30 R i iR B o AR RE
g AtEERER -_E—RAFNAK
2 BIM AR BB K S —Hei @l - A
- EB-MERBDARBBAUGR ES
EREE_E—RF+-_A=+—H81
FEARETARA -
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Beiguochun is a famous wine retailer in Northeast
China with extensive sales channels and its group is
producer of the famous series of brand wines namely
1t El%&. Beiguochun was also a previous subsidiary
of the Group until 28 December 2012 when the
then management of the Group decided to dispose
it to an independent third party, details of which
were disclosed in note 32 to the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
contained in the 2012 annual report of the Company.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no

provision for other receivables (2014: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, none of the above assets
is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for

which there was no recent history of default.

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

22,

23.

BEAARE - REREMERRKE
(%)

TEER —REBEZHERBEZPH
RUIMEZERTEBRESEBENES
BERB RS (AEBRE) 2 EER-
BEE T ——-F+ZA=Z+N\BZH]"
TEENAAEEZAHB AR MR
ZH AEEEREEEREKED
EF—EZBIUF=H HFBRAQA
CE - CFFHRAECBE_T—F
T A=+ —HBLEFEZEEZMER
KM A EE -

RS HIR - I8 5 2 th B UGRIAE th
Bg(—T—F E) -

B LR RSN BRI B E RB A
ERE LR BmcemEET R
BRI IR S SR 2 FEWRIR B -

Convertible bond — option component  B] # J§ & %5 — 1R 12 4+

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 8% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$89,600,000 on 7 August 2014 to an independent
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds
will mature at 6 February 2016 at its principal amount
or can be converted into 128,000,000 shares at the

bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.7 per share.

TTEESMTA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
2 - 7,745

AEER-ZZ—NFNALHRA—%B
VE=ZF([BFERBEADBETEASE
¥4 /589,600,000 L - EME R BEF
8% M AT MR (ES - IR EHF KR =F
—ANFZRAANBEASFEEE KA
BEHFFE ANRZBRER.7EBILZ BRE
1 /5128,000,000/% A% {7 °

146 china Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited FE It ATREZSEEEZRER AT

Annual Report 2015 F #§



23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 23. TEERMTIT A (&)
The fair value of the convertible bonds of ] #2 1% & 5 59 A F{E89,590,0007% JT. H
HK$89,590,000 was valued by an independent valuer, By EEMSAEET G REREREA
APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, as at AR ZE—WMEN\ AL B ATk
7 August 2014. The convertible bonds comprise a EAEBIEAERS HIREH RIZEE
liability component, a conversion component and an O] R IEHRE o
early redemption option.
The redemption option is re-measured at fair value of BEEN_ZE—NUE+_-_A=+—
approximately HK$7,745,000 at 31 December 2014, EiT;?/D\$@%’97,74S,000/9§75E%ﬁa+§'
resulting in fair value loss amounted to approximately E@(’“EFTEJ%% #912,174,00078 T HA &
HK$12,174,000 being recognised under “Loss on —E-NFEF+_A=1+—HILFEH
fair value change on derivative financial assets, in mmé§TE § RE MR EWRARE P ERA
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and [ATEEREEATEZHELNE
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 B -mMREFNEBEREEETETR
December 2014. The movement of the redemption BEhE 0T
option derivative of the convertible bond is set out
below:
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value of the redemption option MR ESNEBEREEEITETA
derivative of the convertible bonds RZZE-—HFENAELRNRFE
at 7 August 2014 19,919
Less: Loss arising on changes in fair value 3l : A AFEZEHELEMNEE 12,174
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MFE+-_A=+—H 7,745
Less: Conversion of shares B IR R (7,745)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hAF+-A=+—H -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 24, BERBASEEYRCERER
DEPOSITS
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Cash and bank balances H e RIRTTH R 363,300 79,150
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEY 363,300 79,150
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24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$243,638,000 (2014: HK$79,039,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(i) On 24 February 2014, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”),
entered into the Agreement with the
Zhaodong Beidahuang Biotechnology Limited
and Linxiang Huayin Changjiang Small and
Medium Enterprises Guarantee Limited (the
“Purchasers”), whereby the Purchasers have
conditionally agreed to purchase and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the
75% equity interest in Harbin China Distillery
Company Limited held by the subsidiary at the
consideration of RMB40 million. The ordinary
resolution to approve the disposal of Harbin
China Distillery Company Limited was duly
passed by the shareholders by way of poll
at the adjourned EGM held on 6 June 2014
and after that date, Harbin China Distillery
Company Limited ceased to be the subsidiary
of the Group. All the conditions precedent to
completion have been satisfied and completion
took place on 18 June 2014. Details of the
completion of the disposal could be referred
to the announcement published on the same
date.

24,

25.

RBeREASEEYRCERER
(%)

R|EBAR NEEZRARKTENR
& M ER1T#E82/5243,638,0008 T (=&
— P4 179,039,000/ 7T ) < AT » IR &
Fh B A e A SNEEE B 1) 6 151 K% SN EEE 16 131 )
HE - EELMEESE ARBETABR
MEBRAHMEY AEEREBRE
FHEEITINEEEMIRITI AR KR
REME-

RITRERE B RITERN KR ZFEHH
FPREA S, - 78 HIE B R 1 R E61E
AMEEL (RFAEERRSFE
YIME) @ WS B 52 HE HF AR
A8 - SRITHE B R BRI RTI TN
R BENRBR B EEZRIT

RS T

(i) RZE—NF_A=Z+HA " K
RAZEEWNBRAR(EAH])
HERIL R AEYMRHE AR AR
REMmERR TR/ NDEER
ERAB (BRI e
Bt EAEEBRHEREBEM
BEHEERGRELENMBE AR
FEEchREPEEBEERR
NEZTS%BE REAARM
40,000,0007T ° #it Jf HH & B BB
FRBABRARZ EEBRAER
ERZZT—NFNANBRITY
BHRFRAKSES FERFIAR
ERAFTRNEXN BB MRZEA
% BBREPEBEERAAT
BAAEEZWNB AR - ERZ
FTA SR IEH B EER RTEK
ERZE—WESAFTNBE
M-BRATKEEZFHBEITL2ZE
R Bz Ao
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25. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(ii)

On 26 March 2014, BAPP Ethanol Holdings
Limited (the “BAPP"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
Agreement with an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”), the BAPP has conditionally
agreed to sell all 100% equity interest in
the BAPP (Northwest) Limited held by the
BAPP, which hold 100% equity interest of
Ningxia West Bright New Resource Technology
Company Limited at the consideration of
RMB40 million (the “Disposal of BAPP”). All the
conditions precedent to completion have been
satisfied and completion took place on 15 June
2015. Details of the completion of the disposal
could be referred to the announcement
published on the same date.

The results of the discontinued operations for
the year are presented below:

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

25. RIFREEK (E)

(ii)

RZE—MOF=ZHAZ+RX
H AKEEB22EWB R F
BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited
([BAPP) B —HBIE=7
([B7 1) I L%  BAPPE B &
4 [7) & H & BAPPFT 35 B 2 BAPP
(Northwest) Limited (E##E =% E
AMHHARHERSFAIRMER R
A)2100% /% # ) 2 2 F100%A%
% RE R AK%40,000,0007T
([BAPPHEEZEIE]) - T ZFTHE
FERIFHEEEXN R THKERZ
TE-AFERNATHEBRBAERM-BH
TS ZFHBEAI2ERRF B
£ /N ik

AERERIEREEHRIXES
FIEAT :

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Revenue WA 256 127,784
Expenses F 2 (361) (175,639)
Finance costs DN - (13,816)
Loss before tax from the R E ST 2 BRI ES 1B
discontinued operations (105) (61,671)
Income tax Frig i - -
Loss for the year from the BRI EEB 2 FEEBE
discontinued operations (105) (61,671)
Add: Gain on disposal of e BERIEEEER 2 IR
discontinued operations (HM$5E35)
(note 35) 56,856 204,550
Profit from discontinued RIEIEEEE Y
operations, net of tax A (BRER) 56,751 142,879
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25.

A S — - F
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 25, ARIEREHEK (&)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the R+ A=+—HoBAEEHE
discontinued operations classified as held for sale as at SRR REN BB TER
31 December are as follows: AN -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment E RN - 615
Prepaid land lease payments M LEE - 15,831
Inventories FE - 38
Prepayments, deposit and TR - 1R KE R R
other receivables - 615
Due from related parties JFE Y B3 A T FRIE - 75
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEDY - 17
Assets of disposal groups classified NEARFIEEE 2
as held for sale HEAREE - 17,191
Liabilities =Ri
Other payables and accruals HihENRIERETER - 7,762
- 7,762
Deferred income TR A = 11,137
Liabilities directly associated with the DB AFELE ~
assets classified as held for sale EEEEMEE 86 = 18,899
Net liabilities directly associated with ~ £2 H & 48 Bl H #Z AR 2
the disposal groups BEFH - 1,708
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 25. RIEEEER (&)
At 31 December 2014, no items of the discontinued R-Z—mNE+—_A=+—H HES
operations’ property, plant and equipment and IR PR EEIE st R AR LA
leasehold land was pledged to secure bank loans of FAE+HIE B B IR AR B4R 4
the discontinued operation. Mg S RITE
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued RERIIREEEELE RS RE TR
operations are as follows: LUNNE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net cash used in operating activities & & EBFTAIE € /F5 - (3,207)
Net cash from investing activities KERSMBHREFRE - -
Net cash from financing activities METBMFREFERE - -
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEE R B E R EF R
changes, net - 395
Net cash outflow W& FEE - (2,812)
TRADE PAYABLES 26. BEHEZRX
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of RMEPRZENE HRFIREFE R H
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as AENRESTOT
follows:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
Within 1 month — @A R 2,016 8,469
1 to 2 months —ZEMIE A 546 -
2 to 3 months Mz =18 A 83 -
Over 3 months BB =18A 3,063 742
5,708 9,211
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26. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 26. ENEZERENX (&)
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and ENESERARE  —#IZ30H AR
are normally settled on 30-day terms (2014: 30-day (ZZE—F:30HHR ) &E -
terms).
All the trade payables are denominated in Renminbi. FTEENEBIEFTHUARKTE-
27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HtEANRERESER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Other payables H fth fE T R IE 53,880 4,802
Accruals Bt EH 3,620 4,446
57,500 9,248

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Included in other payable, there are HK$30,920,000
trade deposits received from customers for the
sales of green food products and HK$7,200,000
rental deposits, received from the tenants of logistic
warehouse.

HiyENFIARR BB FIHHR A=
Ao

T AE MR RIBERSREF 30,920,000
BLAREEHRCRMERPRINE
S 7,200,000 T 5B RA A
FUEBNHAERS -
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 28. HBITREMFELEE
BORROWINGS
2015 2014
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRAIE A THx ERH% 5#A TEx
(%) (%)
Current 0
Bank loans - secured (a) RITEH-BERGQ) 5.14-9.06 2016 67444 4.80-11.19 2015 61,216
On demand
Other loans - unsecured (b) EEF-EEAD) 497 REX 38,199 = = =
105,643 61,216
Notes: BT
(a) As 31 December 2015, the Group's bank loans of (a) R_E—RF+—_A=+—H"
continuing operations amounting to HK$67,444,000 AEBEFRBERKEEB CBRITER
(2014: HK$61,216,000) is secured by properties held 767,444,000 L (ZF — M4 ¢
by a related party (note 37(b)) of the Group and an 61,216,000/ 7T ) Jh AR &£ B — % 8
independent third party. HEAR—BBUE=FAEE2 A
WE (MI7E37(b) ) 1B IF o
(b) The unsecured loans was borrowed from Beidahuang (b) IR E A EE R R IEER K
Marketing Co. Ltd., the non-controlling shareholder R RREHEROBRAR - ZER
of a group company. The purpose for the loans was TREREZRRMEEEMAS -

for purchasing staple food and liquor wine.

() The Group's bank and other borrowings are all (0) AEERBRITREMBEEZIUAR
denominated in Renminbi. IS RIER
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 29.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the
year are as follows:

AL BLIE B 1R
FREEHAAEZEEHMT

Revaluation Fair value
of financial  adjustments
Revaluation  assets at fair  arising from
of investment value through  acquisition of
property  profitorloss  subsidiaries Total
Wi
EfEBRE WELR
Bt RATEHNE EEN
REME MEemEE ATEAE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER TEx TEx
Deferred tax liabilities at RZE—-ME—H—HZ
1 January 2014 ERHEEE - 107 107
Deferred tax credited to the FNRAGREERR
consolidated statement of profit HitzmBKAREZ
or loss and other comprehensive EIERE (Hi3E10)
income during the year (note 10) - (16) (16)
Exchange realignment 0 5t iR - 2) )
Deferred tax liabilities RZT—MF
at 31 December 2014 +-A=+—-82
EIERARRG - 89 89
Deferred tax charged /(credited) to the € R#I% / (FtA) &4
consolidated statement of profitor B REMEEURA
loss and other comprehensive R ELERE
income during the year (note 10) (PzE10) 13,325 9,019 (16) 22,328
Exchange realignment I 5 2R (548) (371) (3) (922)
Deferred tax liabilities at RZE-R%E
31 December 2015 +ZRA=t—-H2
EEHAERE 12,777 8,648 70 21,495

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of HK$49,809,000 (2014: HK$43,605,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

AEBEFBEAEELE ZHES
849,809,000 L (=& — M F :
43,605,000/ 70) * FTEEZ BB AE
Ke—ERFRZERBAN - BHER
ZEEBEBRAELHBELEE RERE
AERIRENREBEE—BREBZWB
AR HARRIE T SRR & A 7T A
eI %

154 china Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited F Bt ATREZSEEEZRER A [

Annual Report 2015 F #§



30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al A e |

CONVERTIBLE BONDS 30. ABRBES
The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon AEBR-_ZE—NENALHRA—ZE
rate of 8% per annum at a total principal value of NE=ZA(EEEAEA) BT RS E
HK$89,600,000 on 7 August 2014 to an independent %8 589,600,000/ T EmEE R AT E
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds SUHI AR EA - A MR EA BN —F
will mature at 6 February 2016 at its principal amount —NE-ANNBIEASEEDE kA /A
or can be converted into 128,000,000 shares at the BEEEA A EEBIREIR0.7E T Z(EBIRE
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.7 per share. #4 £4128,000,0000% I 17 °
The convertible bonds comprise liability component,
conversion component and early redemption option. B EEBIEAEIRS - #HIRS K
The effective interest rate of the liability component REEREER YL HEABAGEI D
on initial recognition is 8.2% per annum. Conversion BRERENKRAES2% - HIBA N _-F
may occur at any time between 7 August 2014 and 6 —MENA+BE-_E—FE - AXH
February 2016. If the bonds have not been converted, AR E RS T - INE S R EEEK  FERN
they will be redeemed on 6 February 2016. The —ZE - RFEZ_A/NHER - KQAE AR
Company may at any time redeem the outstanding RIZmEN ESER ANESEEAET M
principal amount of the bonds at face value together NEESELNELRESRESEE BEL
with the accrued and unpaid coupon on the principal FREEEEASNEEIENES -
amount to be redeemed. Coupon of 8% per annum
will be paid semi-annually to the bondholder.
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated RGBT R PR A R E S
statement of financial position are as follows: m
HK$'000
TAET
Proceed of issue BAITPTISSIE 89,600
Less: Equity conversion component B RIS (19,968)
Add: Derivative financial assets miTEeMmEE 19,892
Liability component on initial recognition ~ RZ=ZZF—MNF N\ B+t BYI T HEREH
at 7 August 2014 BEHS 89,524
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 30, AR ESR (&)
The movement of liability component of convertible M ELANaEIYEsH N T
bonds is as follows:

HK$'000
FHET

Liability component on initial recognition ~RZ=ZZT—MNFEN\A LBV HEREH
at 7 August 2014 BEES 89,524
Add: Imputed finance cost o EFERE AR 2,882
Liability component at 31 December 2014 RZ-ZT—OF+_A=+—HHAEEIH 92,406
Add: Imputed finance cost mn:EEREKAR 3,024
Less: Interest paid/payable BB EAFLA (5,906)
Conversion of shares IR D (89,524)

Liability component at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AF+-A=+—HHBEHH -

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. A
Shares B 4
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: VAT
8,000,000,000 8,000,000,000/% ( —Z—PY4F :
(2014: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000/% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREECNAITH LB 800,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
2,336,644,876 2,336,644,876/% ( —ZF— P :
(2014: 1,626,694,876) 1,626,694,876%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEIEILHL B 233,664 162,669
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31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
During 2015, the movements in share capital were as
follows:

(a)

(0)

Pursuant to a resolution of the Company
passed in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 22 December 2015, the authorised
share capital of the Company increased from
HK$400,000,000 divided into 4,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each to HK$800,000,000
divided into 8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each.

62,150,000 share options were exercised
at the exercise price ranged HK$0.694 to
HK$0.83 per share, resulting in the issue
of 62,150,000 shares of HK$0.1 each for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$46,683,000. An amount of HK$15,012,000
was transferred from the share option reserve
to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share options.

128,000,000 convertible bonds were exercised
at the exercise price HK$0.70 per share,
resulting in the issue of 128,000,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each. An amount of HK$19,968,000
was transferred from the convertible bonds
reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the convertible bonds.

On 30 April 2015, the Company allotted and
issued 150,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.73 per subscription
share pursuant to the Subscription Agreement
dated 10 April 2015. Further details were set
out in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 April 2015.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al A e |

31. K& (&)

Wn=

(a)

T-HF BAEBMT:

BERAATIN-_E—HE+_A
TH+ZHRTHRRENRE
FBBRRER ARFIMERE
I 7K B1400,000,0008 7T (9 A
f% T {50.17% 7T #94,000,000,000
B P& 1n ) 3 £800,000,000%
T(HAESREEIIETH
8,000,000,000M% A% 17 ) °

62,150,00015 B IR 2 L FIRTT
8 7 70.69478 7L £0.8378 7T
ETF BRRERBESKRE
% B S A1) 46,683,000/ 7T 3 1T
SRR TEEO0. 18 TH62,150,0008%
R -REREREITERE —%F
15,012,000/ JLHY 5818 B M Ak 1
EEEERMDRER-

128,000,000f% AJ AR E % 2 %
B ITHEB0.70/8 TEITHE
BYRHRTEREEINSTH
128,000,0000% f& 15 ° 1A A 32 AR (&
FEITE % —%19,968,000/%5
TTHRIEE I RRESFEES
B mE R e

RZZE—RAFWMA=+H &R
FREBERAS AT —HEMA
THRZRERZEABEESR
REERRD0.73/8 UL B K 31T
150,000,0008% FREERR 1D - F % 5F
BERAARABAPAEA-_T—AF
MA+BZAMHA-
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Bils
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(e)

On 30 July 2015, the Company allotted and
issued 39,800,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$2.43 per subscription
share pursuant to the Subscription Agreement
dated 17 June 2015. Further details were set
out in the announcement of the Company
dated 17 June 2015.

On 11 September 2015, the Company allotted
and issued 150,000,000 subscription shares
at the subscription price of HK$1.34 per
subscription share pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement dated 18 August 2015. Further
details were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 18 August 2015.

60,000,000 and 120,000,000 warrants were
exercised at a same price of HK$0.70 into
180,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
on 16 November 2015 and 9 December
2015 respectively. The net proceeds from
the exercise of warrants were approximately
HK$126,000,000.

31.

Hﬁm (IIE)

(e)

RZE—AF+LA=+H £
FARBEEHRA-_ZT—AEANA
THERAZREBHRBELZREES
B8 SR B A% (92,4378 To B B S 31T
39,800,0000% sR f& IX 10 - B % &F
BHRARRBHAE-T—RF
NATEBZAMRA-

RZE—RAFNA+—RB K2
AREBSHAE-_ZT—HFENA
TNRAZRBHELZREBES
RS FREB A% 10 1.3478 JU AR 3% K 31T
150,000,000/% FREERR 1D - B % 5F
BERAAFRAPAE_T—AF
NATNBZAHmA-

60,000,00017 % 120,000,00017
RREEDRR =T —RF+—
A+XRABE-ZZE—HE+_-A
N B0.708 TR R E K&
TE ABmAEBRMEECIET
#7180,000,000/% & 3@ % - 17 &
REEENFIERIEFEAL
126,000,00058 7T
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31. BRA& (&)
A summary of the transactions during the year and last IRARB RN T O BELTIR AN LA B & -
year with reference to the above movements in the FAREFENXSBENT
Company'’s issued share capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
BRORGEE CBTRE ROEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT TET
At 1 January 2014 RZE—-NF—H—8 1,195162,397 119,516 718,569 838,085
Subscription shares BB RETRERD
allotted and issued 401,032,479 40,103 170,093 210,196
Share options exercised BT R ERE 30,500,000 3,050 31,762 34,812
At 31 December 2014 and RZT—IMF
1 January 2015 +ZA=+-8Bk
“T-A%—H—H 1,626,694,876 162,669 920,424 1,083,093
Subscription shares allotted and f % RBETRERR
issued 339,800,000 33,980 372,709 406,689
Conversion of convertible bonds Rk EH 128,000,000 12,800 88,943 101,743
Share options exercised BATR MR 62,150,000 6,215 55,480 61,695
Warrants exercised EITERRRESR 180,000,000 18,000 109,800 127,800
At 31 December 2015 R-ZT-1%F
+-A=+—H 2,336,644,876 233,664 1,547,356 1,781,020
Share options BE PR RE

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 32 to the financial statements.

AR FIBRER 8 KA EIA T 22 %17
R B RIS E N S MR MY 5E32 ©
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s
shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 23 May 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

32.

B IR R T &
RARIZRERESS ([5T81]) - §
TEfR ML 2R R T AR E R ERK B
EHERMHEER2EE -HFEMNEE
B2HEERREARANES (BEBL
HEMITES) AEBHEMEES FAEEH
EmERBEEN AEEEF KA
AR AR BlM B A BME R FEIE AR AR
R FER_ZETLFRAZT=HE
ERCBRIESBEBUBSEE BRI E
ZARBERI0E -

R ERIBET IR H A R IT(E R IR
BB ARITEERE R AR RMEMR
B R B 31T D B9 10% » ATl 1218 A
HRERESEER2MmEREERE
AETHRO&ESEE RNARBZEH
AEEHEE BTG M1 % « EBINE
B I PR A A B AR B A R R AR R K
kil

MARRES TTHREHKFERESK
BENBEAR D ERERSELIEN
TESERME WIN MARAIEER
R BIUIEAITEET A HSNBMBAR
R BB AR RE MR 1 218 B HARS R @A A
BIEAIRRE B 1TARH0. 1%k & E (1R
BEREHBHARRBRMERTE)R
#85,000,000/8 7T 7B R AR XS
FEEA A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BERIERE (@)
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted EBEABELT B TRENREER A
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment RIEZ2 HHIAE S 21 B NS B AR kE
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the B o I B ENITFERESES
grantee. The exercise period of the share options TR EBHERGL SR EHATER
granted is determinable by the directors, and RN ETEREE (URE
commences after a vesting period and ends on a date EAEE VBRI E3IFE o
which is not later than 1 to 3 years from the date of
offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.
The exercise price of share options is determinable ERENTETEBEESE T BT E
by the directors, but may not be less than the RUTETE: VAR TRORIZEZE
higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the AR #E QAR B ST PR R T & (AR TR
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share MR EEIRZ BRI AER S B BB
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price FrFEHWmE : XA QR MDRIZEE
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days HEME(E -
immediately preceding the date of offer, and (i) the
nominal value of the Company's shares on the date of
offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to B A N 4 AR T A AR EU IR B s A B
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. HEAE FIEEMRER o
The following share options were outstanding under RER NI TEBTEREY KT
the Scheme during the year: f&h:
2015 2014
Weighted Weighted
Average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
per share of options per share of options
ik B BRE I e
BRTEE 8B BRTEE g8
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT TR BT T
At 1 January “—HA—H 0.75 90,200 0.74 47,350
Granted during the year FAEH 2.06 192,930 0.754 78,600
Exercised during the year FERTTHE 0.75 (62,150) 0.71 (30,500)
Lapsed during the year FEREKM 0.81 (3,250) 0.84 (5,250
At 31 December WtZA=t—H 1.91 217,730 075 90,200

The weighted average closing price of the Company's
shares immediately before the dates on which the
share options were exercised during the year was
HK$3.54 (2014: HK$0.836) per share.

FARZTHEBREBBRIAR ARG
RN EAER3.54ET (=
T — P4 :0.8365 7T ) °
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32. BEBIRREEE (/)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REEHR KT EERENTEER
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEEMT
period are as follows:
2015 —Z2-aF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE" ITHERR
HK$
'000 per share
TR BRET
5,500 0.754 23-07-2014 to 22-07-2016
23-07-2014%22-07-2016
19,300 0.754 23-07-2015 to 22-07-2017
23-07-2015%22-07-2017
12,300 2.060 24-07-2015 to 23-07-2018
24-07-2015%23-07-2018
132,398 2.060 24-07-2016 to 23-07-2018
24-07-2016£23-07-2018
48,232 2.060 24-07-2017 to 23-07-2018
24-07-2017%23-07-2018
217,730
2014 —E-mEF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BB TEE 1TEER
‘000 HK$ per share
T & FRAETT
50 0.73 26-04-2012 to 25-04-2015
26-04-2012%&25-04-2015
5,050 0.83 13-09-2012 to 12-09-2015
13-09-2012&12-09-2015
39,300 0.754 23-07-2014 to 22-07-2016
23-07-2015%&22-07-2017
39,300 0.754 23-07-2015 to 22-07-2017
23-07-2015%&22-07-2017
6,500 0.694 31-10-2014 to 30-10-2017
31-10-2014&30-10-2017
90,200
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * TE AR Sk BT TAL AR S AR A B IR AN E At

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was HK$162,900,000 (range from HK$0.83 to
HK$0.89 each) (2014: HK$16,780,000 at HK$0.21
each). The Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$80,287,000 during the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: HK$2,602,000).

BUZBMIERT  BRRNTEE
BfEH B -

FRE M EREN A FE4A162,900,000
BT (MR ER.83BLE0.898
7T (ZE—NF EZRO21EB LA
16,780,000 ) AEEREBEZ
—AF+-A=Z+—HIFE®IAER
#E 5 3780,287,0008 7T ( —F — U 4 :

2,602,00057T,) ©
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— a5t - A=+4"H
B (&)
RAFERERELZEERELTER
BB BERA —EARKEL G &
Z BB IR B A R R R - TRE
FIFr AR HBRE R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 32.
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

2015 2014

Grant date Grant date

i A & ®iH B

24-7-2015 23-7-2014

Dividend yield (%) % B % (%) = =

Expected volatility (%) 78 5RO 18 (%) 71 46-48

Historical volatility (%) P& SR 18 (%) 71 46-48

Risk-free interest rate (%) o2 a1 B M) 2K (%) 0.61 0.39-0.8

Expected life of options (years) ERETEEFEH (F) 3 2-3
Weighted average share price niEFHRE

(HK$ per share) (BB 2.06 0.754

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 217,730,000 (2014: 90,200,000) share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 217,730,000 (2014: 90,200,000) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$21,733,000 (2014: HK$9,020,000)
and share premium of HK$394,362,000 (2014:
HK$58,983,000) (before issue expenses).

BRENTERFHREEE=FNESL
BEAE P ERITHEEANER-
T8 HA R 0 e IR IR 52O 0 R FE R AR KB B
MIEENERR T —ELERER-

ROBREREEMBERAARTE

| A
HETE -

RB|EBHR ARARETEE TR
FH B A5217,730,00000 (==
— P9 4 : 90,200,000 ) * FEA R A3
EEARBEBET BEITEHRITER
f% #E 15 BB A A R E17217,730,000
A% ( —Z — P4 : 90,200,0004% ) %8 b
AR - BN AR21,733,0008 7T (=
T —PI4: 9,020,0008 t) &K%
i (8394,362,0008 70 (= — U 4F -
58,983,000/ 7T) (RIMBREITHZ) ©
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32.

338

= JAGE AT e

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 435,460,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 9% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 25 August 2014, Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi
Trading Limited (“SZMM"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a share transfer
agreement with independent third parties whereby the
Company has agreed to acquire 50% equity interest
in Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution
Limited (“SZBDH") from the vendors at an aggregate
consideration of RMB2.5 million. The transaction
was completed on 4 March 2015 and after that day,
SZBDH became a subsidiary of the Group.

SZBDH is principally engaged in the wholesaling
and retailing of staple food, cooking oil, alcohol
and beverage, frozen and fresh food manufactured
by Heilongjiang Beidahuang Agribusiness Group
Corporation.

32.

33.

EhRREsTE (&)

RZ SRR AR AR ERE
5T &175435,460,00017 B8 A% 4 15 AR AT 1E
HERAARNRZBZERITRMHL
9% e

W is — R E A R
R-ZB—MENB-+HB FIlHE
ZEtERHEAERAR ([FIER] K
DA EZENMBAR) BB E=FHE]
MR EERE B A AEREM
EHWERIE A RZECRMBEXBR
~aE] (RIEERFT] ) 250% 8 - 8K
BAARE2,500,000L - XHEN =
—hAF=AMBATKERZB%E R
KRR AAEB 2B ARG -

ARYFERREBREHBERTERET
ERRRBEBEAREEZIRM
RAM EBRRSE AR RS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY &

31 December 2015
s — Al e (|

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 33. WE—EKWEATR (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of FIHE AR E BB 2 AT R EE &
SZBDH as at date of acquisition were as follows: aEs A AFENT:
2015
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 38
Inventories BE 937
Trade and bills receivable JEWE P ERRKRBE 275
Prepayment, deposits and TERTFRIE - B & R H Ath R UURIA
other receivables 10,955
Cash and cash equivalents Re RS EEY 688
Trade and bills payable EBREZERKEE (38)
Other payables and accruals Hh eI R ERHE A (13,244)
Total identifiable net liabilities wRERIBE R (389)
Add: Non-controlling interest upon 7][] UGB B FE 12 AR 2
acquisition 194
Total identifiable net liabilities subject WEEFTP R 2 B #h & %8
to acquisition (195)
Goodwill on acquisition Wb 2 & 3,322
Satisfied by cash consideration NI eRET 3,127
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of SZBDH because EE AR BRI RSB Wk
the cost of the combination included a control AL R TEELERGE N BN A5
premium, In addition, the consideration paid for the ﬁgg\ﬁﬁt@ﬁ*ﬁimﬁgﬁfﬁﬂﬂmwy
combination effectively included amounts inrelation FHE R TIEERE LEYIL A EERE
to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, EEBOMNZE SR % EF B T2 Hy
future market development and the assembled work BAOHER THAZENZEIAEFS
force of SZBDH. These benefits are not recognised AR EEEENREDIE k.

separately from goodwill because they do not meet
the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets.
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S — T —H
33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 33. WE—RBHWEAT (&)
None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is JEH B A e E A (T Ao i &

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$922,000 FREN BRI KT E £ 5HINETS
attributable to the additional business generated by FE15#9922,000i 7T - ER Iz B IEEY
SZBDH. Revenue for the year includes HK$566 million 1t K35 B A #9566,000,00058 It ©

generated by SZBDH.

Had this business combination been effected at HWMEEBEHR _ZE—RAF—HA—B4&
1 January 2015, the revenue of the Group from W AREBBEERLERELEN N
continuing operations would have been HK$860 15 £860,000,000/8 7T » i 135 48 45 & E 75
million, and the profit for the year from continuing B4 B % F ¥ A15,000,00058 7T ©
operations would have been HK$15 million. The REBEZEERE ZZE([HEE2|HFAEE
directors of the Group consider these ‘pro-forma’ HABRIEFELEEAENHHRIT I
numbers to represent an approximate measure of the o AKRKEARIZH L R E R

performance of the combined group on an annualised
basis and to provide a reference point for comparison
in future periods.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$260,000 Iz B 48 B8 K ZX260,00058 7T 2 B E# iR
have been excluded from the consideration transferred EBhik TERGEEBELEMEE
and have been recognised as an expense in the period, WARE ITHHEX | B TEZRAH
within the ‘administration expense’ line item in the AR

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the BREWE R AT ZIRSRES TN
acquisitions of SZBDH is as follows: T

2015

HK$'000

THET

Cash consideration RERE 3,127

Cash and bank balances acquired Wi 2 38 & MIR1T 45 64 (688)
Net outflow of cash and cash AREBESAMABREREZ
equivalents included in cash flows RekREFEMRAFE

used in investing activities 2,439
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 34. Hj%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ]

(i) The Group disposed the entire issued capital (i) N £ LIEESRE ARIK
held of BAPP (Northwest) Limited (“BAPP 40,000,000t MBI E=HH
Northwest”) to an independent third party for & FT#BAPP (Northwest) Limited
a cash consideration of RMB40,000,000. On (TBAPP Northwest )& ZE
15 June 2015, BAPP completed the disposal BT ERK R T —RHFENA
of BAPP Northwest and the Group lost the + A B BAPPT K HH & BAPP
control of BAPP Northwest and its wholly Northwest * i 2~ £ [& 2k 25 ¥ BAPP
owned subsidiary Ningxia West Bright New Northwest X E 2 BB ATIEE
Resource Technology Company Limited. The TOE e RS EMAER A
two disposed companies were the discontinued T2 R HE R T
operations of the Group (Note 25). BRNEE 7R G (HE

25) e
2015
HK$'000
THERT
Total consideration mRE 49,659
Less: Net liabilities including in B NYIBIEZ BEFE
assets of disposed groups of: (FFALBHERZEE) -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE R 613
Prepaid land lease payments TE S L o8 & KA 15,655
Inventories e 38
Prepayments, deposits and TERT A - 12 & R H M E W FRIR
other receivables 615
Due from related parties JE YL 3 A+ 3RIE 75
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeFEY 13
Other payables and accruals Hip e RIBREAER (7,931)
Deferred income EEYA (10,895)
(1,817)
Add: Release of exchange R EREEIE N E5E
difference upon disposal 5,380
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB R Rz W 56,856
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rEmesRest = 1—H
34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(i) (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal is as

3. HEMWEBATR (&)
(i) (&)
HEEEAZREeNASESEYR
ANFEAFIT :

follows:
2015
HK$'000
THT
Cash consideration REeRE 49,659
Cash and cash equivalents FrHEzHekBEeEEYD
disposed of (13)
Net inflow of cash and cash HEELX R MRS SEMRNEHE
equivalents in respect of
the disposal 49,646

(i) On 12 June 2015, the Company entered into
an agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to
sell all its 100% equity interest in Bio-Dynamic
China Limited for a cash consideration of
HK$1,000,000. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group lost the control of Bio-
Dynamic China Limited and its wholly owned
subsidiary Harbin Niu Wang Muye Management
Company Limited.

(ii) RZEBE-—RFAA+ZH AR
AIE— 2B E=TR] L&
B ARRIRBEARRERE
1,000,000/ TTHEERENE N
TEERABZ 2 ERE N
REER AEEXREHEYH
HHBEERARMEZENRB R
AREBTENEEEARAT
Z YR I

2015
HK$'000
FExT
Total consideration HRE 1,000
Less: Net liabilities including in B T RBZAEFE
assets of disposed groups of: (FFALEERIZEE) -
Property, plant and equipment M HWE REE 293
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - R & KA A FE U GRIA
other receivables 92
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEY 6
Other payables and accruals HAth FE A RIB R AT & A (56)
335
Add: Release of exchange R SRR EIE N =58
difference upon disposal (41)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AR W= 624
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. HEKBAT (&)
(i) (continued) i (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HEELECHeRREFEYR
equivalents in respect of the disposal is as ANFRELHWOT
follows:
2015
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReRE 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents FretEzRE R
disposed of REeEEED (6)
Net inflow of cash and cash HEEAZReRREE
equivalents in respect of BEYRAFEE
the disposal 994
(i) In 2014, the Group disposed the entire issued iy RZE—NF AEENBR2K
capital held of Harbin China Distillery Company B A R #40,000,0007T [A] 38 37 5
Limited (“Harbin China”) to independent ZHHEEMBBEZBRETRER
third parties for a cash consideration of EEARE AT ([BMRERE]) >
RMB40,000,000. The ordinary resolution to 2EHRBITR A - ELE 2T
approve the disposal was duly passed by the BAREEN_ZE—MFEA/NH
shareholders by way of poll at the adjourned BT RREFIASES FER
EGM held on 6 June 2014 and after that date, RUABRERRZANER BB
Harbin China ceased to be the subsidiary of the RZBZ KRERERTHAK
Group. SEZHEBRR -
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. HEMEBALAT (&)
(i) (continued) iy (&)
2014
HK$'000
FHET
Total consideration wRE 50,352
Less: Net liabilities including in B TASIEZBEFE
assets of disposed groups of: (FFAHREBEBIZEE) -
Property, plant and equipment I ER L] 180,275
Prepaid land lease payments TEAT + 3 A & I8 15,679
Other intangible assets EEEEE 8,876
Inventories AT 18,152
Trade and bills receivables BWE SERNERE 3,330
Prepayments, deposits and BRHIE - RHE K
other receivables H h fE RIR 11,519
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREeFEEY 3,036
Trade and bills payables ENESERNEE (125,068)
Other payables and accruals Hh e IE R ERTE A (97,272)
Due to related parties JESHREE A L3I (53,684)
Due to a non-controlling FERT—FIM B AR
shareholder of a subsidiary FE 2 IR AR 3R R IE (31,638)
Interest-bearing bank and RITREAMETSEE
other borrowings (92,0006)
(158,801)
Add: Release of exchange N PO B R R BI E Y = 5
difference upon disposal 38,101
Add: Non-controlling interests R EERZ FEERER
upon disposal (42,704)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary ~ HE&EMHE QA2 Wz 204,550
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. HEWBALAT (&)
(i) (continued) (iii) (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HEEF RS RRESEEY R
equivalents in respect of the disposal is as AEESNAOT
follows:
2014
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReKE 50,352
Cash and cash equivalents FItEZHe RRSEED
disposed of (3,036)
Net inflow of cash and HEMNBARIEAZRER
cash equivalents in respect ReZEMRAFE
of the disposal of the subsidiary 47,316
(iv)  On 16 December 2014, the Group disposed vy, RZE—HWNF+=-A+,xB 'K
off the entire issued share capital of EE LIRS R EBAERE,000,000
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Company Limited TEEEREEXAGREARIZSE
to an independent third party for a cash HOBTRAHE T —ZEYE
consideration of RMB6,000,000. =Fo
2014
HK$'000
FHET
Total consideration HARE 7,496
Less: Net assets of the subsidiary B HERMNBRARICEEFE
upon disposal
Property, plant and equipment M HE LR 1,614
Inventories FE 5,307
Prepayment, deposits and BNRIE -EE R
other receivables H fth fE W 5k 1E 4,490
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 8
Other payables and accruals Hth FE A RIE R BT E A (31)
11,388
Add: Release of exchange N B ER RO E H EE
difference upon disposal 23
Add: Non-controlling interests e BERZIFERER
upon disposal 4,296
Less: Goodwill eliminated upon B S R R
disposal (467)
Loss on disposal of the subsidiary ~ H&EMB X E 2 EE (40)
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(iv) (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of the
subsidiary is as follows:

34. LEKELTE (F)
(iv)  (#&)
FRALENBARZRERRS
EEMRANFESITWT :

2014
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration RERE 7,496
Cash and bank balances L& 2R e RIRITARR
disposed of (8)
Net inflow of cash and cash EHRLENBARIZEES R
equivalents in respect of ReFEMRAFE
the disposal of the subsidiary 7,488

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured
by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 26
and 28, respectively to the financial statements.

35. EEEH
AREBUAEBEEEFRBZETER
15D R E A IS R FE26 5228 °
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36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

As Lessees

At 31 December 2015, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

36.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e | |
REHELTH
AEERBEEEHELRHFHEEETY
¥ - MEMEMEAR ERFHE-

EREABEA
RZE—RF+TA=1+—H x&E
RARBRB AR EHAAZ T
RREEESBBLOT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Within one year —F R 21,404 4,965
In the second to fifth years RE_ZFERF 54,645 6,146
Beyond five years tBiE T 418 -
76,467 11,111

As Lessors ERHBA

At 31 December 2015, the Group and the Company
has contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

RZE—RF+_A=+—H &KEH
MARQNFEBEA N RAKRFZERAER
HETHY s

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Within one year —FR 14,945 -
In the second to fifth years RE_EZERF 28,902 -
43,847 -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 37. BEAXTXRZRER

BRitt E4R A MBS HRERE MDA
HMZ RGN AEBRAEE
NEBEZEATBEATRS:

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed (a)
elsewhere in these consolidation financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the

year:
2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FER TET
Transaction with EAREE N A
related companies*: ETZRS*
Rent paid =ENEicEA (i) 878 1,223
Sales of goods HEEW (i) 160 -
* Related companies are companies under * BEARVAAR —EEY
significant influence of a director of the HEEAEZE I NT -
Company.
Notes: MisT -
(i) The sales of goods and rental expenses were (i) e kBRI IiET
made according to market prices. BYEH -
(b) Other transactions with related parties and (b) HEBEEATETZHEHMXZRE

connected transactions

(i) The Group's bank loans of
HK$67,444,000 (2014: HK$61,216,000)
consisted of two bank loans.

The first bank loan of HK54,910,000
was secured by properties held by
Linxianghuayin Properties Investment
and Development Co., Ltd. (“E&/AZER
EXREBRAEMRAR]"), a related party
of the Group, and guaranteed by Mr.
Jiang lJianjun and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng,
directors of the Group, Linxianghuayin
Properties Investment and Development
Co., Ltd., Ningxia West Bright, Harbin
China Distillery Co., Ltd. and the
Company. The loan was settled by the
Group on March 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

The second bank loan of HK12,534,000
was secured by properties held by
Wang Tong, an independent third
party, and guaranteed by Mr. Jiang
Jianjun, a director of the Group, Mrs.
Li Shuoxun, spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun
and Shenzhen Bokanghua Industrial Co.,
Limited CRINTERZEEEXBRAAF]),
an independent third party.

On 13 May 2015, the Company
entered into the Framework Agreement
with the supplier to the supply of the
products. Beidahuang Marketing Co.
is a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. The Supplier
is the group company of Beidahuang
Marketing Co., which is also a
connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the
Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for
the Company. The aggregated annual
caps for transactions contemplated
under the Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31
December 2015, 2016 and 2017 are
576 million, 950 million and 1,045
million respectively. During the year
ending 31 December 2015, there was a
total purchase of staple food amounting
HK$252 million.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

37. BEAIXZRER (&)

(b) EREBATETZHMRS

(&)

(i)

(ii)

(%)

% —#L 5 712,534,000
& 7T B 8 3 88 = 7 Wang
TongFr#E 2 M EEE R
VHASBEEEIEEL
EOIRTEEZREBR
BEZERBIE=FR
IHIEREEXERAA
EFER -

RZE—RHFRA+=
=R N/NEST == Ry X v
ERHE UHEESR-
IERMEHERNER AT
BARRNAHEAREXH
AEAT HERAILX
REHERHDBR AW
EEQA it KT 8
B BERRRITAKRA
EIGEINE N0 R
AT -EHit - ERWBZEIE
THETHZ HEKAE
RAINBERER S B
EE-RF - ZFT—R
FRZZE—tF+=A
T+ HALt=ZEFESE
FOERBEETEET
XEHEMBRFE LR S A
A AR #576,000,00058
7T~ 950,000,000/ 7T &
1,045,000,000% 7T ° & &=
—E-RFF+_A=1+—
HEFE FREMBE
B %8 4252,000,00078 7T °
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Pt SR e ] = 1o

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)

37. BAEAEIXRZ K& (&)

Outstanding balances with related parties: () HEHE AT Z MR EERE:
2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THERT FET
Due from related parties PEURBAE A LRI
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TEERE (ii) - 76
Shenzhen Huagin Investment  JRIIFEHR IR EHRE
and Development Co., Ltd. ERANT (iii) = 1,041
Shenzhen Jianlai RINTREKE %
Industrial Co., Ltd. BRAR (iv) 13,131 13,867
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor B M BB A %
Distribution Co., Ltd. BRAT] (v) 269 287
Harbin China Distillery IRRET BT
Company Limited BRAR] (vi) 3,819 -
Guangdong Tat Chun BEREEE TR
Electric Technology BRAR
Company Limited* (vi) 21,739 -
ShenZhen Guangshenhang RYITRERITIBE
Wine Company Limited ERAT (iv) 2,388 -
41,346 15,271
Due to related parties FERBEEALRE
Guangzhou TianTian BMRRX (i) (10,146) (10,829)
Mr. Qu Shuncai fENEA &4 (i) (294) (307)
Mr. Jiang Jianjun THERE (ii) (2,341) -
(12,781) (11,136)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e | |

37. BAEAEIXRFZ K& (&)

() Outstanding balances with related parties: (0 HBEEALZHMKRERLE:
(continued) (&
Notes: T :
(i) Companies under significant influence of a 0) SENG AN —EEY
director of the Company. BEBEERTEZRNF-
(ii) A director or ex-director of the Company. (ii) KRR EBHFEES-
(iii) Companies controlled by Mr. Jiang Jiancheng. (iif) ST S 7 AT o
(iv) Companies controlled by Mr. Jiang Jianjun. (iv) STEE LTS 7 AT o
(v) Company controlled by the non-controlling V) — BB A R IEVE AR AR B AT i
shareholder of a subsidiary. L PA/NEI R
(vi) Companies under significant influence of a (vi) ZENTNARNT —LEE
shareholder of the Company. WEHESAZE Y NT
* The balance is unsecured, interest bearing * LR EEEM -IRET A1.5%
at 1.5% per month and repayable within 6 FEABER6E B RNEE-
months.
The balances with other related parties HEEAT ZE&BAE
are unsecured, interest free and have no K B NEETENR
fixed terms of repayment. HR o
(d) Compensation of key management d XTEEFTEEEAEZHE
personnel
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Short term employee benefits %2 #i{& 8 12 7 1,872 1,129
Post-employment benefits BB 12 18 A 18 17
Equity-settled share option VARG 45 5 2 B AR R B <2
expense 7,552 229
Total compensation paid to key S FEEEEAEZ
management personnel mERRE 9,442 1,375

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of
items (a)(i) above also constituted de minimis
continuing connected transactions as defined in

EREEME 2 —THIFEN
A RRMIFES o

BRALAEE@ZABEALR
HNEREEREFERERS
(EHRR EMARAF14AT)

chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38. EEFEZRERESS
The information about loans, quasi-loans and other EREANARISKENB XM IAIAE
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary ENTIEFEFRATHANER EEXR
undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in EEMZS (WER) ERIFE W T
favour of a controlled body corporate of directors is as
follows:
Outstanding Maximum
amount Outstanding outstanding
Total atthe  amount at amount Amount
amount  beginning the end during due but
Name of borrower payable  of the year  of the year the year not paid
Elo FXH Eo
B AEEZ AEEZ AEE BIHE
RRAER MEAE RA B MELR  EEHAXA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT AT AT AT
As at 31 December 2015 RZT-RF+ZA=1+—H
Loans:- By -
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. RITRREEERRA
(Connected director: Jiang Jianjun) (BEEz:IRE) 13,131 13,867 13,131 13,131 -
Shenzhen Huagin Investment FERBEEERRAT
and Development Co., Ltd. (BEEs IEM)
(Connected director: Jiang Jiancheng) - 1,041 - 1,041 -
Shenzhen Guangshenhang FYNERTEEERAF
Wine Company Limited (BEEsI1EM)
(Connected director: Jiang Jiancheng) 2,388 - 2,388 28,782 -
As at 31 December 2014 RZZ-MmE+-A=1+—H
Loans:- B -
Shenzhen Huagin Investment RIERBEEERERAF
and Development Co., Ltd (BEEZIEMN)
(Connected director: Jiang Jiancheng) 1,041 - 1,041 1,041 -
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial Co,. Ltd RYMEREEERAT
(Connected director: Jiang Jianjun) (BEEs18%) 13,867 10,174 13,867 13,867 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
= A SR i S

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

39.

ERMIADE
RBEHR EHE

MIAKREEN

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
Financial assets SEEE
2015 2014
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at fair
value through  value through
profit or loss profit or loss
BATLEIE ®ZRATEIE
MEeMEE HemEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B x TET FAET
Derivative financial assets MTEERMEE 23 = 7,745
Financial assets at fair value FRBEREATE
through profit or loss FIERE € B & B 15 76,252 -
76,252 7,745
2015 2014
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BEXK ¢ 94
FE W FRIE U RIA
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FTART FAT
Advance to associates MBS N RHER 23R 19 28,689 84,577
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 3K 11,835 8,925
Financial assets included in FFATEFIE
prepayments, deposits and Ee REMEK
other receivables B CEEE 204,788 173,817
Loan receivable i e=E:N 16 37,005 -
Due from non-controlling JE BT 1B
shareholders of subsidiaries 1T Hxﬂﬁﬁ 14,100
Due from related parties JE U Féﬁ@/\i, 37 41,346 15,271
Cash and cash equivalents Be &fﬁﬁ%@% 24 363,300 79,150
701,063 361,740

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited FEdt AREZEEEZERER AT 179
Annual Report 2015 F #§



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB SRR MY R

31 December 2015
Pt SR e ] = 1o

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

EREE (/)

TRMIASE (&)

2015 2014

Financial Financial

liabilities liabilities

at amortised at amortised

cost cost

REBHEBAE RE SRR

SIER 2 58K 2

cRERE =

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B &E FET FHET

Trade payables B SR 26 5,708 9,211

Financial liabilities included in FHAE A B 3RIE K

other payables and accruals B ERzeMAE 56,634 9,248
Interest-bearing bank and RITRHEMEEE 28

other borrowings 105,643 61,216

Due to related parties JETEEE A L8 37 12,781 11,136

Convertible bonds R ES 30 = 92,406

180,766 183,217

The carrying amounts of the above balances
approximate to their fair values.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts
due from/to related parties, convertible bonds and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

40.

bl FRERE QA ERS-

cREREREZBERBR

AEBzTESRMITEABERITREM
AEEE B ENRIEA TR
B EFMAERREFEY -ZE
TRTAZEZANAEEAKELE
FIBES AKEARBNEEESER
LENEZERELREMEREER
BE ZSeMEEMBEDNEES
TEEEL-

AEEERMTAZEIZABRSMNERE
@ SNERRR - EEER  RBETRAR
EEERR EFeRIRHEEES
FAE R < BUR - BRRBRSA T
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate

risk respectively

The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
— B EN —S aiE

TRERERE BERBEEK (&)

=@ B
AEENFIERABREEREH SEE-
BB RE AR NEENHIEAER
AHRSRARARRATENRA

G o
A

EEEERASENF KRB RN T
(i) °

() Interest rate profile () F =& 7
The following table details the interest rate TERFMBERRANEFESD
profile of the Group's borrowings at the end of =
the reporting period:
2015 2014
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
pa. % HK$'000 p.a. % HK$'000
ERER= BRERNX
% TER % FTEL
Variable rate borrowings: ¥ EMEE
Bank loans - secured RITEH-FHEA 5.14-9.06 67444  4.80-11.19 61216
Other loans-unsecured HtgH— 857 4.97 38,199 - -

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $528,000 (2014: $306,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

EA:; AF+=ZA=1+—8 " &HF
B LA TRSOBEER MAAA
ﬁm“ﬁﬂ%%T“ T RSB R
1% 5 A R AR B0 A # R 1 4
528,0007T ( —Z — P44 : 306,0007T) °

FRAGEREDITER  RERBEHRE
ENMEXEFHY EANE B FENIEDT
AT AAZNMNERERE  NEH

fmémﬂ&ﬁxaa/mﬂﬂi’riziﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁ—ir
“@J BT -NENHEREEETY
il
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. The
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's equity.

TRERERE BERBE (&)

ShEE R

AEBE 2 ZFBURPEAE MAER
GAANREET - AEBARIDEE
REBRAREIE R TRITEH
A TT R TTIIVERR S - R B I £ 4
o L SN EE R L

TREREMALGEBTENER
T RBEMAAEEERYARKE
) IR AT BB B BB o

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in equity*
ARBER Ei®
g, g,
(E2) ORA) =
% HK$'000
FHET
2015 —E-FHE
If the Hong Kong dollar WmETEARERE
weakens against the RMB (5) (18,591)
If the Hong Kong dollar WMEBTHAREHE
strengthens against the RMB 5 18,591
2014 —E-F
If the Hong Kong dollar WMEBETHARERE
weakens against the RMB (5) (12,642)
If the Hong Kong dollar mETEAREAE
strengthens against the RMB 5 12,642

* Excluding accumulated losses

* TRERER
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, loan
receivable, amounts due from related parties and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these assets.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed
in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22
to the financial statements, respectively.

40.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
— BN S i

TRERERE BERBEEK (&)
FERR
AEEERERTTAGERIFZE=R

Lﬁﬁ&% BAEBEHRAZHBER BF

AN EES ALBRER m@
2R o th b 7N 5 B 71 B ES 4 PR UR 3R
%ﬁﬁ%’ﬁt'zﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬁ%zmﬂ
WAREK-

AEBHEMEREE (BRASZ RS
EFEY BERER BUYEEALREA

AR B At R IR) 2 R E R £ B 2R
BY 2R IR &RARRBE
REZFEEEZRME

MR ASEERERAAGEEREZ

£= ELHE% Ak I B F IR I E
EZHFEBR-EERRZETBERIIRY
ﬁ:m@&ﬁ%%% AR 7R SR B
B2 EAAANED BN TR B RITE
MEPHER AEERLERERTH
EERER-

ERAAKEREEKE SRR M EBE
WHRIRZ FERRZE— P EERED

RIS A 7 R BT 5E 21 o P FE22 3 5 -
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rEmesRest = 1—H
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. SREMREEEENRBEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REBEE R
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds AREFFBRK S RERE T AR
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool CHEBRRAR - ZITAGESHTITARSD
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments BMEE (WMEKE FEZXREE )13 HE
and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) HE R B EEARIE ST
and projected cash flows from operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance REF 7 BRAERETERLEAME
between continuity of funding and flexibility through BERIEHESHNEBEEREEE-
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities REPEHIR  AEEBEN D ET4 B8 K8,
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the BNZzeaaER 8B RmT:
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2015 2014
Within 1to Within 1to
1 year 2 years Total 1 year 2 years Total
-FR  -EWF At —F]  —EWEF CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT TAT TET TER THL TET
Trade payables ENEHER 5,708 - 5,708 9,211 - 9,211
Financial liabilities included in SR ERFER
other payables and accruals EAEBRzERER 56,634 = 56,634 9,248 - 9,248
Interest-bearing bank and RITRAMGEREE
other borrowings 105,643 - 105,643 61,216 - 61,216
Due to related parties ENBEATHE 12,781 - 12,781 11,136 - 11,136
Convertible bonds ARk ES - - - - 92,406 92,406
180,766 - 180,766 90,811 92,406 183,217
Capital management EREHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014.

AEBEARNEENEZER REAN
SEARBELENEN RgiRe
MEARL R AXFHEXBER F
RAMBREE-

AEERBEEBIONEH R BEMEE
ZEBEBYE ERHEEAALEILELT
BoAWENAREAREE AEEA
BEEARRERE MR REEARR
BEITHIR o AR B A 2L (7] S 3R B 0
CERBEAR - BE-_T—RHF+=
A=+—HEZZE—WF+=A=+—
BIEFERN ASETEEXNEERE
A2 B -BRKERF-
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt.
The Group’s policy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, convertible bonds less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Capital
includes equity attributable to owners of the parent.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

40.

B S R IR B &
31 December 2015
s — Al e | |

TRERERE BERBEEK (&)

EXEE (&)

AEBUAERB B R (EHFHERIA
BARNMESFRE) ERERNBER K
SENRRRBERRENERRE HI
MERKA B FRBRENE SR
RAEBRE HENFERESER
RITREMAEBEE BEBEALR
— BT B 1% B FE PR AR AR R ROE - AT AR
B WHEREMAESENMIEER
WER - BEXBESARES AEIEE
moMBEHR EXARBLLERAT:

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Interest-bearing bank and other RITREMTEEE

borrowings 105,643 61,216
Trade payables JERTE SRR 5,708 9,211
Other payables and accruals HiENRIERETE R 57,500 9,248
Due to related parties FETREE AL FRIAE 12,781 11,136
Convertible bonds AHRRES - 92,406
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BReERREFED (363,300) (79,150)
Net (assets)/debt (BE) /BB TR (181,668) 104,067
Capital BR 1,006,852 293,788
Capital and net debt BEARRER F5E 825,184 397,855
Gearing ratio BEARBELE N/A REHA 26%

Fair value measurement

Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative carried at fair value had been
categorised as level 1 and level 3 respectively within
the fair value hierarchy which is defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

AFEE
S RAREEEB RS RA TETIENS
BEEMEAFEARNITETAME
A ER 28 ABIRD BlE R FE
ERRHRE—BRE=M ATEE
MEZEIOT

. HREENEERERT ISR
B (CRERAE) (F—F) -

. BR 55 — 4% BT B2 15 B0 SR AB LA SNIE AT
MEENABEE (WER) M
# (ARAEER) BiRaE ARE
(B=®) -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. s RIEREEBEERBEK (E)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued) NFEEFE (&)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o WIEER A EBERMESENEE
based on observable market data (that is, B EZHAEE (A ER
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). BASE) (B=4) -

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair RSB REPIRALEIENS

value in the consolidated statement of financial MEBENBEBEBYANTAFEEL :

position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

follows:

2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E-@ gt E =t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 Total
TERT TR TR st
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value FRERRATEYR
through profit or loss 70,403 - 5,849 76,252
Investment properties REME - 88,370 - 88,370
2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—H F-R E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
TET TEL TEL @t
Assets BE
Derivatives financial instruments IR EE N T4
under convertible bonds ERIA - - 7,745 7,745

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

BHE_ZT—NFEK_ZT—HF+=H
=+ —HLFE - F—HREF_HFME
WHREER MW EE ALEHE=R-
AEEMBEREHAFEEHR 2 HHE
B FTE A MRS B RAER -
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40.

41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2015
s — Al e |

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. SREMEEZEENRBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) NFEEHE (8)
The loss arising on changes in fair value of the STHETERNFEESEE 7 EIEL
derivatives are included in the consolidated statement AGEcEZLEmE2ARKARE A
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 12,174,000 L - 5 - T — W& N\ A
amounted to HK$12,174,000. Please refer to note + B (AJBRESFRETRE) ZE -2 —0
23 for the movements in the derivatives included in FE+-A=t+—HHBZE=RAFE
Level 3 fair value hierarchy for period from 7 August BRI EESOTETAESE S2HHW
2014 (date of issuance of convertible bonds) to 31 230
December 2014.
The derivative financial instruments under convertible RESE TITE SR T E TS TE
bonds are denominated in HK$. Fair values have been B-RFEDNZE-LBILEERME
determined by reference to the valuation made by an B —BEBRAEREH NG EETE %
independent qualified valuer by using the Binomial (HEBRES Y EIEEMIEERIER
Model that includes some assumption that are not YEABR - AFEAEFERENEART
supportable by observable market prices or rates. The AJER G A EUE ATEERK 847 % o A
significant unobservable input used in the fair value EEtE B E I8 2 IEABRT -
measurement is the expected volatility at 47%. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected volatility
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 41. RAHEATIWRER
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: IEEPNGIES = N
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
S, BRITLEE/
a8 HEMREE R ARRAEE ARAREERASL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# i
China Silver Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Investment holding
REREERRERATF B 10078 7T REZK
Most Success Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 40 - Lending of logistic
BREZERAA B 10,0007 7T facilities
HEMR R
BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$4,450,682 100 - Investment holding
ABEEARES/ 4,450,682% T REEK
B
Keen Vitality Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100 - Inactive
KBERRAE/ 50,000% 7T TER
BE
Rightsouth Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$4,694,001 100 - Investment holding
RERARES/ 4,694,001% 7T REER
B
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41.
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. AHBARIHNER (&)
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
EmEL BRITLE/
A8 EMREE AMRAEE ARRELEBREADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &

Guangzhou Wine and Liquor PRC/Mainland China RMB12,500,000 - 70 Retail sales and
Franchised Stores Ltd. (ii) R/ B R AR #12,500,0007T distribution of
BMEEZEEEHFR A A wine and liquor

TERDHES

Power Range Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 Investment holding

RERBRAF HREARES/ 2ETT REZK
BE

JGJ (China) Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

FomEt (PE)EEERAT BE BT REZRK

Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB55,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Trading Limited (i) FE R E A AR #55,000,0007T wine and liquor

RITELAEHERR A A) DIEE

Hunan Meiming Wenshi Jiuguijiu PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Sales Limited () RE R E R AR #15,000,0007T wine and liquor

HEEEMEERBEHEBRAA() 2 HER

Harbin Meiming Wenshi Spirit Sales PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Co., Limited (i) RERE A AR #5,000,0007T wine and liquor

BBEXLMEEEEEERAF() DEBE

Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 50  Sales of green
Distribution Limited (i), (ii) B/ BN AR 10,000,0007 food products

RIEAFTZER MK HEZERM
BIBAF), (i)

Ningxia Dahuangyuan New Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB92,000,000 - 97.82  Inactive
Agricultural Science and Technology ~ #F /R Bl it AR #92,000,0007T TEE
Development Company Limited (iv)

EEAREMERRERBER
AR AT ()

Shenzhen Guanghengya Trading PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 80  Investment holding
Company Limited (i), (iv) RE /R E R AR #1,000,0007C BEER

(Formerly known as Shenzhen Jianlai
Meiming Wenshi Investment and
Development Company Limited)

RTEERE SEBAR), (v)
(ARAITERELRERE
ERAERRAF)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 S 2% MY &

31 December 2015
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41.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. AHBARIHNRER (&)
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
EmE, BRITLE/
A8 MR EE R AMRAEE AAREERERAL TEREH
Direct Indirect
EE B
Skymax International Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Inactive
Enterprise Limited A 1T TR
(Formerly known as China
Beidahuang Industry Group
Holdings Limited)
RTERRECEERAR
(AIBRELAREXEH
ERERAR)
China Phoenix Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Inactive
FEEEEEERAA B 1T Tk
Shenzhen Pendga Rongtong PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Trading Limited (iv) R R E A AR #10,000,0007T money leading
AT ERBEEBRAF(Y) BREERREME
Hong Kong Beidahuang Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
Investment Limited B0 10,000/ 7T BREER
BELARTREFRAA
Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan PRC/Mainland China UsD10,000,000 100 - Money lending
Financing Lease Company Limited (v) F B,/ # B[Rk 10,000,0005 7 nE
RYTRETERERE
AR A F(v)
China Beidahuang Logistics Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Inactive
RELRRORERAF EE 10,0007 TEE
Notes: B
(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise (i) RIEREDEEIMAIEBE RS-
under the PRC law.
(ii) Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture (ii) REFEEEEM ARG ERSE-
under the PRC law.
@iy The Company holds majority of members in the (i) ARAFHBEEEFE (ZELANE

) 2 BURHL E A
REAANEWED YT HLARE
TERANBERTRENTLEE

H BEBRRENFEZTEHRSE-

board of directors which is the governing body of
these companies and therefore has the power to
direct the relevant activities of these companies, and
is exposed, or the rights, to variable returns from the
investment with the investee, and has the ability the
are its power to affect the amount of those returns.

(iv) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (iv) it B QR E A TEEE R 2
identification purpose only. 5
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41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. RHBATMRES (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company THMERIREEERAS %%%¢F§'
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally HERERNAEEEESETITERD Y
affected the results for the year or formed a AT B AT %%.:/J%TETA,J@W
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To BARIZ B8 BNITE-

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material NEBEEEEAFFIERER 2B AT
non-controlling interests are set out below: ZEHEFHY O
2015 2014
Percentage of equity interest held by FEIZERRERMIFRIEST DL
non-controlling interests:
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BNBEEEEEHEERA
Franchised Stores Limited 30% 30%
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food RYIE R4 B Rl X
Distribution Limited* BRRAA* 50% N/A T8 A
Most Success Corporation Limited* BRHEEBR AR 60% N/A 38 F
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT AT
Loss for the year allocated to DT IFERER 2 FREEHE:
non-controlling interests:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co., Limited ZEEREEZXBRAF NA (67)
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BMNBEEEEEEEERA
Franchised Stores Limited (1,567) (698)
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food ﬁllitj(m?ﬁ"éﬁuu
Distribution Limited* BRAA] 461 -
Most Success Corporation Limited* B ZERR AR (369) -
Accumulated balances of RS BEEERER 2
non-controlling interests REtHERR:
at the reporting dates:
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BMNBEEEEEEHEERA
Franchised Stores Limited 2,428 4114
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food ﬁllitj(m,ﬁ"éﬁumuﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
Distribution Limited* NCI 5,925 -
Most Success Corporation Limited* BECHEERR AR * (2,272) -
3 The subsidiaries were acquired during the year. L ZHTB AR B R EAUEE -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. RAHMEBATIHRER (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRAR KB AT Z &R
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BoMIFELEIIANER QT BN
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :

Guangzhou Shenzhen

Wine and Beidahuang
Liquor Green Food  Most Success
Franchised Distribution Corporation
Stores Limited Limited Limited

BMNER FI K
EEFEHE ZREefmli B A

2015 —E-1F BRAF BRAF BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR

Revenue WA 45,795 705,885 9,526
Total expense Hx @ (51,019) (704,941) (15,215)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BEB) /%7 (5,224) 94 (5,689)
Total comprehensive (loss)income for the year ~ FE2E (1) WA B85 (5,224) 94 (5,689)
Current assets MBEE 14,820 76,804 12,243
Non-current assets FRBEE 60 19 54,790
Current liabilities mEBE (17,113) (64,972) (72,712)
Net cash flows from operating activities BERHMERERETE 790 9,845 59,921
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & ;ZEIFS,/ (FiR)

HeneFe 27 31 (57,534)
Net cash flows from financing activities RERHMERERETE - 9,254 10
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kR SEMEINTFE 817 19,130 2,397
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41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. mﬁﬁ%’/}ﬁ] R (8)
Guangzhou Shenzhen
Ningxia Wine and Beidahuang
Ke Long Liquor Green Food ~ Most Success
Industrial Franchised Distribution Corporation
Co Limited  Stores Limited Limited Limited
BB RIHLA T
EEREER EEFEE SBRMEKX BEE
2014 —T-|mF el NG AR A AR A BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TEL FET
Revenue WA - 73,346 - -
Total expense H B8 (137) (75,672) - -
Loss for the year FEEFR (137) (2,326) - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FE 2 FE BB AR (137) (2,326) - -
Current assets MEEE - 35,638 - -
Non-current assets ERBEE - 50 - -
Current liabilities nEEE - (21,975) - -
Non-current liabilities EnRBaE - - - -
Net cash flows (used in)/from weEe (FA)/
operating activities EReRE T M 3,128 - -
Net cash flows from investing activities & /EBFTEREREFE - 2 - -
Net cash flows used in financing REEBHAREREF
activities - (3,604) - -
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBReZEMRDFE
equivalents (1) (474) - -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. KRB BEMRRREEE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

ARBNHEARNTBARRKER B

of the Company at the end of the reporting period 3
includes:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « B E K& 121 79
Interests in subsidiaries PN S 3 999,335 468,556
Total non-current assets EREBEERE 999,456 468,635
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and AR A - Ee Rk
other receivables H {th e U 5008 1,098 920
Derivative financial instruments T4 4l T A — 7,745
Cash and cash equivalents ReLRESFEDY 34,329 8
Total current assets MENEERE 35,427 8,673
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to related parties JETEAE A T FRIB 1,934 -
Other payable and accruals Hh e~ RRIE R ERT & A 1,924 3,418
Total current liabilities REBERRE 3,858 3,418
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 31,569 5,255
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EELAERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,031,025 473,890
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR EFH - 92,406
Net assets BEFE 1,031,025 381,484
EQUITY =
Issued capital B 21T AN 233,664 162,669
Reserves ] 797,361 218,815
Total equity AR 1,031,025 381,484
Jiang Jianjun IRE Jiang Jiancheng TR
Director BE Director EE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. KNP TIEBBERAENEHE (8)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement of the reserves of the company is as KATIEEBEHMT
follows:
Share Share Convertible
premium option bonds Warrant  Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ReOEER  BRERE TRRESEE AREIRE R ER @i
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wik FAT TRT FHT FAT FAT TR
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE—mE
—F—BR&H 718,569 19,950 - - (704,774) 33,745
Total comprehensive loss rEERXHEELE
for the year - - - - (26,224) (26,224)
Issue of convertible bonds BT RRES 30 = = 19,968 = = 19,968
Issue of share by allotment BRREMETRG 32 170,093 = = = = 170,093
Exercise of share option TiEim AR 31,762 (13,131) = = = 18,631
Equity-settled share option arrangements  FRiE& EERIEL 33 - 2,757 - - - 2,757
Transfer of share option BB IR K B
reserve upon the lapse of BERERZEER
share options - (155) - - - (155)
At 31 December 2014 R-2-m%F
+ZB=t-8 920,424 9,421 19,968 - (730,998) 218,815
Total comprehensive loss TEERAEELH
for the year - - - - (93,693) (93,693)
Issue of warrants EITRREE - - - 1,800 - 1,800
Conversion of convertible bonds RATARES 88,943 - (19,968) - = 68,975
Issue of share by allotment BREZMETRG 372,709 - - - - 372,709
Bxercise of share option T RE 55,480 (15,012) - - - 40,468
Exercise of warrants TERREE 109,800 - - (1,800) = 108,000
Transfer of share option reserve upon the 7 AR HE S 38 B BB 1%
lapse of share options EREER - (1,449) - - 1,449 =
Equity-settled share option arrangements  BREZE RIS 5 - 80,287 - - - 80,287
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
+=ZA=+-H 1,547,356 73,247 - - (823,242) 797,361

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The share option reserve and warrant reserve
comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained
in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to accumulated losses
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

RIEFSHERRIA (KEF])  ARA]
Pt ia EBRMEE AT HOIR T ARBR
REREEEZORKRERR AR
FIABRENEEERAEXBKBIETE
HImE# -

BRERELABEEFBRECEL
BRRTERBRE AFE FHEAR
iR A ISR MY 512 4B B UARR (0 S AP 3K
HZEBERA - BRAFBERRAREE
REETEREREERMEER Sk
HE R s v e B 08 MR R S = R A
B8
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44,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(0

On 30 December, the Company and Zhongfa
Junrong Technology Joint Stock Company
entered into the Strategic Co-operation
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which
the parties shall co-operate and explore the
possibility of developing certain production
industrial parks and logistic industrial parks in
the PRC by way of joint venture arrangements.
Details are set out in the announcement dated
3 January 2016.

The Bonus Issue was made on the basis of
one (1) Bonus Share for every one (1) existing
Share held by the Qualifying Shareholders
on 5 January 2016. As at 5 January 2016,
the Company had a total of 2,336,644,876
Shares in issue and therefore, an aggregate
of 2,336,644,876 Bonus Shares were issued
by the Company under the Bonus Issue on
7 January 2016. Details are set out in the
circular dated 4 December 2015 and the
announcement dated 22 December 2015 and 7
January 2016.

On 26 January 2016, the Company and other
two Parties entered into the Strategic Co-
operation Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which the parties shall co-operate and explore
the possibility of expediting certain municipal
projects and developing production industrial
parks in Jishou, Hunan Province, the PRC by
way of joint venture arrangements. Details are
set out in the announcement dated 26 January
2016.

On 1 March 2016, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into two
Share Transfer Agreements with Vendors,
whereby the Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to acquire and Vendors have conditionally
agreed to sell 51% equity interest in Target
Companies at the consideration of RMB35
million and RMB50 million, respectively. Details
are set out in the announcement dated 1
March 2016.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2016.

MEmERMEE
31 December 2015
= — s e | |
43. HEHEEE

@ R+ZA=+H -AQFHEHFPHE
BB RN ARG RS
ERBZ Bt SRR ARBE
ERBMNEERRER A E
BRETEEEXBRRMREXE
A -FBEHNRARA-ZT

—RNE—AZBZRf-

(b) HARBEITHIER_Z—F—A
HHAEERBRESEE — ()RR
BRADERE — ()AL AR 2 EE1E
H-R-ZT—XRE—AFHEB" K
NEIEA A H2,336,644,876i% 2
BTl - At ARRER =T
—NFE— AL HRBAREITE
178 3£2,336,644,876A% 4T A% © 5
EHNAMA-ZT—RE+ A
WMHZBHNMBEEA-Z—RF
+ A+ BN T —RNF—
AtHZ Ao

@ RZFB-RE-AZFTRA X
BB E A B RT 4D 77 BT LR RS
BIEER M B TN A
O EERERINRE T HHBA
BRBBAELERRED B
AEEMEEEXEMNAAEMN -
HBERABMR T —RF—H
T RBZ e

d WZZE—REZA—H ARQ7A
ZEE2ENBARIEE F3]L
WO EEERZ BB
EBRHERERELRE B GHER
EHEBEZERARZ51%ME K
B Bl A ARE35,000,0007T &
A K #50,000,0007T ° 5 15 & 7
BERAEA-Z—XR"F=ZA—HZA
{?ﬁ o

44. H#HEBI K
BB HRERERN_TE—NE=A_+WMAH
HESed EWRETE-
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below.

TRBAANEEBEREHRFE 2 RERE
E BENEERER DREEE B 2K
BRPBHE YEFEEEY EHROR-

RESULTS E T
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-RHILEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL TET THL FEL
Revenue 'ON 785,956 195,260 440,785 199,325 384,859
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATEF (BR) 37,313 101,043 (161,594) (334,586) (151,248)
Income tax (expenses)/credit AR (AX) /&% (22,421) 16 (395) 12,928 11,838
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEN/ (B8) 14,892 101,059 (161,989) (321,658) (139,410)
Attributable to: Tl
Owners of the parent BRAKEA 19,412 117,810 (126,770) (277,800) (125,547)
Non-controlling interests SRR (4,520) (16,751) (35,219) (43,858) (13,863)
14,892 101,059 (161,989) (321,658) (139,410)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE - -BERFEERER
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL FET TRL AL
TOTAL ASSETS EEM4E 1,215,213 505,479 560,599 520,543 730,558
TOTAL LIABILITIES EE0E (203,415) (207,576) (619,041) (427,729) (327,239)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERES (4,946) (4,115) 17,253 (10,694) (54,601)
1,006,852 293,788 (41,189) 82,120 348,718
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